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Cano Petroleum Inc
6500 North Belt Line Road

Suite 200

Irving Texas 75063

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

Date April21 2011

Time 1000 a.m Irving Texas time

Place The Westin DFW Airport Live Oak Room
4545 West John Carpenter Freeway Irving Texas 75063

Purpose To elect members of the Board of Directors whose terms are described in the proxy

statement

To ratify the selection of Hem Associates LLP as Canos independent registered public

accounting firm for the year ending June 30 2011

To conduct other business properly raised before the meeting and any adjournment or

postponements of the meeting

Record Date You may vote if you were stockholder of record of our common stock or Series Convertible

Preferred Stock on March 22 2011

Proxy Voting Your vote is important You may vote in one of the following ways in person at the meeting

by signing dating and returning your proxy card in the enclosed postage-paid envelope
via the Internet pursuant to the instructions included on the enclosed proxy card via

telephone pursuant to the instructions on the enclosed proxy card or for shares registered in

the name of brokerage firm or bank shares may be voted as outlined in the voting instruction

form provided by the brokerage firms banks or nominees

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Is JAMES LATIMER Ill

James Latimer Ill

Chief Executive Officer

Irving Texas

March 22 2011

Important Notice Regarding the Electronic Availability of Proxy
Materials for the Stockholder Meeting to be Held on April 21 2011

The Proxy Statement and Annual Report for 2010 are available at

https/materials proxyvote.com/1 37801



PROXY STATEMENT

Your proxy is being solicited by the Board of Directors of Cano Petroleum Inc Delaware

corporation Cano for use at the 2011 Annual Meeting of the Stockholders the Annual Meeting The
Annual Meeting will be held on April 21 2011 at 1000 a.m Irving Texas time at The Westin DFW Airport

Live Oak Room 4545 West John Carpenter Freeway Irving Texas 75063 This proxy statement and the

accompanying proxy card contain information about the items you will vote on at the Annual Meeting We
will begin mailing these documents to stockholders on or about March 23 2011

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

What is the purpose of the Annual Meeting

At the Annual Meeting stockholders will vote upon the matters described in the accompanying
notice of meeting Although the Board of Directors knows of no other business to come before the Annual

Meeting for any other matter that properly comes before the Annual Meeting the proxy holders will vote as

recommended by our Board of Directors or if no recommendation is given in their own discretion

Adjournments and postponements of the Annual Meeting may be made for the purpose of among other

things soliciting additional proxies Any adjournment may be made from time to time by approval of the

holders of common stock and the Series Convertible Preferred Stock representing majority of the vote

present in person or by proxy at the Annual Meeting whether or not quorum exists without further notice

other than by an announcement made at the Annual Meeting

Why am receiving this Proxy Statement

You are receiving this proxy statement and the enclosed proxy card because you owned shares of

common stock or Series Convertible Preferred Stock of Cano Petroleum Inc on March 22 2011 the

record date This Proxy Statement describes the proposals on which you as stockholder may vote It

also gives you information on these proposals and certain other information in order that you may make an
informed decision

What does it mean if receive more than one proxy card

If your shares are registered differently and are in more than one account you will receive more
than one proxy card If you hold shares through someone else such as bank or broker you may also

receive material from them asking how you want to vote Please sign and return all proxy cards to be

certain that all your shares are voted at the Annual Meeting

If you receive more than one proxy card then you own our common stock through multiple

accounts at the transfer agent and/or with stock brokers Please sign and return all proxy cards to ensure

that all of your shares are voted at the Annual Meeting

Who may vote and how many votes do have

You may vote in person at the Annual Meeting or vote by proxy if you owned shares of Canos

common stock or Series Convertible Preferred Stock at the close of business on the record date March

22 2011 Each share of common stock that you owned or with respect to the Series Convertible

Preferred Stock each share of common stock into which your Series Convertible Preferred Stock may be

converted subject to the restrictions contained in the Certificate of Designations Preferences and Rights of

Series Convertible Preferred Stock on the record date entitles you to one vote on each proposal that is

voted on by the stockholders On the record date there were 45354915 shares of common stock

outstanding and entitled to vote and 23849 shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock outstanding

and entitled to vote which were convertible into 5059603 shares of our common stock for an aggregate
total number of voting shares of 50414518



How do vote before the meeting

You have several ways that you may vote before the meeting as explained in the detailed

instructions on your proxy card In summary

By mail by completing signing and returning the enclosed proxy card in the postage-paid

envelope provided with this proxy statement

Via the Internet pursuant to the instructions included on the enclosed proxy card

Via telephone pursuant to the instructions included on the enclosed proxy card or

For shares registered in the name of brokerage firm or bank shares may be voted as outlined

in the voting instruction form provided by the brokerage firms banks or nominees

How does the Board of Directors recommend that vote

The Board of Directors recommends that you vote your shares FOR each of the nominees for

director and for each of the other items on the accompanying notice of meeting

Can vote at the Annual Meeting

Shares registered directly in your name as the stockholder of record may be voted in person at the

Annual Meeting Shares held in street name may be voted in person if you obtain legal proxy from the

broker or nominee that held your shares on the record date giving you the right to vote the shares Even if

you plan to attend the meeting we encourage you to vote your shares by proxy You may still vote your

shares in person at the meeting even if you have previously voted by proxy by revoking your proxy

Will my shares be voted if do not sign and return my proxy card

If your shares are registered in your name and you do not sign and return your proxy card or you do

not attend the meeting in person your shares will not be voted

If your shares are held in street name you must provide voting instructions to your broker bank or

other nominee by the deadline provided in the materials you receive from your broker bank or other

nominee Whether your shares can be voted by such person depends on the type of time being considered

by vote

Non-discretionaiy items The election of directors is non-discretionary item and may not be

voted on by brokers banks or other nominees who have not received specific voting

instructions from beneficial owners Thus if you hold your shares in street name and you do not

instruct your broker or bank how to vote in the election of directors no votes will be cast on your

behalf in the election of directors

Discretionaiy items The ratification of the appointment of our independent registered public

accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31 2010 is discretionary item Brokers

banks and other nominees that do not receive voting instructions from beneficial owners may

vote on this proposal at their discretion

Can change my mind after have voted

You may revoke your proxy that is cancel it and change your vote at any time prior to the Annual

Meeting by

Completing signing and returning another proxy card that is dated after the date of your earlier

proxy card Only the latest dated proxy card will be counted

Sending written notice to Canos Corporate Secretary that you are revoking your proxy Such



notice must be received prior to the Annual Meeting

Attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person

If you do not properly revoke your proxy the previously submitted properly executed proxy will be

voted as you specified in your earlier proxy

What is the effect of signing and returning myproxy card

When you sign and return the proxy card you appoint James Latimer III and Michael Ricketts

or either of them as your representatives at the Annual Meeting Messrs Latimer and Ricketts will vote

your shares at the Annual Meeting as you have instructed them on your proxy card In this way your shares

will be voted whether or not you attend the Annual Meeting Even if you plan to attend the Annual Meeting

we encourage you to vote in advance of the Annual Meeting just in case your plans change Subject to the

limitations set forth above you may vote in person at the Annual Meeting even if you have already sent in

your proxy card

If you sign and return your proxy card but do not indicate on the proxy card how you want your
votes cast Messrs Latimer and Ricketts will vote your shares FOR all of the nominees for director and

FOR each of the items on the accompanying notice of meeting

How will votes be counted

We will appoint one or more inspectors of election to act at the Annual Meeting and to make
written report on the voting Prior to the Annual Meeting the inspectors will sign an oath to perform their

duties in an impartial manner and to the best of their abilities The inspectors will ascertain the number of

shares outstanding and the voting power of each of the shares determine the shares represented at the

Annual Meeting and the validity of proxies and ballots count all votes and ballots and perform certain other

duties as required by law The inspectors will tabulate the number of votes cast for or withheld with

respect to each nominee for director ii for against or abstaining with respect to the ratification of Hem

Associates LLP as Canos independent registered public accounting firm and iii for each other matter as

may properly come before the Annual Meeting or any adjournment thereof

How many votes are needed to hold the Annual Meeting and properly conduct business

In order to hold the Annual Meeting and properly conduct business quorum must be present

quorum is the presence at the Annual Meeting in person or by proxy of majority of the voting shares

common stock and Series Convertible Preferred Stock together as single class with the Series

Convertible Preferred Stock voting on an as-converted basis with the common stock issued outstanding
and entitled to vote as of March 22 2011 the record date for the Annual Meeting Proxies that are voted

FOR ALL WITHHOLD ALL FOR ALL EXCEPT FOR or AGAINST on matter are treated as being

present at the Annual Meeting for purposes of establishing quorum and are also treated as shares

represented and voting at the Annual Meeting with respect to such matter

Abstentions are counted for purposes of determining the presence or absence of quorum for the

transaction of business Additionally shares held by broker bank or other nominee for which the nominee
has not received voting instructions from the record holder and does not have discretionary authority to vote

the shares on certain proposals which are considered broker non-votes with respect to such proposals
will be treated as shares present for quorum purposes

What vote is required to approve each proposal discussed in this proxy statement and how are my
votes counted

Election of Directors plurality of the votes of the shares represented at the Annual Meeting in

person or by proxy and entitled to vote on the election of directors is required for the election of directors

This means that the three director nominees receiving the highest number of FOR votes will be elected to

our Board In the vote on the election of director nominees identified in this proxy statement you may vote



FOR ALL director nominees

WITHHOLD ALL director nominees or

FOR ALL EXCEPT any of the director nominees

Votes marked WITHHOLD ALL and FOR ALL EXCEPT will be counted for purposes of

determining the presence or absence of quorum but have no effect on the outcome of election of

directors

Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm The affirmative

vote of the holders of majority of the voting shares represented at the Annual Meeting in person or by

proxy and entitled to vote on this proposal is required for approval In the vote to ratify the appointment of

Hem Associates LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending

June 30 2011 you may vote

FOR

AGAINST or

ABSTAIN

Votes marked ABSTAIN will be counted for purposes of determining the presence or absence of

quorum and will have the same effect as vote AGAINST the proposal Broker non-votes are not

considered to be votes cast and entitled to vote and have the effect of reducing the total number of

affirmative votes required to achieve majority vote by reducing the total number of shares from which

majority is calculated The ratification of the appointment of Hem Associates LLP as our independent

registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending June 30 2011 is considered discretionary item

under the regulations promulgated by the New York Stock Exchange and approved by the SEC so we do

not anticipate that any broker non-votes will be recorded

Do the directors attend the Annual Meeting

It is our policy that all directors attend our annual meetings and all directors subject to illness or an

unavoidable schedule conflict are expected to attend the Annual Meeting Last year we did not have an

annual meeting however all of our directors at such time attended our previous annual meeting

How many shares can be voted at the Annual Meeting

As of the record date there were 45354915 shares of common stock outstanding and 23849

shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock outstanding convertible into 5059603 shares of common

stock for total aggregate number of voting shares of 50414518 Each outstanding share of common

stock outstanding or into which the Series Preferred Stock may be converted entitles the holder to one

vote on all matters covered in this proxy statement

Who pays for the solicitation of proxies

Cano will pay the cost of soliciting proxies and will reimburse brokerage firms and other custodians

nominees and fiduciaries for their reasonable out-of-pocket expenses for sending proxy materials to

stockholders and obtaining their votes Cano has retained King Co Inc to distribute broker search

cards and to distribute this proxy statement the attached form of proxy card for fee of $7500

Additionally we may use our officers and employees to solicit proxies in person or by telephone facsimile

electronic media or similar means any officers or employees soliciting proxies will not receive any extra

compensation for their efforts

May propose actions for consideration at the next annual meeting of stockholders or nominate

individuals to serve as directors



You may submit proposals for consideration at future stockholder meetings including director

nominations Please see Stockholder Proposals for more details

What is householding and how does it affect me

The SEC has implemented rules regarding the delivery of proxy materials to households This

method of delivery often referred to as householding permits us to send single annual report and/or

single proxy statement to any household at which two or more different stockholders reside where we
believe the stockholders are members of the same family or otherwise share the same address or where
one stockholder has multiple accounts In each case the stockholders must consent to the householding

process Under the householding procedure each stockholder continues to receive separate notice of

any meeting of stockholders and proxy card Householding reduces the volume of duplicate information our

stockholders receive and reduces our expenses We may institute householding in the future and will notify

our registered stockholders who will be affected by householding at that time

Many brokers banks and other holders of record have instituted householding If you or your family

has one or more street name accounts underwhich you beneficially own our common stock you may have

received householding information from your broker bank or other holder of record in the past Please

contact the holder of record directly if you have questions require additional copies of this proxy statement

or our 2010 annual report to stockholders or wish to revoke your decision to household and thereby receive

multiple copies You should also contact the holder of record if you wish to institute householding These
options are available to you at any time

What should do if have questions about the Annual Meeting or the proxy

If you have questions about the Annual Meeting or your proxy please contact James Latimer Ill

Chief Executive Officer 6500 North Belt Line Road Suite 200 Irving Texas 75063 phone
number 1-214-687-0030

PROPOSAL ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

General

Canos Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws provide that at each annual meeting of stockholders
the directors be elected by plurality vote cumulative voting is not permitted for term of one year and

such directors shall hold office until their successors are elected and qualified

All of the existing directors are standing for election to the Board of Directors were recommended
for nomination by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and were approved for

nomination by the Board of Directors Each nominee has consented to being named as nominee and to

serve if elected While it is not expected that any of the nominees will be unable to qualify or accept office

if for any reason one or more are unable to do so the proxies will be voted for substitute nominees selected

by our Board of Directors

INFORMATION WITH RESPECT TO NOMINEES

The following sets forth certain information with respect to director nominees

Certain information with respect to director nominees for election at the meeting is set forth below
including their names ages brief description of their recent business experience including present

occupations and employment certain directorships that each person holds and the year in which each

person became director All director nominees currently serve as directors

The Board believes that it is necessary for each of Canos directors to possess many qualities and
skills When searching for new candidates the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

considers the evolving needs of the Board and searches for candidates that fill any current or anticipated

future gap The Board also believes that all directors must possess considerable amount of business

management such as experience as chief executive or chief financial officer and educational experience



The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee first considers candidates management

experience and then considers issues of judgment background stature conflicts of interest integrity

ethics and commitment to the goal of maximizing stockholder value when considering director candidates

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee also focuses on issues of diversity such as

diversity of gender race and national origin education professional experience and differences in

viewpoints and skills The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee does not have formal policy

with respect to diversity however the Board and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

believe that it is essential that the Board members represent diverse viewpoints In considering candidates

for the Board the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee considers the entirety of each

candidates credentials in the context of these standards With respect to the nomination of continuing

directors for re-election the individuals contributions to the Board are also considered

All of our directors bring to our Board wealth of executive leadership experience derived from their

service as executives They also all bring extensive board experience Certain individual qualifications and

skills of our directors that contribute to the Boards effectiveness as whole are described below

Nominees for Director

James Latimer III Chief Executive Officer and Director Effective February 10 2011 Mr Latimer was

age 65 appointed Chief Executive Officer and Director In addition to serving as Managing

Director of Blackhill Partners LLC Mr Latimer has headed Explore

Horizons Incorporated privately held exploration and production company based

in Dallas Texas since 1993 Previously Mr Latimer was co-head of the regional

office of what is now Prudential Financial Inc He was director of Prize Energy and

its audit committee chairman from October 2000 until its acquisition by Magnum

Hunter Resources in March 2002 and he continued as director and the audit

committee chairman of Mangum Hunter until October 2004 In addition

Mr Latimers prior experience includes senior executive positions with several

private energy companies consulting with the firm of McKinsey Co and service as

an officer in the United States Army Signal Corps He has received the Chartered

Financial Analyst and Certified Public Accountant designations Mr Latimer

previously served on the board of directors of Energy Partners Ltd and currently

serves as member of the board of directors of Enron Creditors Recovery Corp and

NGP Capital Resources Company

Donald Niemiec Chairman of the Board of Directors Mr Niemiec was appointed to our Board of

age 64 Directors on March 2007 and on February 10 2011 he was appointed Chairman

of the Board of Directors From 1982 to 2000 Mr Niemiec was employed in various

capacities by Union Pacific Resources Group Inc including President of Union

Pacific Fuels Inc and Vice President Marketing Corporate Development From

2000 to the present he has served as President of WR Energy LLC strategic

consulting company for the energy industry

NI Garrett Smith Director Mr Smith was elected to our Board of Directors at our annual meeting of

age 49 Stockholders on January 2009 Mr Smith founded the Spinnerhawk Companies

and certain affiliates which make private investments in the energy real estate and

health care industries in February 2005 Before forming Spinnerhawk Mr Smith

served as member of the Investment Committee at BP Capital private

investment firm that focuses on investments in the energy sectors from December

2001 to December 2004 He was also the portfolio manager of the BP Capital Energy

Equity Fund which he co-founded with Boone Pickens in 2000 Previously Mr

Smith was Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President of Pioneer Natural

Resources Mr Smith currently serves as member of the board of directors of The

Hallwood Group Incorporated and Pacific Energy Resources Limited

The Board of Directors recommends vote FOR the election of the foregoing nominees

as the Board of Directors of Cano



Vote Required

The foregoing three nominees shall be elected to Canos Board of Directors by plurality of the

shares of Canos common stock and Canos Series Convertible Preferred Stock voting on an as

converted basis with the common stock present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to be voted

at the meeting

PROPOSAL RATIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has appointed Hem Associates LLP as the

independent registered public accounting firm to audit Canos financial statements for the fiscal year ending

June 30 2011 Fiscal 2011 Hem Associates LLP has served as our independent registered public

accounting firm since 2004 and has provided certain tax and other audit-related services during that time

Representatives of Hem Associates LLP are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting to

respond to appropriate questions from stockholders and will be given the opportunity to make statement if

they desire to do so

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors recommends vote FOR the ratification

of the appointment of Hem Associates LLP as Canos independent registered public accounting
firm for Fiscal 2011

Vote Required

Ratification of the appointment of Hem Associates LLP as Canos independent registered public

accounting firm for Fiscal 2011 requires the affirmative vote of majority of the voting shares present in

person or by proxy at the Annual Meeting and entitled to vote If the appointment is not ratified the Audit

Committee will consider whether it should select another independent registered public accounting firm

INFORMATION REGARDING THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ITS COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors oversees Canos business and affairs exercises all corporate powers and

establishes broad corporate policies

Meetings

The Board of Directors met 15 times during the fiscal year ended June 30 2010 Fiscal 2010
During that period all incumbent directors attended at least 75% of the board meetings held during the

period in which they were director and at least 75% of the meetings of the committees of which they were

members during the period in which they were member of the committee The Board of Directors has

three standing committees Audit Compensation and Nominating and Corporate Governance

Director Independence

The Board of Directors has determined that Messrs Niemiec and Smith have met the

independence requirements of the NYSE Amex formerly known as the American Stock Exchange and

Rule 1OA-3b1ii of the Exchange Act The Board of Directors has determined that Messrs Gaudin
Powell and Wehlmann who were directors during Fiscal 2010 but are no longer members of Canos Board

of Directors met the independence requirements of the NYSE Amex and Rule 1OA-3b1ii of the

Exchange Act during Fiscal 2010 and Mr Pully who was director during Fiscal 2010 but is no longer

member of Canos Board of Directors met the independence requirements of the NYSE Amex during Fiscal

2010 Further no family relationships exist between any of the directors or executive officers There are no

members of the Audit Committee Compensation Committee and Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee that are not independent



Board Leadership Structure

We separate the roles of Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board in recognition of the

differences between the two roles Our Chief Executive Officer is responsible for setting the strategic

direction for the Company and the day-to-day leadership and performance of the Company while the

Chairman of the Board provides guidance to the Chief Executive Officer sets the agenda for Board

meetings and presides over meetings of the Board Our Chairman of the Board is not an employee of the

Company

Risk Management

The Board has an active role as whole and also at the committee level in overseeing

management of the Companys risks The Board regularly reviews information regarding the Companys

credit liquidity and operations as well as the risks associated with each The Compensation Committee

manages risks associated with executive compensation The Audit Committee oversees management of

financial risks The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee manages risks associated with the

independence of the Board of Directors and potential conflicts of interest While each committee is

responsible for evaluating certain risks and overseeing the management of such risks the entire Board is

regularly informed through committee reports about such risks

Committees

The Audit Committee is composed of Messrs Niemiec and Smith Mr Smith has been the

Chairman of the Audit Committee since September 29 2010 The Audit Committee held meetings during

Fiscal 2010 No member of the Audit Committee may be an officer of Cano The Board of Directors has

determined that each of the Audit Committee members is an independent director as required by the rules

of the NYSE Amex and Rule IOA-3b1ii of the Exchange Act The principal responsibilities of the

Committee are described in the Audit Committee Charter The Audit Committee retains the firm of

independent public accountants that annually audits our books and records The Audit Committee reviews

the scope and results of the audit with the independent public accountants as well as our accounting

procedures internal controls accounting and financial reporting policies and practices and makes reports

and recommendations to the Board of Directors as it deems appropriate The Audit Committee also

conducts appropriate review and oversight over related party transactions The Board of Directors has

determined that Garrett Smith the Audit Committee Chairman is the Audit Committee financial expert

copy of the Audit Committee Charter which was initially adopted on March 22 2005 and amended on

February 28 2011 can be found on Canos website www.canopetro.com or may be obtained upon written

request from Michael Ricketts 6500 North Belt Line Road Suite 200 Irving Texas 75063 Information

contained on or connected to Canos website is not incorporated by reference into this proxy statement and

should not be considered part of this proxy statement or any other filing that Cano files with the Securities

and Exchange Commission the SEC

The Compensation Committee is composed of Messrs Niemiec and Smith Mr Niemiec has been

the Chairman of the Compensation Committee since May 17 2007 The Compensation Committee held

meetings during Fiscal 2010 Each of the Compensation Committee members is an independent director as

required by the rules of the NYSE Amex an outside director as defined under Section 162m of the Code

and non-employee director as defined under Section 16b-3 of the Exchange Act The Compensation

Committee is responsible for reviewing and making recommendations to all the members of the Board of

Directors that qualify as independent directors under the rules of the NYSE Amex outside directors under

Section 162m of the Code and non-employee directors as defined under Section 16b-3 of the Exchange

Act the Independent Board with respect to the base salary incentive compensation deferred

compensation stock options performance units and other equity based awards for the Chief Executive

Officer and all other executive officers copy of the Compensation Committee Charter which was initially

adopted on August 11 2006 and amended on October 20 2008 and February 28 2011 can be found on

Canos website www.canopetro.com or may be obtained upon written request from Michael Ricketts

6500 North Belt Line Road Suite 200 Irving Texas 75063 Information contained on or connected to

Canos website is not incorporated by reference into this proxy statement and should not be considered

part of this proxy statement or any other filing that Cano files with the SEC



The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is composed of Messrs Niemiec and

Smith Mr Niemiec has been the Chairman of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee since

September 29 2010 The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee held meeting during Fiscal

2010 Each of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee members is an independent director

as required by the rules of the NYSE Amex The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is

responsible for overseeing matters of corporate governance including the evaluation of the performance

and practices of the Board of Directors This committee is also responsible for the search screening and the

selection process for new candidates for director and then for making recommendations to the Board of

Directors regarding nominees The Board of Directors has adopted Nominating and Corporate

Governance Charter and it is the policy of the Compensation and Nominating Committee to consider

properly submitted nominations for candidates for membership on the Board The Nominating and

Corporate Governance Committee has established criteria regarding the traits abilities and experience
which Board of Directors nominees must possess to be nominated to the Board of Directors including

candidates depth of experience at the policy-making level in business government or

education

the balance of the business interest and experience of the incumbent or nominated directors

candidates availability and willingness to devote adequate time to board duties

the need for any required expertise on the board or one of its committees

candidates character and judgment and ability to make independent analytical probing and

other inquiries

the candidates willingness to exercise independent judgment

the candidates financial independence to ensure such candidate will not be financially

dependent on director compensation and

in the case of an incumbent director such directors past performance on the board

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for reviewing the overall

skills and characteristics required of members of the Board of Directors and reviewing that with the Board

of Directors on an annual basis This committee considers suggestions for nominees for director from many
sources including stockholders Possible candidates who have been suggested by stockholders are

evaluated by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee in the same manner as are other

possible candidates If stockholder wishes to recommend candidate for director the stockholder should

submit written nomination together with appropriate biographical information and the consent of the

proposed nominee to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee do Canos Corporate

Secretary Cano Petroleum Inc 6500 North Belt Line Road Suite 200 Irving Texas 75063 This written

notice must comply with the advance notice Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Charter

informational and other requirements described in the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the NYSE Amex copy of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Charter which was initially adopted on September 16 2005 and amended on February 28 2011 can be

found on Canos website www.canopetro.com or may be obtained upon written request from Michael

Ricketts 6500 North Belt Line Road Suite 200 Irving Texas 75063 Information contained on or

connected to Canos website is not incorporated by reference into this proxy statement and should not be

considered part of this proxy statement or any other filing that Cano files with the SEC

Corporate Governance Matters

The Board of Directors has adopted Code of Ethics and Business Conduct that applies to all

directors officers and employees of Cano copy of which was filed as Exhibit 14.1 to our annual report on

Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended June 30 2004 filed with the SEC on September 23 2004 current

copy of the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct the Bylaws of Cano the Audit Committee Charter the



Compensation Committee Charter and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Charter may

be found on Canos internet website at www.canopetro.com Information contained on or connected to

Canos website is not incorporated by reference into this proxy statement and should not be considered

part of this proxy statement or any other filing that Cano files with the SEC Copies of these documents are

also available without charge to stockholders upon written request to Michael Ricketts 6500 North Belt

Line Road Suite 200 Irving Texas 75063

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Under the Audit Committee Charter Canos management has the primary responsibility for

preparing Canos financial statements and establishing and maintaining an appropriate system of internal

controls related to the financial reporting process The independent registered public accounting firm has

the responsibility to express an opinion on the financial statements based on an audit conducted in

accordance with generally accepted auditing standards The Audit Committee has the responsibility to

monitor and provide oversight of managements responsibility as well as monitor the performance of

Canos auditors including the audit scope and auditor independence The Audit Committee is not providing

any expert or special assurance as to Canos financial statements or any professional certification as to the

independent registered public accounting firms work The Audit Committee has the ultimate authority and

responsibility to select evaluate and appoint Canos independent auditor

In fulfilling its responsibilities the Audit Committee

reviewed and discussed Canos audited financial statements for the year-ended June 30 2010

with management and Hem Associates LLP the independent registered public accounting

firm

discussed with Hem Associates LLP the matters required to be discussed by Statement on

Auditing Standards No 61 as amended by Statement on Auditing Standards No 90

Communication with Audit Committees as then in effect and

received written disclosures and the letter from Hem Associates LLP regarding its

independence as required by applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board regarding the independent accountants communications with the audit

committee concerning independence and the Audit Committee further discussed with Hem

Associates LLP their independence

Based on the Audit Committees review of the audited financial statements and discussions with

management and Hem Associates LLP including meetings held without management present the Audit

Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the audited financial statements be included in the

annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30 2010 for filing with the SEC

Respectfully submitted by the Audit Committee of the Board

Garrett Smith Chairman

Donald Niemiec

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The current executive officers of Cano are

James Latimer Ill Chief Executive Officer since February 2011 and

Michael Ricketts Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since November2010
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James Latimer III age 65 Chief Executive Officer and Director Effective February 10 2011
Mr Latimer was appointed Chief Executive Officer and Director In addition to serving as Managing
Director of Blackhill Partners LLC Mr Latimer has headed Explore Horizons Incorporated privately held

exploration and production company based in Dallas Texas since 1993 Previously Mr Latimer was
co-head of the regional office of what is now Prudential Financial Inc He was director of Prize Energy
and its audit committee chairman from October 2000 until its acquisition by Magnum Hunter Resources in

March 2002 and he continued as director and the audit committee chairman of Mangum Hunter until

October 2004 In addition Mr Latimers prior experience includes senior executive positions with several

private energy companies consulting with the firm of McKinsey Co and service as an officer in the United

States Army Signal Corps Mr Latimer graduated with B.A in Economics from Yale University in 1968

and an M.B.A with Distinction from Harvard University in 1970 He has received the Chartered Financial

Analyst and Certified Public Accountant designations Mr Latimer previously served on the board of

directors of Energy Partners Ltd and currently serves as member of the board of directors of Enron

Creditors Recovery Corp and NGP Capital Resources Company

Michael Ricketts age 52 Senior Vice President and ChiefFinancial Officer On November 11
2010 Mr Ricketts was appointed Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Prior to that

Mr Ricketts served as Chief Financial Officer from May 28 2004 until June 2006 He began serving as

Principal Accounting Officer on May 28 2004 He remains the Principal Accounting Officer Mr Ricketts

served as member of our Board of Directors from June 25 2004 until April 2005 Mr Ricketts is

Certified Public Accountant Prior to joining Cano Mr Ricketts was employed byTNP Enterprises Inc and

its subsidiaries Texas-New Mexico Power Company and First Choice Power for 15 years He served as

Director Treasury from 2003 to 2004 He served as Director Business Development from 2002 until 2003
He was the Controller and Assistant Controller from 1998 until 2002

BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF VOTING SECURITIES

The following table sets forth certain information as of March 22 2011 with respect to the

beneficial ownership of the outstanding common stock and outstanding Series Convertible Preferred

Stock by any beneficial holder of more than five 5% percent of our outstanding common stock or

outstanding Series Convertible Preferred Stock ii each of our named executive officers and directors

and iii our directors and executive officers as group The Series Convertible Preferred Stock votes on

an as converted basis with our outstanding common stock with each of the 23849 shares of Series

Convertible Preferred Stock having stated value of $1000 per share and conversion price of $5.75 plus
P1K dividends and dividends accrued since October 2009 Except as otherwise indicated each of the

stockholders listed below has sole voting and investment power over the shares beneficially owned Unless

known otherwise by us the beneficial ownership information is based on the most recent Form Form
Form Schedule 13D or Schedule 13G

Preferred

common Stock Percentage Stock Percentage

Beneficially of Common Beneficially of Preferred

Name of Beneficial Owner1 Owned2 Stock Owned Stock

James Latimer Ill

Michael Ricketts 334121
Donald Niemiec 277833

Garrett Smith 10244
JeffreyJohnson 1811342 3.6% 1000 4%

Benjamin Daitch 132367
Patrick McKinney 45364
Carlson Capital L.P Asgard Investment Corp

and Clint Carlson 4181598 9.2%
Shaw Laminar Portfolios LLC10 2385540 4.7% 10005 42%

Trapeze Asset Management Inc 11 1056175 2.2% 3135 13%
William Herbert Hunt Trust Estate12 685500 1.4% 2875 12%
Kellogg Capital Group LLC 13 350087 2013 7%
Radcliffe SPC Ltd 14 350087 2013 7%
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nvestcorp nterlachen Multi-Strategy Master Fund

Limited 15 298997 1715 6%

OConnor Global Multi-Strategy Alpha Master

Limited 16 218087 1254 5%

All officers and directors as group persons 62219817 1.4%

Less than 1%

Except as otherwise indicated the address of each beneficial owner is do Cano Petroleum Inc 6500 North Belt Line Road Suite 200 Irving

Texas 75063

Applicable percentage ownership is based on 45354915 shares of common stock outstanding as of March 22 2011 and 23849 shares of

Series Convertible Preferred Stock issued and outstanding as of March 22 2011 plus on an individual basis the right of that individual to

obtain common stock upon exercise stock options or conversion of Series Convertible Preferred Stock within 60 days of March 22 2011 On

March 22 2011 voting together with the common stock the 23849 shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock had the voting equivalent of

5059603 shares of our common stock based on $5.75 conversion price

Includes 40000 shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock options with an exercise price of $5.42 per share

Includes 20833 shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock options with an exercise price of $4.73 per share and 25000 shares

issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock options with an exercise price of $7.25 per share and 25000 shares issuable upon exercise of

outstanding stock options with an exercise price of $0.43 per share

Includes 10244 shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock options with an exercise price of $1.03 per share

Includes 100000 shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock options with an exercise price of $5.42 per share and includes 173913

shares of common stock issuable within 60 days of March 22 2011 upon conversion of 1000 shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock

On or about April 2009 Mr Johnson pledged 108381 of his common shares and all 1000 of his Series Convertible Preferred shares as

collateral for loan to purchase his shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock Mr Johnsons employment with Cano terminated effective

as of February 10 2011 His address is 8916 Estribo Circle Benbrook Texas 76126

Mr Daitchs employment with Cano terminated upon his resignation on November 11 2010 His address is 6419 Riverview Lane Dallas Texas

75248

Includes 50000 shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock options with an exercise price of $5.42 per share Mr McKinneys

employment with Cano terminated upon his resignation effective May 31 2010 His address is 476 Rolling Ridge Drive Suite 300 State

College Pennsylvania 16801

Carlson Capital L.P Carlson Capital Asgard Investment Corp Asgard and Clint Carlson Carlson have the power to vote and direct

the disposition of 133351 shares owned by Black Diamond Offshore Ltd Offshore ii 2601578 shares owned by Double Black Diamond

Offshore Ltd Double Offshore iii 1273158 shares owned by Black Diamond Relative Value Offshore Ltd Relative Value Offshore and

iv 173511 held in managed account Carlson is President of Asgard and Chief Executive Officer of Carlson Capital The principal purpose of

Offshore Double Offshore and Relative Value Offshore is to invest in securities The principal business of Carlson Capital is to serve as the

investment manager to Offshore Double Offshore and Relative Value Offshore and to managed account The principal business of Asgard is

serving as the general partner of Carlson Capital The address for each of the entities is 2100 McKinney Avenue Suite 1800 Dallas Texas

75201

10 Includes 2385540 shares of common stock issuable within 60 days of March 22 2011 upon conversion of 10005 shares of Series

Convertible Preferred Stock including common stock attributable to the P1K dividend and dividends accrued since October 2009 D.E Shaw

Co L.P as investment adviser has voting and investment control over the shares owned by D.E Shaw Laminar Portfolios L.L.C Julius

Gaudio Eric Wepsic Maximilian Stone and Anne Dinning or their designees exercise voting and investment control over the shares on D.E

Shaw Co L.P.s behalf The address for each of the entities is 120 West 45 St 39th Floor New York NY 10036

11 Includes 545218 shares of common stock currently issuable within 60 days of March 22 2011 upon conversion of 3135 shares of Series

Convertible Preferred Stock Trapeze Asset Management Inc an investment adviser registered under the Investment Advisors Act of 1940 as

amended exercises sole investment discretion and voting power over the securities held by certain of its investment advisory clients In its

capacity as an investment adviser Trapeze Asset Management Inc is deemed to have beneficial ownership over 410783 common shares and

2546 preferred shares which are convertible within 60 days of March 22 2011 into 442808 shares of common stock Trapeze Capital Corp

Canadian investment dealer exercises sole investment discretion and voting power over the securities held by certain of its investment advisory

clients In its capacity as an investment adviser Trapeze Capital Corp is deemed to have beneficial ownership over 100174 common shares

and 589 preferred shares which are convertible within 60 days of March 22 2011 into 102410 shares of common stock 1346049 Ontario

Limited controls each of Trapeze Asset Management Inc and Trapeze Capital Corp and exercises sole voting and dispositive power over the

shares held by each of Trapeze Asset Management Inc and Trapeze Capital Corp Randall Abramson controls 1346049 Ontario Limited and

exercises sole voting and dispositive power over the shares held by Trapeze Asset Management Inc and Trapeze Capital Corp Each of

Trapeze Asset Management Inc Trapeze Capital Corp 1346049 Ontario Limited and Randall Abramson disclaims beneficial ownership over

securities owned by the directors and officers of Trapeze Asset Management Inc and Trapeze Capital Corp except to the extent that shares are

held in discretionary investment accounts managed by Trapeze Asset Management Inc or Trapeze Capital Corp Their address is 22 St Clair

Avenue East 18th Floor Toronto ON M4T 253 Canada

12 Includes 685500 shares of common stock issuable within 60 days of March 22 2011 upon conversion of 2875 shares of Series Convertible

Preferred Stock including common stock attributable to the P1K dividend and dividends accrued since January 2011 Gage Pritchard Sr

Trustee has voting and dispositive power with regard to William Herbert Hunt Trust Estate Its address is 1601 Elm St Suite 3400 Dallas

TX 75201

13 Includes 350087 shares of common stock issuable within 60 days of March 22 2011 upon conversion of 2013 shares of Series Convertible

Preferred Stock Nicholas Cappelleri Director of Finance Operations has voting and dispositive power with regard to Kellogg Capital Group

LLC Its address is 55 Broadway 4th Floor New York NY 10006

14 Includes 350087 shares of common stock issuable within 60 days of March 22 2011 upon conversion of 2013 shares of Series Convertible

Preferred Stock Steven Katznelson Manager Director of RGC Management Company LLC the manager of RG Capital Management L.P

has voting and dispositive power with regard to Radcliffe SPC Ltd Its address is Bala Plaza East Suite 501 Bala Cynwyd PA 19004
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15 Includes 298997 shares of common stock issuable within 60 days of March 22 2011 upon conversion of 1254 shares of Series Convertible

Preferred Stock including common stock attributable to the P1K dividend and dividends accrued since January 2011 lnterlachen Capital

Group LP Trustee has voting and dispositive power with regard to lnvestcorp Interlachen Multi-Strategy Master Fund Limited Its address is 800
Nicollet Malt Suite 2500 Minneapolis MN 55402

16 Includes 218087 shares of common stock issuable within 60 days of March 22 2011 upon conversion of 1254 shares of Series Convertible

Preferred Stock OConnor Global Multi-Strategy Alpha Master Limited Trustee has voting and dispositive power with regard to OConnor Global

Multi-Strategy Alpha Master Limited Its address is North Wacker Drive Suite 3200 Chicago Il 60606

17 Includes 121077 shares currently issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock options

COMPENSATION OF NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

2010 and 2009 Summary Compensation Table

The following table summarizes the total compensation awarded to earned by or paid to

Jeffrey Johnson our then-current Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board for the fiscal year
ended June 30 2009 Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal 2010 ii Benjamin Daitch our then-current Senior Vice

President and Chief Financial Officer for Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal 2010 iii Patrick McKinney our

then-current Senior Vice President Engineering and Operations for Fiscal 2009 and through May 31
2010 of Fiscal 2010 and iv Michael Ricketts our then-current Vice President and Chief Accounting
Officer now our Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer for Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal 2010

Non-Equity
Stock Option Incentive Plan All Other

Name and Principal Salary Bonus Awards Awards Compensation Compensation
Position Year $a $b $Xc Total

JeffreyJohnson 2010 561531 382464 13983 39840 997818
Chief Executive Officer

Chairman of the Board 2009 527312 765356 48071 100000 37888 1478627

Benjamin Daitch 2010 250000 256185 7244 513429
Senior Vice President Chiel

Financial Officer 2009 250000 515339 50000 3470 818809

PatrickM McKinney 2010 250961 6991 11103 269055
Senior Vice President

Engineering Operations 2009 250000 649423 24036 50000 3750 977209

MichaelJ Ricketts 2010 187000 74776 5593 11046 278415
Vice President Chief

Accounting Officer 2009 187000 149212 19231 25000 2753 383196

Amounts reported reflect the dollar amount required to be expensed for financial statement reporting purposes in Fiscal

2009 and Fiscal 2010 in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 123 Share Based

Payment and includes awards granted in prior periods Pursuant to SEC rules the amounts shown exclude the impact of

estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions We refer you to the discussion of the assumptions used in

the valuation in Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in our 2010 Annual Report on Form 10-K The

restricted stock was granted under our 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan The ultimate amount realized may be significantly

more or less than the amount shown depending on the price of our stock at the time of vesting or the time of sale of the

restricted stock There were no restricted stock issuances during Fiscal 2010
Amounts reported reflect the dollar amount required to be expensed for financial statement reporting purposes in Fiscal

2010 in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 123 Share Based Payment and includes

awards granted in prior periods Pursuant to SEC rules the amounts shown exclude the impact of estimated forfeitures

related to service-based vesting conditions We refer you to the discussion of the assumptions used in the valuation in Note
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in our 2010 Annual Report on Form 10-K All stock options were granted

under our 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan The ultimate amount realized may be significantly more or less than the amount
shown depending on the price of our stock at the time of exercise There were no issuances of stock options to the Cano

executives during Fiscal 2010

For Mr Johnson All Other Compensation consists of the total of all car allowances lunch/athletic club dues and country

club dues we paid for on behalf of Mr Johnson and all Company 401K contributions and lunch/athletic club dues For

Messrs Daitch McKinney and Ricketts such amount consists of Company 401K contributions and lunch/athletic club

dues

13



Discussion Regarding Summary Compensation Table

Base salary paid and the amount of cash bonuses/non-equity incentive plan compensation paid

represented from 49% to 93% of the executive officers total compensation as represented in the Summary

Compensation Table with the percentages being as follows Mr Johnson 56% Mr Daitch 49% Mr

McKinney 93% and Mr Ricketts 67%

During Fiscal 2010 we had the following employment agreements in place with our named

executive officers

Jeffrey Johnson We had an employment agreement with Mr Johnson through May 31 2011

pursuant to which he received annual salary of $445000 beginning on January 2006 and bonus to be

determined at the discretion of the Board of Directors of up to Mr Johnsons entire annual base salary

Mr Johnson was entitled to receive raises of at least 7% per year effective on January of each year Mr

Johnsons employment agreement terminated effective as of February 10 2011

Benjamin Daitch We had an employment agreement with Mr Daitch through June 23 2011

appointing him as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to the employment

agreement his annual salary was $250000 and he was eligible for bonus to be determined at the

discretion of the Board of Directors of up to his entire annual base salary and/or stock bonuses Mr

Daitchs employment agreement terminated upon his resignation on November 11 2010

Patrick McKinney We had an employment agreement with Mr McKinney through May 31 2011

appointing him as Senior Vice President Engineering and Operations Pursuant to the employment

agreement his annual salary was $250000 and he was eligible for bonus to be determined at the

discretion of the Board of Directors of up to his entire annual base salary and/or stock bonuses Mr

McKinneys employment agreement terminated upon his resignation effective May 31 2010

Michael Ricketts We had an employment agreement with Mr Ricketts through May 31 2011

appointing him as Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer Pursuant to the employment agreement

his annual salary was $175000 subject to periodic increases at the recommendation of the Chief

Executive Officer and the approval of the Board of Directors and he was eligible for bonus to be

determined at the discretion of the Board of Directors of up to his entire annual base salary and/or stock

bonuses

Pursuant to the employment agreement with Mr Ricketts without incurring any additional liability

we may terminate his employment prior to the termination of his employment term upon his death if due to

illness he shall have been absent or unable to perform his duties for total of 90 days during any 12 month

period or for cause We shall have cause to terminate Mr Ricketts under his employment agreement

upon any one of the following

financial dishonesty including without limitation misappropriation of funds or property or any

attempt by Mr Ricketts to secure any personal profit related to the business or business

opportunities of Cano without the informed written approval of Cano

willful refusal for at least 10 days to comply with reasonable directions of Cano after receipt of

prior written notice from Cano specifying the noncompliance

gross negligence or reckless or willful misconduct in the performance of his duties

failure to perform or continuing neglect in the performance of duties assigned to Mr Ricketts

for at least 10 days after receipt from Cano of prior written notice of such failure or neglect

misconduct which has materially adverse effect upon Canos business or reputation

use of illicit or illegal drugs
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abuse of alcohol or prescription medication

conviction of or plea of nob contendre to any felony or misdemeanor involving moral turpitude

or fraud

continuing material breach of any provision of Mr Ricketts employment agreement for at least

10 days after receipt from Cano of prior written notice of such breach

violation of Canos policies including without limitation Canos policies on equal employment
opportunity and prohibition of unlawful harassment discrimination or retaliation or

violation of the confidentiality or non-competition provisions in Mr Ricketts employment
agreement

See Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control for additional information regarding the

specific financial ramifications for termination of the named executive officers for cause or pursuant to

change in control

Stock Incentive Plan We adopted the 2005 Cano Petroleum Inc Long Term Incentive Plan the
Plan effective as of December 2005 for the purpose of attracting and retaining the services of key

employees key consultants and outside directors of Cano and its subsidiaries and providing such persons
with proprietary interest in Cano through the granting of incentive stock options non-qualified stock

options stock appreciation rights restricted stock restricted stock units performance awards dividend

equivalent rights and other awards An aggregate of 3500000 shares of common stock have been

reserved for issuance under the Plan The Plan is administered by the Board of Directors Any employee
consultant or outside director of Cano or any subsidiary whose judgment initiative and efforts contributed

or may be expected to contribute to the successful performance of Cano or any subsidiary is eligible to

participate in the Plan provided that only employees of Cano or any subsidiary shall be eligible to receive

incentive stock options Awards may be granted at any time and from time to time as the Committee shall

determine and shall be evidenced by an award agreement setting forth the award being granted the total

number of shares of common stock subject to the awards the option price if applicable the award period
the date of grant and such other terms provisions limitations and performance objectives as are

approved by the Board of Directors or appropriate committee but not inconsistent with the Plan As of the

date of this report 681688 shares of our common stock net of forfeitures and options to purchase

1290560 shares of our common stock net of forfeitures have been granted under the Plan

Any dividends that are paid on our common stock are also payable on the restricted stock The
executive officers have the right to vote all shares of restricted stock held by them
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Outstanding Equity Awards at June 30 2010

The following table summarizes the total outstanding equity awards as of June 30 2010 for each

named executive officer The market value of the stock awards was based on the closing price of our

common stock as of June 30 2010 the last trading day of the Fiscal 2010 which was $0.77 per share The

unvested restricted stock grants and stock option awards include the grants of restricted stock and grants of

stock options made in Fiscal 2010 all of which were unvested at June 30 2010

Option Awards Stock Awards

Equity

Incentive

Plan

Equity Awards

Incentive Market or

Number of Number of Number Market Value of Plan Awards Payout

Securities Securities of Shares Shares of Number of Value of

Underlying Underlying of Stock Stock Unearned Unearned

Unexercised Unexercised Option that that Shares that Shares that

Options Options Exercise Option Have not Have not Have not Have not

Price Expiration Vested Vested vested vested

Name Exercisable Unexercisable Date Xb $Xa

Jeffrey Johnson 100000 5.42 1222016 98334 75717

Benjamin Daitch 33334 25667

Patrick McKinney 50000 5.42 0829i2010

Michael Ricketts 40000 5A2 12282016 20000 15400

The market value is based on the June 30 2010 closing price of $0.77 per share

The following table provides the vesting dates as of June 30 2010 for unvested stock awards

Jeffrey Benjamin Patrick Michael

Vesting Date Johnson Daitch McKinney Ricketts

July 2010 45000 10000

May 12 2011 53334 10000

June 23 2011 33334

Total Unvested Stock Awards 98334 33334 20000

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control

Termination without Death Physical or Mental Illness or Cause

Pursuant to the terms of his employment agreement if we terminate Mr Ricketts other than due

to his death physical or mental illness or other than for cause ii assign Mr Ricketts any duties materially

inconsistent with his current position with us or iii assign him title office or status which is inconsistent

with his present title office or status other than promotion we are obligated to pay him in lump sum the

greater of his annual base salary for the remainder of the term of his employment agreement or six

months of his annual base salary plus any accrued and unused vacation days See the definition of

cause set forth in Discussion Regarding Summary Compensation Table and Grants of Plan-Based

Awards Table

Change in Control

During Fiscal 2010 we had employment agreements with the following named executive officers

which gave them additional rights upon change in control of Cano Jeffery Johnson Chief Executive

Officer and President ii Benjamin Daitch Chief Financial Officer iii Patrick McKinney Senior Vice

President of Engineering and Operations and iv Michael Ricketts Vice President and Chief Accounting

Officer If any of those individuals were terminated for any reason within twelve months of change in

control or any such individual were to resign within twelve months of such change in control because his

job title duties or compensation has been reduced or he has been required to relocate to county that does

not abut Tarrant County each would be entitled to lump-sum cash severance payment equal to three
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times his annual salary then in effect and three times the sum of his prior years bonuses subject to certain

limitations and to company medical benefits for himself his spouse and his dependants for up to three

years

Upon such change in control event the benefits payable to Mr Ricketts under the terms of his

employment agreement are $607692 Also Mr Ricketts his spouse and dependents would be entitled to

medical benefits as described above during the succeeding three years estimated at $13200 annually In

addition Mr Ricketts would be entitled to the accelerated vesting of unvested restricted common stock

which was valued at $15400 as of June 30 2010 Messrs Johnson Daitch and McKinney have each

resigned from their positions at Cano as of the date of this proxy statement As such each of their

employment agreements have been terminated and any change in control provisions thereunder have no

effect

change in control shall mean the following

any transaction in which Cano is not the continuing or surviving corporation or pursuant to

which shares of Canos common stock would be converted into cash securities or other

property unless the holders of Canos common stock immediately prior to such transaction

have the same proportionate ownership of common stock of the surviving corporation

immediately after such transaction

any transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of Cano

the stockholders of Cano approve any plan or proposal for the liquidation or dissolution of

Cano

the cessation of control of the board by the individuals who

at the effective date of the agreement were directors or

become directors after the effective date of the agreement and whose election or nomination

for election by Canos stockholders was approved by vote of at least two-thirds of the

directors then in office who were directors at the effective date or whose election or nomination

for election was previously so approved

subject to certain exceptions the acquisition of beneficial ownership of 50% or more of the

voting power of Canos outstanding voting securities by any person or group who beneficially

owned less than 50% of the voting power of Canos outstanding voting securities on the

effective date or

Cano bankruptcy proceeding

The unvested stock options and restricted stock of all employees including the named executive

officers vest immediately prior to the effective date of change-in-control

2010 Director Compensation

Nonqualified
Fees Earned Non-Equity Deferred

or Option Incentive Plan Compensation All Other

Paid in Cash Stock Awards Awards Compensation Earnings Compensation
Name $7 Total

Randall Boyd 28000 28000
Robert Gaudin 38000 38000
Donald Niemiec 89000 89000
William Powell 43000 43000
Steven Pully 81000 4457 85457
M.GarrettSmith 117000 7888 124888
David Wehlmann 36000 36000
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Resigned as director on September 28 2010

Resigned as director on September 29 2010

Resigned as director on September 29 2010

Resigned as director on August 2010

Resigned as director on September 29 2010

Represents the amount of compensation earned and paid in cash during Fiscal 2010 for Board and committee

Amounts reported reflect the dollar amount required to be expensed for financial statement reporting purposes in Fiscal 2010 in accordance with

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 123 Share Based Payment and includes awards granted in priorperiods Pursuant to SEC

rules the amounts shown exclude the impact of estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions We refer you to the discussion of

the assumptions used in the valuation in Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in our 2010 Form 10-K The grant date fair value

of the stock options granted in Fiscal 2010 for each of Messrs Pully and Smith was $12345 The grant date fair value was determined in

accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 123 Share Based Payment and represents the full grant date fair value

for the options granted during Fiscal 2010 to our non-employee directors The stock options granted during Fiscal 2010 were granted under our

2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan The ultimate amount realized may be significantly more or less than the amount shown depending on the price of

our stock at the time of exercise At June 30 2010 our directors had options exercisable into the following number of shares Mr Boyd 125000

shares Mr Niemiec 70833 shares Mr Gaudin 70833 shares Mr Powell 70137 shares Mr Wehlmann 50000 shares Mr Smith

10244 shares and Mr Pully 5788 shares

Each non-employee director receives an annual cash retainer of $30000 Each non-employee

director receives $1000 cash for each Board of Directors meeting and Board of Directors committee

meeting attended The Audit Committee Chairman receives an additional annual cash retainer to

$18000 The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Chairman and Compensation

Committee Chairman each receive an additional annual cash retainer of $10000 During Fiscal 2010 we

appointed an executive committee comprised of Messrs Smith Pully and Niemiec and paid to each

director $80000 $51000 and $50000 respectively

On June 28 2007 we resolved that upon the resignation of any current member of the Board of

Directors who is in good standing on the date of resignation such members unvested stock options shall

be vested and shall have the exercise period extended to 24 months after the date of resignation As of

June 30 2010 former Cano board member Gerald Haddock had outstanding stock options of 125000

Transactions with Related Persons

Pursuant to an agreement dated December 16 2004 as amended we agreed with R.C Boyd

Enterprises Delaware corporation to become the lead sponsor of television production called Honey

Hole Honey Hole Production As part of our sponsorship we provided fishing and outdoor opportunities

for children with cancer children from abusive family situations and children of military veterans We were

entitled to receive two thirty-second commercials during all broadcasts of the Honey Hole Production and

received opening and closing credits on each episode Randall Boyd is the sole shareholder of R.C Boyd

Enterprises and was member of our Board of Directors until September 28 2010 Pursuant to an

agreement dated as of December 2007 as of December 31 2008 we are no longer Honey Hole

Production sponsor For Fiscal 2009 we paid $75000 for sponsorship of the Honey Hole Production

Pursuant to Separation Agreement and General Release with Mr Daitch dated November 11

2010 Mr Daitch resigned from his position as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer effective

November 11 2010 however he continued to be an employee until November 30 2010 Mr Daitch

received severance payment of $125753.42 and relinquished all unvested shares of our restricted stock

previously awarded to him Additionally both parties have mutually released each other from any claims or

causes of action

Related Party Transaction Policy

In addition to the obligations of the directors officers and employees under our Code of Ethics and

Business Conduct available at www.canopetro.com the Board of Directors has adopted written policy

with respect to the review approval or ratific of related party transactions Our policy generally defines

related party transaction as transaction or series of related transactions or any material amendment to

any such transaction of $120000 or more involving Cano and any executive officer of Cano any director or

director nominee of Cano persons owning 5% or more of our outstanding stock at the time of the

transaction any immediate family member of any of the foregoing persons or any entity that is owned or
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controlled by any of the foregoing persons or in which any such person serves as an executive officer or

general partner or together with all of the foregoing persons owns 10% or more of the equity interests

thereof

The policy requires our Audit Committee or if it is not practicable for Cano to have an Audit

Committee meeting the chairman of the Audit Committee to review and approve related party transactions

and any material amendments to such related party transactions In reviewing and approving any related

party transaction or any material amendment thereto the Audit Committee or the chairman if applicable is

to satisfy itself or himself that it or him hasbeen fully informed as to the related partys relationship and

interest and as to the material facts of the proposed related party transaction or the proposed material

amendment to such transaction and ii determine that the related party transaction or material amendment
thereto is fair to the Company At each Audit Committee meeting management shall recommend any
related party transactions and any material amendments thereto if applicable to be entered into by us If

the chairman of the Audit Committee approves the related party transactions or material amendment

thereto the chairman shall present the transactions or amendments to the Audit Committee at its next

meeting for ratification After review the Audit Committee shall approve or disapprove or ratify or not ratify

if applicable such transactions and any material amendments to such transactions

Because our written related party transaction policy was not in place early in the fiscal year ended
June 30 2008 the original Honey Hole Production transaction was not approved in accordance with such

policy However the Audit Committee subsequently ratified the Honey Hole Production transaction in

accordance with the policy

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

Number of

securities

Number of remaining
securities to be Weighted available for

issued upon average future issuance

exercise of exercise price under equity

outstanding of outstanding compensation

options options plans excluding
warrants and warrants and securities reflected

Plan category rights rights in column

Equity compensation plans approved by security

holders 863946 4.24 2056065
Equity compensation plans not approved by security

holders

All Directors 25000 4.13

Individual Director 50000 4.00

Total 893946 4.22 2056065

The 2056065 shares available for future issuance are under the 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan which permits the granting of stock options stock

appreciation rights restricted stock restricted stock units performance awards dividend equivalent rights and other awards

During our March 2005 Board of Directors meeting the directors approved our 2005 Directors Stock Option Plan The purpose of the plan was to

attract retain and compensate highly qualified individuals who are not employees for service as members of the Board of Directors by providing them
with competitive compensation and an ownership interest in our common stock The plan became effective on April 2005 and was terminated by

the Board of Directors in December 2005 except for the grants that had already been made pursuant to such plan At June 30 2010 there were

options outstanding exercisable into 25000 shares under the Directors Stock Option Plan issued to Randall Boyd Each of these options has an
exercise price of $4.13 pershare The granted options vested on April 12006 and expire on April 12015
Mr Haddock former board member agreed to provide certain management and financial consulting services to us In consideration for such

services we granted Mr Haddock options to purchase 50000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $4.00 per share Such options

became exercisable six months from the grant date the Vest Date and expire ten years from the Vest Date which is June 17 2015
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Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our directors and executive officers

and persons who beneficially own more than ten percent of registered class of our equity securities to file

with the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of change in

ownership of our common stock and other equity securities Officers directors and greater than ten percent

stockholders are required by SEC regulations to furnish us with copies of all Section 16a forms they file

To our knowledge the following persons failed to file on timely basis the identified reports required by

Section 16a of the Exchange Act during Fiscal 2010

Transactions not Known failures to

Name and Relationship Number of late reports timely reported file required form

Michael Ricketts Senior Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer Form

Jeffrey Johnson former Chief Executive

Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors Form

Phillip
Feiner former Vice President and

General Counsel Form
Patrick McKinney former Senior Vice

President Engineering and Operations Form

Benjamin Daitch former Senior Vice President

and Chief Financial Officer Form

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

If stockholder intends to present proposal at the annual meeting of stockholders of Cano to be

held in 2012 and desires to have the proposal included in Canos proxy statement and form of proxy for that

meeting the stockholder must deliver the proposal to Canos Corporate Secretary at the principal executive

office of Cano 6500 North Belt Line Road Suite 200 Irving Texas 75063 and such proposal must be

received by November 23 2011

The submission of proposal does not guarantee its inclusion in the proxy statement and is subject

to limitations under the Exchange Act The proposals must be submitted in manner consistent with

applicable law and Canos By-Laws We will only include in the proxy materials those stockholder proposals

that we receive before the deadline and that are proper for stockholder action

Alternatively as more specifically provided for in Canos By-Laws stockholder making

nomination for election to our Board or proposal of business other than proposals to be included in our

proxy statement and proxy as discussed in the previous paragraph for our 2012 annual meeting of

stockholders must deliver proper notice to our CorpPrate Secretary at Cano Petroleum Inc 6500 North

Belt Line Road Suite 200 Irving Texas 75063 not less than 60 and no more than 90 calendar days before

the one year anniversary of the date of this proxy statement As result for stockholder nomination for

election to our Board or proposal of business to be considered at the 2012 annual meeting of stockholders

it must be properly submitted to our Corporate Secretary no earlier than December 23 2011 and no later

than January 22 2012

Pursuant to Rule 14a-4c of the Exchange Act our Board may exercise discretionary voting

authority under proxies solicited by it with respect to any matter properly presented by stockholder at the

2012 annual meeting that the stockholder does not seek to have included in our proxy statement if except

as described in the following sentence the proxy statement discloses the nature of the matter and how our

Board intends to exercise its discretion to vote on such matter unless we are notified of the proposal on or

before January 22 2012 and the stockholder satisfies the other requirements of Rule 4a-4c2 If we first

receive notice of such matter after January 22 2012 and the matter nonetheless is permitted to be

presented at the 2012 annual meeting of stockholders our Board may exercise discretionary voting

authority with respect to any such matter without including any discussion of the matter in the proxy

statement for the 2012 annual meeting of stockholders We reserve the right to reject rule out of order or

take other appropriate action with respect to any proposal that does not comply with the requirements

described above and other applicable requirements
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STOCKHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS WITH DIRECTORS

stockholder may communicate directly with the Board of Directors or committee of the Board of

Directors by writing to Canos Corporate Secretary do Cano Petroleum Inc 6500 North Belt Line Road
Suite 200 Irving Texas 75063 Canos Corporate Secretary will then forward your questions or comments
directly to the Board of Directors unless the communication is frivolous or includes advertising solicitation

for business requests for employment requests for contribution or communication of similar nature

stockholder communication relating to Canos accounting internal accounting controls or auditing will be

referred to the members of the Audit Committee

The Corporate Secretary will send written acknowledgement to stockholder upon receipt of the

communication submitted in accordance with the provisions set forth in this proxy statement unless the

communication is frivolous or includes advertising solicitation for business requests for employment
requests for contribution or communication of similar nature stockholder wishing to contact the

directors may do so anonymously however stockholders are encouraged to provide the name in which

Canos shares of stock are held and the number of such shares held

The following communications to the directors will not be considered stockholder communication

communication from Cano officer or director ii communication from Cano employee or agent
unless submitted solely in such employees or agents capacity as stockholder and iii any stockholder

proposal submitted pursuant to Rule 14a-8 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended

INDEPENDENT REGISTRED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The following table presents fees for professional audit services rendered by Hem Associates

L.P for the audit of Canos consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended June 30 2010
and 2009 and for other services normally provided in connection with statutory filings applicable to those

periods This table also reflects fees for other services

2010 2009

AuditFees1 $541207 524516
Audit-Related Fees2 3873 12652
Tax Fees3 14700
All Other Fees

Total
559780 537168

Includes the audit of our financial statements included in our annual report on Form 10-K reviews of quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q review of registration statements and other services normally provided in connection with statutory filings

Pertains to consultations regarding accounting and auditing matters

Includes tax compliance technical tax advice and tax planning in connection with the preparation of tax forms

We have established policy to pre-approve all audit and permissible non-audit services provided

by our independent auditors These services may include audit services audit-related services tax

services and other services The independent auditor and management are required to periodically report

to the Audit Committee regarding the extent of services provided by the independent auditor in accordance

with this pre-approval The chair of the Audit Committee is also authorized pursuant to delegated authority

to pre-approve services on case-by-case basis and such approvals are communicated to the full Audit

Committee at its next meeting The Audit Committee approved 100% of the services described under the

Audit Related Fees and Tax Fees
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Annual Report to Stockholders

Our 2010 Annual Report to Stockholders is being mailed to stockholders simultaneously with the

mailing of this proxy statement The Annual Report is not part of the proxy solicitation material

Other Business

We do not expect any business to come up for stockholder vote at the meeting other than the

election of directors and the proposals contained in this proxy If however any other matters properly

come before the meeting your proxy card authorizes the persons named as proxies to vote in accordance

with their judgment on such other matters

Additional Information about Cano Petroleum Inc

If you would like to receive information about Cano Petroleum Inc please visit our website at

www.canopetro.com or contact James Latimer III
Chief Executive Officer 6500 North Belt Line Road

Suite 200 Irving Texas 75063 214 687-0030 The information on our website is not part of this proxy

statement

To have information such as our latest quarterly earnings release annual report on Form 10-K or

quarterly reports on Form 10-Q mailed to you please contact investor relations at 214 687-0030

You may read without charge and copy at prescribed rates all or any portion of the proxy

statement or any reports statements or other information in the files at the public reference facilities of the

SECs principal office at Room 1580 100 Street N.E Washington D.C 20549 You can request copies

of these documents upon payment of duplicating fee by writing to the SEC You may call the SEC at

1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the operation of its public reference rooms Our filings will also

be available to you on the Internet web site maintained by the SEC at www.sec.gov

In this proxy statement we state that information and documents are available on our web site

These references are merely intended to suggest where our stockholders may obtain additional information

The materials and other information presented on our web site are not incorporated in and should not

otherwise be considered part of this proxy statement

On behalf of the Board of Directors

/5/ James Latimer III

James Latimer Ill Chief Executive Officer

Irving Texas

March 22 2012

22



CANOPETROLEUM INC

2010 Annual Report



Market Information

Shares of common stock of Cano Petroleum Inc are listed on the NYSE Amex under the trading symbol

CFW The following table sets forth the high and low sales prices per share of common stock for each quarterly

period within the two most recent fiscal years as well as the quarters
ended September 30 2010 and December 31

2010 On March 22 2011 the closing sale price of our common stock on the NYSE Amex was $0.58

Price Range

High Low

Fiscal Year 2011

Second Quarter ended December31 2010 0.55 0.28

First Quarter ended September 30 2010 0.95 0.39

Fiscal Year 2010

Fourth Quarter Ended June 30 2010 1.25 0.66

Third Quarter Ended March 31 2010 1.22 0.76

Second Quarter Ended December 31 2009 1.31 0.79

First Quarter Ended September 30 2009 1.37 0.52

Fiscal Year 2009

Fourth Quarter Ended June 30 2009 1.55 0.40

Third Quarter Ended March 31 2009 0.75 0.24

Second Quarter Ended December 31 2008 2.34 0.22

First Quarter Ended September 30 2008 8.03 2.01

Holders

As of March 22 2011 our shares of common stock were held by approximately 105 stockholders of

record In many instances record stockholder is broker or other entity holding shares in street name for one or

more customers who beneficially own the shares We estimate that as of March 22 2011 there were approximately

7300 beneficial holders who own shares of our common stock in street name

Dividends

We have not declared any dividends to date on our common stock We have no present intention of paying

any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future as we intend to reinvest earnings if any into our

operations Our credit agreements do not permit us to pay dividends on our common stock In addition the terms of

our Series Convertible Preferred Stock Preferred Stock do not permit us to pay dividends on our common

stock without the approval of the holders of majority of the Preferred Stock

For the year ended June 30 2010 the Preferred Stock dividend was $1.8 million of which $1.1 million

were paid-in-kind dividends On August 2010 we entered into Consent and Forbearance Agreements the

Forbearance Agreements with the lenders under our credit agreements that prohibit us from making any indirect

or direct cash payment cash dividend or cash distribution in respect of our shares of Preferred Stock On September

24 2010 our lenders delivered Reservation of Rights Letters subsequently updated on January 2011 specifying

that we failed to timely comply with material terms of the Forbearance Agreements and therefore terminated the

Forbearance Agreements As of March 22 2011 we have not remitted cash dividend payments for the Preferred

Stock of $0.6 million
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PART

Items and Business and Properties

Introduction

Cano Petroleum Inc together with its direct and indirect subsidiaries Cano we us or the Company is an

independent oil and natural gas company Our strategy is to exploit our current undeveloped reserves and acquire where economically

prudent assets suitable for enhanced oil recovery at low cost We intend to convert our proved undeveloped and/or non-proved

reserves into proved producing reserves by applying water gas and/or chemical flooding and other EOR techniques Our assets are

located onshore U.S in Texas New Mexico and Oklahoma

We were organized as corporation under the laws of the State of Delaware in May 2003 as Huron Ventures Inc On
May 28 2004 we merged with Davenport Field Unit Inc an Oklahoma corporation and certain other entities the Davenport

Merger In connection with the Davenport Merger we changed our name to Cano Petroleum Inc Prior to the Davenport Merger we
were inactive with no significant operations

As discussed under Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity
Going Concern on July 20 2010 we terminated our announced merger with Resaca Exploitation Inc Resaca that had been

initiated pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated September 29 2009 On July 26 2010 we announced the engagement
of Canaccord Genuity and Global Hunter Securities to assist our Board in review of strategic alternatives The strategic alternatives

we are considering include the sale of the Company the sale of some or all of our existing oil and gas properties and assets and

potential business combinations Unless we are able to successfully execute one of our strategic alternatives restructure our existing

indebtedness obtain further waivers or forbearance from our existing lenders or otherwise raise new capital it is unlikely that we will

be able to meet our obligations as they become due and to continue as going concern

See the Glossary of Selected Oil and Natural Gas Terms at the end of Items and for the definition of certain terms in

this annual report

Our Properties

Cab Properties The Cato Properties include approximately 20600 net acres across three fields in Chavez and Roosevelt

Counties New Mexico The prime asset is the approximately 15000 acre Cato Field which produces from the historically prolific

San Andres formation which has been successfully waterflooded in the Permian Basin for over 30 years The Cato Properties did not

have full-scale waterflood development prior to our acquisition Proved reserves as of June 30 2010 attributable to the Cato Properties
were 14.8 MMBOE of which 0.9 MMBOE were PDP 0.7 MMBOE were PDNP and 13.2 MMBOE were PUD Net production for

the three months ended June 30 2010 was 237 BOEPD Our working and net revenue interests are 97% and 82% respectively

Panhandle Properties The Panhandle Properties include approximately 20400 acres in Carson Gray and Hutchinson

Counties Texas The Panhandle Properties did not have full-scale waterflood development prior to our acquisition We are

progressing with the execution of our waterflood development plans at the Cockrell Ranch and Harvey Units We have received

approval of the waterflood permits at the Pond Lease and at the Olive-Cooper Lease two of our planned mini-floods Proved reserves

as of June 30 2010 attributable to the Panhandle Properties were 23.4 MMBOE of which 2.4 MMBOE were PDP and 21.0 MMBOE
were PUD Net production for the three months ended June 30 2010 was 546 BOEPD Our working and net revenue interests are

100% and 81% respectively

Desdemona Properties The Desdemona Properties include approximately 10700 acres in mature oil fields in central Texas
These properties were not previously waterflooded and have mineral rights to the Barnett Shale and Duke Sands formations Proved

reserves as of June 30 2010 attributable to the Desdemona Properties were 1.2 MMBOE of which 0.2 MJvIBOE were PDP and 1.0

MMBOE were PDNP Net production for the three months ended June 30 2010 was 69 BOEPD Our working and net revenue

interests are 100% and 83% respectively

Nowata Properties The Nowata Properties include approximately 4600 acres and 220 wells producing from the Bartlesville

Sandstone in Nowata County Oklahoma The Nowata Properties were previously waterflooded Proved reserves as of June 30 2010

attributable to the Nowata Properties were 1.9 MMBOE of which 1.8 MMBOE were PDP and 0.1 MMBOE were PDNP Net

production for the three months ended June 30 2010 was 219 BOEPD Our working and net revenue interests are 100% and 85%
respectively



Davenport Properties The Davenport Properties include approximately 2200 acres and 28 wells in Lincoln County

Oklahoma Proved reserves as of June 30 2010 attributable to the Davenport Properties were 1.2 MMBOE of which 0.7 MMBOE

were PDP and 0.5 MMBOE were PDNP Net production for the three months ended June 30 2010 was 79 BOEPD Our working and

net revenue interests are 100% and 78% respectively

Waterflooding and EOR techniques such as surfactant-polymer chemical injection involve significant capital investment and

extended lead times of generally year or longer from the initial phase of program until production increases Generally surfactant

polymer injection is regarded as more risky as compared to waterflood operations As our capital budget exceeds expected cash from

operations our ability to successfully convert our PUD reserves to PDP reserves will be contingent upon our ability to obtain future

financing Further there are inherent uncertainties associated with the production of oil and natural gas as well as price volatility See

Item lARisk Factors

Our Strategy

Exploit and Develop Existing Properties We believe we have an attractive portfolio of assets to implement our

business plan We intend to add proved reserves to and increase production from our existing properties through the

application of commonly used EOR technologies including water gas and chemical flooding and other techniques

Drill Known Formations Our portfolio is composed of mature fields with proved primary and/or secondary reserves

existing infrastructure and abundant technical information Accordingly our production growth is not dependent on

wildcat exploration drilling of new formations and the high degree of speculation associated with making new

discoveries but the application of commonly used secondary and/or tertiary recovery
methods to increase production and

reserves

Acquire Strategic Assets We seek to acquire low-cost onshore U.S assets with reserves suitable for EOR techniques

We will continue to target acquisitions that meet our engineering and operational standards in financially prudent

manner Due to our current liquidity constraints we are not able to make any acquisitions of oil and gas properties and

related assets or entities owning such assets for the foreseeable future

Proved Reserves

The following table summarizes proved reserves as of June 30 2010 and was prepared according to the rules and regulations

of the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC
Summary of Oil and Gas Reserves as of Fiscal-Year End

Based on Average Fiscal-Year Prices

Reserves

Crude Oil Natural Gas Total

Reserves Category MBbls MMcf MBOE
PROVED
Developed

Cato Properties 1196 2666 1640

Panhandle Properties 1670 4315 2389

Desdemona Properties 548 3754 1174

Nowata Properties 1773 694 1889

Davenport Properties 1157 276 1203

Subtotal 6344 11705 8295

Undeveloped

Cato Properties 12493 4205 13194

Panhandle Properties 14482 39046 20990

Subtotal 26975 43251 34184

TOTAL PROVED 33319 54956 42479

Our proved oil and natural gas reserves as of June 30 2010 have been prepared by Haas Petroleum Engineering

Services Inc our independent petroleum engineers The reserve estimates as of June 30 2010 include the effects of the

SECs final rule Modernization of Oil and Gas Reporting issued in December 2008 This final rule is effective for annual reports on

Form 10-K for years ending on or after December 31 2009



As defined in the SEC rules proved reserves are the estimated quantities of crude oil natural gas and natural gas liquids

which geological and engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years from known reservoirs

under existing economic and operating conditions i.e prices and costs as of the date the estimate is made Prices include

consideration of changes in existing prices provided only by contractual arrangements but not on escalations based upon future

conditions Reservoirs are considered proved if economic productibility is supported by either actual production or conclusive

formation tests The area of reservoir considered proved includes that portion delineated by drilling and defined by gas-oil

and/or oil-water contacts if any and the immediately adjoining portions not yet drilled but which can be reasonably judged as

economically productive on the basis of available geological and engineering data In the absence of information on fluid contacts the

lowest known structural occurrence of hydrocarbons controls the lower proved limit of the reservoir Reserves which can be produced

economically through application of improved recovery techniques such as fluid injections are included in the proved
classification when successful testing by apilot project or the operations of an installed program in the reservoir provides support for

the engineering analysis on which the project or program was based Due to the inherent uncertainties and the limited nature of
reservoir data such estimates are subject to change as additional information becomes available The reserves actually recovered and
the timing of production of these reserves may be substantially different from the original estimate Revisions result primarily from

new information obtained from development drilling production history and from changes in economic factors

We have not reported our reserves to any federal authority or agency other than the SEC pursuant to our filings with the SEC

The prices used to compute the crude oil and natural
gas proved reserves represent the unweighted average first-day-of-the-

month NYMEX crude oil and natural prices for the past 12 fiscal months ended June 30 2010 pursuant to the previously discussed

SECs final rule which we compute to be $75.76 per barrel and $4.10 per MMBtu respectively

See Note 16 to our Consolidated Financial Statements regarding the internal controls we use in our reserves estimation effort

and the qualifications of the technical person primarily responsible for overseeing the preparation and audit of the reserves estimates

Proved Undeveloped Reserves

As of June 30 2010 we had total of 34.2 MMBOE of proved undeveloped reserves which is 4.8 MMBOE decrease as

compared to 39.0 MBOE of proved undeveloped reserves as of June 30 2009

The primary reason for the 4.8 MMBOE decrease are reduced PUD reserves at the Panhandle Properties of 4.4 MMBOE
Our independent petroleum engineers Haas Petroleum Engineering Services Inc Haas utilized the East Schafer Ranch waterflood

as the analogy for assessing the PUD reserves for each lease of the Panhandle Properties The East Shafer Ranch waterflood

experienced secondary recovery of 11% of the original oil in place or OOIP which equated to secondary to primary ratio of 0.35

Haas based solely on its professional experience and engineering judgment determined that for the purpose of reporting the

Panhandle Properties proved reserves they would limit each of the Panhandle Properties waterflood
recovery factors to 0.35

secondary to primary ratio as maximum and not use percentage of OOIP to determine proved reserves In some cases adjustments

were made since the by lease production history appeared to have allocation issues Haas decision to limit proved reserve recovery
based upon 0.35 secondary to primary ratio resulted in proved reserve decrease of 3.1 MMBOE Further Haas looked at the

delayed responses Cano has experienced at its Cockrell Ranch unit along with reservoir conformance and permeability trends

analyzed from core data and decided to limit proved reserves to 0.175 secondary to primary ratio for the Cockrell Ranch and the

adjacent Pond Lease resulting in proved reserve decrease of 1.3 MMBOE Hans determined that the reductions to the combined

companys proved reserves would be validly reclassified as probable reserves as proved reserves indicate 90% likelihood that

production will meet or exceed the booked value while probable reserves require 50% confidence level to be so classified



Production/Operating Revenues

The following table presents sales unit prices and average
unit costs for the years ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008

Years Ended June 30

2010 2009 2008

Operating Revenues 000s 22849 23433 31292

Sales

Oil MBbls 285 308 248

Gas MMcf 426 545 641

MBOE 356 399 355

Average Price

Oil $/Bbl 68.98 62.13 94.06

Gas $/Mcf 7.53 7.28 11.93

$/BOE 64.24 57.93 87.29

Expense per BOE
Lease operating

44.19 46.44 36.68

Production and ad valorem taxes 5.22 5.29 6.00

General and administrative expense net 33.22 48.00 41.87

Depreciation and depletion
13.99 14.20 10.88

Total 96.62 113.93 95.43

Excludes the effect of commodity price risk management activities

Productive Wells and Acreage

The following table shows our gross and net interests in productive oil and natural gas working interest wells as of

September 22 2010 Productive wells include wells currently producing or capable of production

Gross1 Net2

Oil Gas Total Oil Gas Total

1847 88 1935 1837 88 1925

Gross refers to wells in which we have working interest

Net refers to the aggregate of our percentage working interest in
gross

wells before royalties or other payout as

appropriate

We operate all of the gross producing wells presented above As of September 22 2010 we had 18 wells containing multiple

completions

On September 22 2010 we had total acreage of 59545 gross acres and 59085 net acres all of which was considered

developed acreage The definitions of gross acres and net acres conform to how we determine gross
wells and net wells Developed

acreage is assigned to producing wells Undeveloped acreage is acreage under lease permit contract or option that is not in the

spacing unit for producing well including leasehold interests identified for exploitation drilling

Drilling Activity

The following table shows our drilling activities on gross basis for the years ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 We own

100% working interests in all wells drilled

Years Ended June 30

2010 2009 2008

Gross1 Gross1 Gross1

Exploratory

Oil3

Development

Gas2
Oil3 14 62

Abandoned4

Total 18 68



Gross is the number of wells in which we have working interest

Gas means natural
gas wells that are either currently producing or are capable of production

Oilmeans producing oil wells

Abandoned means wells that were dry when drilled or were abandoned without production casing being run

Present Activities

Our present development activities primarily involve implementing waterflood injection at the Panhandle and Cato

Properties and chemical injection at the Nowata Properties These activities are discussed in greater detail at Item Managements
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsOverviewDrilling Capital Development and Operating

Activities Update

Delivery Commitment

At June 30 2010 we had no delivery commitments with our purchasers and currently have no delivery commitments

Title/Mortgages

Our oil and natural gas properties are subject to customary royalty interests liens incident to operating agreements liens for

current taxes and other burdens including other mineral encumbrances and restrictions as well as mortgage liens in accordance with

our credit agreements We do not believe that any of these burdens materially interferes with the use of our properties in the operation
of our business See Note to our Consolidated Financial Statements regarding the mortgages that we have granted under the credit

agreements on all of our oil and natural gas properties

We believe that we have generally satisfactory title to or rights in all of our producing properties When we make

acquisitions we make title investigations but may not receive title opinions of local counsel until we commence drilling operations

We believe that we have satisfactory title to all of our other assets Although title to our properties is subject to encumbrances in

certain cases we believe that none of these burdens will materially detract from the value of our properties or from our interest therein

or will materially interfere with our use of them in the operation of our business

Acquisitions

We pursue and evaluate acquisition opportunities including opportunities to acquire oil and natural gas properties and related

assets or entities owning oil and natural gas properties or related assets and opportunities to engage in mergers consolidations or

other business combinations with entities owning oil and natural gas properties or related assets and at any given time may be in

various stages of evaluating such opportunities Such stages include internal financial and oil and natural gas property analysis

preliminary due diligence the submission of an indication of interest preliminary negotiations and negotiation of letter of intent or

negotiation of definitive agreement Due to our current liquidity constraints it is unlikely that we will make any acquisitions of oil

and gas properties and related assets or entities owning such assets for the foreseeable future

Competition

We face competition from other oil and natural gas companies in all aspects of our business including in the acquisition of

producing properties and oil and natural gas leases and in obtaining goods services and labor Many of our competitors have

substantially greater financial and other resources than we do Factors that affect our ability to acquire producing properties include

available funds available information about the property and our standards established for minimum projected return on investment

Customers

We sell our crude oil and natural gas production to multiple independent purchasers pursuant to contracts generally

terminable by either party upon thirty days prior written notice to the other party During the year ended June 30 2010 10% or more

of our total revenues were attributable to four customers accounting for 33% Valero Marketing Supply Co 22% Coffeyville

Resources Refinery and Marketing LLC 18% Plains Marketing LP and 10% DCP Midstream LP of total operating revenue

respectively On August 2009 we entered into new Gas Purchase Contract the DCP Agreement with DCP Midstream L.P

DCP effective on July 2009 which supersedes the previous gas purchase contract as amended with DCP Previously all of our



Panhandle Properties leases and wells were dedicated to DCP and Eagle Rock Field Services L.P Eagle Rock The new DCP

Agreement dedicates all of our Panhandle Properties leases and wells to DCP Subject to certain conditions the term of the DCP

Agreement runs until April 30 2016 and unless terminated upon 60 days prior notice continues thereafter on year-to-year basis

Pursuant to the terms of the DCP Agreement we will be paid on sliding scale based upon the volume of NGLs and natural gas it

sells per each delivery point We will continue to sell on month-to-month basis natural gas and NGLs in the Texas Panhandle to

Eagle Rock until such time as any given well is added to new delivery points on the DCP pipeline As of June 30 2010 we had

redirected approximately 80% of the natural gas production previously delivered to Eagle Rock to DCP Revenue enhancements

under the DCP Agreement should offset the effect of volumes sold to Eagle Rock

Title to the produced commodities transfers to the purchaser at the time the purchaser collects or receives such commodities

Prices for such production are defined in sales contracts and are readily determinable based on certain publicly available indices The

purchasers of such production have historically made payment for crude oil and natural gas purchases within thirty-five days of the

end of each production month We periodically review the difference between the dates of production and the dates we collect

payment for such production to ensure that receivables from those purchasers are collectible The point of sale for our oil and natural

gas production is at our applicable field gathering systems

In the event that one or more of these significant purchasers ceases doing business with us we believe that there are potential

alternative purchasers with whom we could establish new relationships and that those relationships would result in the replacement of

one or more lost purchasers We would not expect the loss of any single purchaser to have material adverse effect on our operations

However the loss of single purchaser could potentially reduce the competition for our crude oil and natural gas production which

could negatively impact the prices we receive

Governmental Regulation

Our operations are subject to extensive and continually changing regulation affecting the oil and natural gas industry Many

departments and agencies both federal and state are authorized by statute to issue and have issued rules and regulations binding on

the oil and natural gas industry and its individual participants The failure to comply with such rules and regulations can result in

substantial penalties The regulatory burden on the oil and natural gas industry increases our cost of doing business and consequently

affects our profitability We do not believe that we are affected in significantly different manner by these regulations than are our

competitors

The production of crude oil and natural gas is subject to regulation under wide range of state and federal statutes rules

orders and regulations State and federal statutes and regulations require permits for drilling operations drilling bonds and reports

concerning operations Texas Oklahoma and New Mexico the states in which we own and operate properties have regulations

governing conservation matters including provisions for the unitization or pooling of oil and natural gas properties the establishment

of maximum rates of production from oil and natural gas wells the spacing of wells and the plugging and abandonment of wells and

removal of related production equipment Texas Oklahoma and New Mexico also restrict production to the market demand for crude

oil and natural gas These regulations can limit the amount of oil and natural gas we can produce from our wells limit the number of

wells or limit the locations at which we can conduct drilling operations Moreover each state generally imposes production or

severance tax with respect to production and sales of crude oil natural gas and gas liquids within its jurisdiction

Transportation and Sale of Natural Gas

Our natural gas sales were approximately 20% of our total sales during the year
ended June 30 2010 The interstate

transportation and sale for resale of natural gas is subject to federal regulation including transportation rates and various other matters

by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission FERC Federal wellhead price controls on all domestic natural gas were terminated

on January 1993 and none of our natural gas sales prices are currently subject to FERC regulation We cannot predict the impact of

future government regulation on our natural gas operations

Insurance

Our insurance policies currently provide for $1000000 general liability coverage for bodily injury and property damage

including pollution underground resources blow-out and cratering In addition we have $1000000 coverage for our contractual

obligations to our service contractors using their equipment downhole if it is damaged as result of blow-out We have an Owned

Hired and Non-Owned commercial automobile liability limit of $1000000 We also have secured $50000000 umbrella coverage in

excess of the general liability and automobile liability Additionally we have $2000000 policy for control of well redrill and

pollution on drilling wells and $2000000 policy for control of well redrill and pollution on producing wells



Environmental Regulations

Our operations are subject to numerous stringent and complex laws and regulations at the federal state and local levels

governing the discharge of materials into the environment or otherwise relating to human health and environmental protection These

laws and regulations may among other things require acquisition of permit before drilling or development commences restrict the

types quantities and concentrations of various materials that can be released into the environment in connection with development and

production activities and limit or prohibit construction or drilling activities in certain ecologically sensitive and other protected areas

Failure to comply with these laws and regulations or to obtain or comply with permits may result in the assessment of administrative

civil and criminal penalties imposition of remedial requirements and the imposition of injunctions to force future compliance Our

business and prospects could be adversely affected to the extent laws are enacted or other governmental action is taken that prohibits

or restricts our development and production activities or imposes environmental protection requirements that result in increased costs

to us or the oil and natural gas industry in general

We conduct our development and production activities to comply with all applicable environmental regulations permits and

lease conditions and we monitor subcontractors for environmental compliance While we believe our operations conform to those

conditions we remain at risk for inadvertent noncompliance conditions beyond our control and undetected conditions resulting from

activities of prior owners or operators of properties in which we own interests

Occupational Safety Regulation

We are subject to various federal and state laws and regulations intended to promote occupational health and safety Although
all of our wells are drilled by independent subcontractors under our footage or day rate drilling contracts we have adopted

environmental and safety policies and procedures designed to protect the safety of our own supervisory staff and to monitor all

subcontracted operations for compliance with applicable regulatory requirements and lease conditions including environmental and

safety compliance This program includes regular field inspections of our drill sites and producing wells by members of our operations
staff and internal assessments of our compliance procedures We consider the cost of compliance manageable and necessary part of

our business

Federal State or Native American Leases

Our operations on federal state or Native American oil and natural gas leases are subject to numerous restrictions including

nondiscrimination statutes Such operations must be conducted pursuant to certain on-site security regulations and other permits and

authorizations issued by the Bureau of Land Management Minerals Management Service and other agencies

Employees

We and our wholly-owned subsidiaries have 44 employees as of September 22 2010 All of our employees are full-time

employees None of our employees are represented by union We have never experienced an interruption in operations from any
kind of labor dispute and we consider the working relationships among the members of our staff to be generally good

Principal Executive Offices

Our principal executive offices are located at The Burnett Plaza 801 Cherry Street Suite 3200 Fort Worth TX 76102 Our

principal executive offices consist of 24303 square feet and are subject to lease that expires on June 2014 See Note 15 to our

Consolidated Financial Statements regarding our lease payments now and in the future

Internet Address/Availability of Reports

Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to

those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended are made
available free of charge on our website at http//www.canopetro.com as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such

material with or otherwise furnish it to the SEC The information presented on our website is not considered to be part of this filing

or any other filing that we make with the SEC

Glossary of Selected Oil and Natural Gas Terms

Bbl One stock tank barrel or 42 U.S gallons liquid volume used herein in reference to crude oil or other liquid

hydrocarbons



BOE Barrels of oil equivalent BTU equivalent of six thousand cubic feet Mcf of natural gas which is equal to the BTU

equivalent of one barrel of oil

BOEPD BOE per day

BTU British Thermal Unit

BWIPD Barrels of water injected per day

DRY HOLE development or exploratory well found to be incapable of producing either oil or natural gas in sufficient

quantities to justify completion as an oil or natural gas well

ENHANCED OIL RECOVERY or EOR The use of certain methods such as waterflooding or gas injection into

existing wells to increase the recovery from reservoir

EXPLORATORY WELL well drilled to find and produce oil or natural gas in an unproved area to find new reservoir

in field previously found to be productive of oil or natural gas in another reservoir or to extend known reservoir We incur costs

associated with secondary and tertiary techniques that involve drilling and equipping exploratory wells This occurs within reservoirs

for which we already have proved developed reserves recorded from existing primary or secondary development however there are

no proved reserves for subsequent secondary or tertiary activities

FLUID INJECTION Pumping fluid into producing formation to increase or maintain reservoir pressure and thus

production

GROSS ACRES or GROSS WELLS The total number of acres or wells as the case may be in which working or any

type of royalty interest is owned

MBbl One thousand Bbls

MBOE One thousand BOE

Mcf One thousand cubic feet of natural gas

MMBOE One million BOE

MMcf One million cubic feet of natural gas

NET ACRES or NET WELLS The sum of the fractional working or any type of royalty interests owned in
gross acres

or wells as the case may be

PRIMARY RECOVERY The period of production in which oil moves from its reservoir through the wellbore under

naturally occurring reservoir pressure

PRODUCiNG WELL or PRODUCTIVE WELL well that is capable of producing oil or natural gas in economic

quantities

PDP or PROVED DEVELOPED PRODUCING RESERVES The oil and natural gas reserves that can be expected to be

recovered through existing wells with existing equipment and operating methods Additional oil and natural gas expected to be

obtained through the application of fluid injection or other improved recovery techniques for supplementing the natural forces and

mechanisms of primary recovery should be included as proved developed reserves only after testing by pilot project or after the

operation of an installed program has confirmed through production response that increased recovery will be achieved

PDNIP or PROVED DEVELOPED NON-PRODUCING RESERVES The oil and natural gas reserves that can be

expected to be recovered through existing wells with existing equipment and operating methods but are not currently producing

PORE VOLUvIE INJECTION or PVI means the injection of water or surfactants polymers and other additives into the

void space of producing formation The amount of pore volume injection or PVI is the amount of void space of producing

formation that has been displaced with water or surfactants polymers and other additives



PROVED RESERVES The estimated quantities of crude oil natural
gas and natural gas liquids that geological and

engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future
years from known reservoirs under existing

economic and operating conditions

PIJD or PROVED UNDEVELOPED RESERVES The oil and natural gas reserves that are expected to be recovered

from new wells on undrilled acreage or from existing wells where relatively major expenditure is required for recompletion

Reserves on undrilled
acreage are limited to those drilling units offsetting productive units that are reasonably certain of production

when drilled Proved reserves for other undrilled units can be claimed only where it can be demonstrated with certainty that there is

continuity of production from the existing productive formation Under no circumstances should estimates for proved undeveloped

reserves be attributable to any acreage for which an application of fluid injection or other improved recovery techniques is

contemplated unless such techniques have been proved effective by actual tests in the area and in the same reservoir

ROYALTY iNTEREST An interest in an oil and natural gas property entitling the owner to share of oil and natural gas

production free of production costs

SECONDARY RECOVERY The recovery of oil and natural gas through the injection of liquids or gases into the

reservoir supplementing its natural energy Secondary recovery methods are often applied when production slows due to depletion of

the natural pressure

STANDARDIZED MEASURE Under the Standardized Measure future cash flows are estimated by applying year-end

prices adjusted for fixed and determinable changes to the estimated future production of year-end proved reserves Future cash

inflows are reduced by estimated future production and development costs based on period-end costs to determine pretax cash inflows

Future income taxes are computed by applying the statutory tax rate to the excess inflows over companys tax basis in the associated

properties Tax credits net operating loss carryforwards and permanent differences also are considered in the future tax calculation

Future net cash inflows after income taxes are discounted using 10% annual discount rate to arrive at the Standardized Measure

SURFACTANT-POLYMER FLOODING AND ALKALINE-SURFACTANT-POLYMER ASP FLOODING
Enhanced oil recovery techniques that can be employed to recover additional oil over and above primary and secondary recovery
methods Low concentrations of surfactants polymers and other additives that are added to the waterflood operations already in place

to clean stubborn or hard to reach oil from the reservoir

TERTIARY RECOVERY The use of improved recovery methods that not only restores formation pressure but also

improves oil displacement or fluid flow in the reservoir and removes additional oil after secondary recovery

U.S The United States of America

WATERFLOOD1NG secondary recovery operation in which water is injected into the producing formation in order to

maintain reservoir pressure and sweep oil into the producing wells

WORKiNG INTEREST The operating interest not necessarily as operator that gives the owner the right to drill produce

and conduct operating activities on the property and share of production subject to all royalties overriding royalties and other

burdens and to all exploration development and operational costs including all risks in connection therewith

Item 1A Risk Factors

Our business involves high degree of risk Investors should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described below

Each of the following risks may materially and adversely affect our business results of operations and financial condition These risks

may cause the market price of our common stock to decline which may cause you to lose all or part of the money you paid to buy
our common stock

Risks Related to Our Industry

Crude oil and natural gas prices are volatile substantial or sustained decline in prices could adversely affect our financial

positionfinancial results cash flows and access to capitaL

Our revenues and operating results depend primarily upon the prices we receive for the crude oil and natural gas we produce

and sell Prices also affect the amount of cash flow available for capital expenditures and our ability to borrow money or raise

additional capital Historically the markets for crude oil and natural gas have been volatile and they are likely to continue to be

volatile The prices we receive for our crude oil and natural gas are based upon factors that are beyond our control including

worldwide and domestic demands and supplies of oil and natural gas



weather conditions

the price and availability of alternative fuels

the availability of pipeline capacity

the price and level of foreign imports

domestic and foreign governmental regulations and taxes

the ability of the members of the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries to agree to and maintain oil price and

production controls

political instability or armed conflict in oil-producing regions and

the overall economic environment

These factors and the volatility of the energy markets make it extremely difficult to predict future crude oil and natural gas

price movements with any certainty Declines in crude oil and natural gas prices would not only reduce revenue but could reduce the

amount of oil and natural gas that we can produce economically and as result could have material adverse effect on our financial

condition results of operations and reserves

Government regulation may adversely affect our business and results of operations

Oil and natural gas operations are subject to various and numerous federal state and local government regulations which

may be changed from time to time Matters subject to regulation include discharge permits for drilling operations drilling bonds

reports concerning operations spacing of wells injection of substances unitization and pooling of properties and taxation From time

to time regulatory agencies have imposed price controls and limitations on production by restricting the rate of flow of oil and natural

gas wells below actual production capacity in order to conserve supplies of oil and natural gas Certain federal state and local laws

and regulations applicable to the development production handling storage transportation and disposal of oil and natural gas by

products thereof and other substances and materials produced or used in connection with oil and natural gas operations exist for the

purpose of protecting the human health and the environment The transportation and storage of refined products include the risk that

refined products and other hydrocarbons may be suddenly or gradually released into the environment potentially causing substantial

expenditures for response action significant government penalties liability to government agencies and private parties for natural

resources damages personal injury or property damages and significant business interruption We own or lease number of

properties that have been used to store or distribute refined and unrefined products for many years Many of these properties have also

been operated by third parties whose handling disposal or release of hydrocarbons and other wastes were not under our control As

result we may incur substantial expenditures and/or liabilities to third parties or governmental entities which could have material

adverse effect on us

The oil and natural gas industry is capital intensive and we may not be able to raise the capital needed to conduct our operations

as planned or to make strategic acquisitions

The oil and natural gas industry is capital intensive We make substantial capital expenditures for the acquisition of

exploration for and development of crude oil and natural gas reserves Due to our current liquidity constraints it is unlikely that we

will make any acquisitions of oil and gas properties and related assets or entities owning such assets for the foreseeable future

Historically we have financed capital expenditures with cash generated by operations proceeds from bank borrowings and

sales of equity securities Our cash flow from operations and access to capital are subject to number of variables including

our proved reserves

the level of oil and natural
gas we are able to produce from existing wells

the prices at which oil and natural gas are sold and

our ability to acquire locate and produce new reserves

Any one of these variables can materially affect our ability to access the capital markets
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If our revenues decrease as result of lower oil and natural
gas prices operating difficulties declines in reserves or for any

other reason we may have limited ability to obtain the capital necessary to fund future development projects We may from time to

time seek additional financing either in the form of bank borrowings public or private sales of debt or equity securities or other

forms of financing or consider selling non-core assets to raise additional operating capital However we may not be able to obtain

additional financing or sell non-core assets upon terms acceptable to us

Any prolonged substantial reduction in the demandfor oil and gas or distribution problems in meeting this demand could

adversely affect our business

Our success is materially dependent upon the demand for oil and gas The availability of ready market for our oil and gas

production depends on number of factors beyond our control including the demand for and supply of oil and gas the availability of

alternative energy sources the proximity of reserves to and the capacity of oil and
gas gathering systems pipelines or trucking and

terminal facilities We may also have to shut-in some of our wells temporarily due to lack of market or adverse weather conditions

If the demand for oil and gas diminishes our financial results would be negatively impacted

In addition there are limitations related to the methods of transportation for our production Substantially all of our oil and

gas production is transported by pipelines and trucks owned by third parties The inability or unwillingness of these parties to provide

transportation services to us for reasonable fee could result in us having to find transportation alternatives increased transportation

costs or involuntary curtailment of significant portion of our oil and
gas production any of which could have negative impact on

its results of operation and cash flows

Environmental liabilities could adversely affect our financial condition

The oil and gas business is subject to environmental hazards such as oil spills gas
leaks and ruptures and discharges of

petroleum products and hazardous substances and historic disposal activities These environmental hazards could
expose us to

material liabilities for property damages personal injuries or other environmental harm including costs of investigating and

remediating contaminated properties variety of stringent federal state and local laws and regulations govern the environmental

aspects of our business and impose strict requirements for among other things

well drilling or workover operation and abandonment

waste management

land reclamation

financial assurance under the Oil Pollution Act of 1990 and

controlling air water and waste emissions

Any noncompliance with these laws and regulations could subject us to material administrative civil or criminal penalties or

other liabilities Additionally our compliance with these laws may from time to time result in increased costs of production

development or exploration or decreased production and may affect our costs of acquisitions

Our liability for environmental hazards includes those created either by the previous owners of propertiesthat we purchase or

lease or by acquired companies prior to the date we acquire them We maintain insurance against some but not all of the risks

described above Our insurance policies currently provide for $1000000 general liability coverage for bodily injury and property

damage including pollution underground resources blow-out and cratering In addition we have $1000000 coverage for our

contractual obligations to our service contractors using their equipment downhole if it is damaged as result of blow-out We have

an Owned-Hired and Non-Owned Commercial Automobile liability limit of $1000000 We also have secured $50000000
umbrella

coverage in excess of the general liability and automobile liability There is $2000000 policy for control of well redrill

and pollution on drilling wells and $2000000 policy for control of well redrill and pollution on producing wells Our insurance

may not be adequate to cover casualty losses or liabilities Also in the future we may not be able to obtain insurance at premium
levels that justify its purchase

We do not insure against the loss of oil or natural gas reserves as result of operating hazards insure against business

interruption or insure our field production equipment against loss Losses could occur for uninsurable or uninsured risks or in

amounts in excess of existing insurance coverage The occurrence of an event that is not fully covered by insurance could harm our

financial condition and results of operations Additionally pollution and similar environmental risks generally are not fully insurable
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Certain U.S federal income tax deductions currently available with respect to oil and gas exploration and development may be

eliminated as result offuture legislation

President Obamas Proposed Budget of the U.S Government Fiscal Year 2011 includes proposed legislation that would if

enacted into law make significant changes to United States tax laws including the elimination of certain key U.S federal income tax

incentives currently available to oil and natural gas exploration and production companies These changes include but are not limited

to the repeal of the percentage depletion allowance for oil and natural gas properties ii the elimination of current deductions for

intangible drilling and development costs iiithe elimination of the deduction for certain domestic production activities and iv an

extension of the amortization period for certain geological and geophysical expenditures It is unclear whether any such changes will

be enacted or how soon any such changes could become effective The passage of any legislation as result of these proposals or any

other similar changes in U.S federal income tax laws could eliminate certain tax deductions that are currently available with respect to

oil and gas exploration and development and any such change could negatively affect our financial condition and results of

operations

Climate change legislation or regulations restricting emissions of greenhouse gases could result in increased operating costs

and reduced demand for the oil and natural gas that we produce

On December 15 2009 the U.S Environmental Protection Agency EPA officially published its findings that emissions

of carbon dioxide methane and other greenhouse gases GHG present an endangerment to human health and the environment

because emissions of such gases are according to the EPA contributing to warming of the Earths atmosphere and other climatic

changes These findings by the EPA allow the agency to proceed with the adoption and implementation of regulations that would

restrict emissions of greenhouse gases under existing provisions of the federal Clean Air Act In late September 2009 the EPA had

proposed two sets of regulations in anticipation of finalizing its findings that would require reduction in emissions of greenhouse

gases from motor vehicles and that could also lead to the imposition of greenhouse gas emission limitations in Clean Air Act permits

for certain stationary sources In addition on September 22 2009 the EPA issued final rule requiring the reporting of greenhouse

gas emissions from specified large greenhouse gas emission sources in the United States beginning in 2011 for emissions occurring in

2010 In March 2010 the EPA announced proposed rulemaking that would expand its final rule on reporting of GHG emissions to

include owners and operators of onshore oil and natural gas production facilities If the proposed rule is finalized in its current form

reporting of GHG emissions from such facilities would be required on an annual basis beginning in 2012 for emissions occurring in

2011 The adoption and implementation of any regulations imposing reporting obligations on or limiting emissions of greenhouse

gases from our equipment and operations could require us to incur costs to reduce emissions of greenhouse gases associated with our

operations or could adversely affect demand for the oil and natural gas that we produce

Federal and state governments are considering enacting new legislation and promulgating new regulations governing or

restricting the emission of greenhouse gases The EPA has already made findings and issued proposed regulations that could lead to

the imposition of restrictions on greenhouse gas
emissions from motor vehicles and certain stationary sources and that could require us

to establish and report an inventory of greenhouse gas
emissions In addition the U.S Congress has been considering various bills that

would establish an economy-wide cap-and-trade program to reduce U.S emissions of greenhouse gases including carbon dioxide and

methane Such program if enacted could require phased reductions in greenhouse gas emissions over several or many years as

could the issuance of declining number of tradable allowances to sources that emit greenhouse gases into the atmosphere Legislative

and regulatory proposals for restricting greenhouse gas emissions or otherwise addressing climate change could require us to incur

additional operating costs and could adversely affect demand for the oil and natural gas that we sell The potential increase in our

operating costs could include new or increased costs to obtain permits operate and maintain our equipment and facilities install new

emission controls on our equipment and facilities acquire allowances to authorize our greenhouse gas emissions pay taxes related to

our greenhouse gas emissions and administer and manage greenhouse gas emissions program Moreover incentives to conserve

energy or use alternative energy sources could reduce demand for oil and natural gas

Derivatives regulation included in current financial reform legislation could impede our ability to manage business and financial

risks by restricting our use of derivative instruments as hedges againstfluctuating commodity prices

The United States Congress recently adopted the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act which

contains comprehensive financial reform legislation that establishes federal oversight and regulation of the over-the-counter

derivatives market and entities such as the Company that participate in that market The new legislation was signed into law by the

President on July 21 2010 and requires the Commodity Futures Trading Commission the CFTC and the SEC to promulgate

rules and regulations implementing the new legislation within 360 days from the date of enactment The CFTC has also proposed

regulations to set position limits for certain futures and option contracts in the major energy markets although it is not possible at this

time to predict whether or when the CFTC will adopt those rules or include comparable provisions in its rulemaking under the new

legislation The financial reform legislation contains significant derivatives regulation including provisions requiring certain

transactions to be cleared on exchanges and containing requirement to post cash collateral commonly referred to as margin for
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such transactions as well as certain clearing and trade-execution requirements in connection with our derivative activities The Act

provides for potential exception from these clearing and cash collateral requirements for commercial end-users and it includes

number of defined terms that will be used in determining how this exception applies to particular derivative transactions and to the

parties to those transactions However we do not know the definitions that the CFTC will actually promulgate nor how these

definitions will apply to us The financial reform legislation may also require the counterparties to our derivative instruments to spin

off some of their derivatives activities to separate entity which may not be as creditworthy as the current counterparty

Depending on the rules and definitions adopted by the CFTC we could be required to post collateral with our dealer

counterparties for our commodities hedging transactions The new legislation and any new regulations could significantly increase the

cost of derivative cQntracts including through requirements to post collateral which could adversely affect our available liquidity

thereby reducing our ability to use cash for investment or other corporate purposes or would require us to increase our level of debt
materially alter the terms of derivative contracts reduce the availability of derivatives to protect against risks we encounter reduce our

ability to monetize or restructure our existing derivative contracts and increase our exposure to less creditworthy counterparties If

we reduce our use of derivatives as result of the legislation and regulations our results of operations may become more volatile and

our cash flows may be less predictable which could adversely affect our ability to plan for and fund capital expenditures Finally the

legislation was intended in part to reduce the volatility of oil and natural gas prices which some legislators attributed to speculative

trading in derivatives and commodity instruments related to oil and natural gas Our revenues could therefore be adversely affected if

consequence of the legislation and regulations is to lower commodity prices In addition requirement for our counterparties to

post collateral would likely result in additional costs being passed on to us thereby decreasing the effectiveness of our hedges and our

profitability Any of these consequences could have material adverse effect on us our financial condition and our results of

operations

Federal and state legislation and regulatory initiatives relating to hydraulic fracturing could result in increased costs and

additional operating restrictions or delays

Congress is currently considering legislation to amend the federal Safe Drinking Water Act to require the disclosure of

chemicals used by the oil and
gas industry in the hydraulic fracturing process Hydraulic fracturing involves the injection of water

sand and chemicals under pressure into rock formations to stimulate natural gas production Sponsors of bills currently pending before

the Senate and House of Representatives have asserted that chemicals used in the fracturing process could adversely affect drinking

water supplies The proposed legislation would require the reporting and public disclosure of chemicals used in the fracturing process

which could make it easier for third parties opposing the hydraulic fracturing process to initiate legal proceedings based on allegations

that specific chemicals used in the fracturing process could adversely affect groundwater These bills if adopted could establish an

additional level of regulation at the federal level that could lead to operational delays or increased operating costs and could result in

additional regulatory burdens that could make it more difficult to perform hydraulic fracturing and increase our costs of compliance

and doing business In addition in March 2010 the EPA announced its intention to conduct comprehensive research study on the

potential adverse impacts that hydraulic fracturing may have on water quality and public health Thus even if the pending bills are not

adopted the EPA study depending on its results could spur further initiatives to regulate hydraulic fracturing under the SDWA

Risks Related to Our Business

Our auditors have issued going concern audit opinion

Our consolidated financial statements as of June 30 2010 have been prepared on the assumption that we will continue as

going concern Our independent accountants have issued report dated September 22 2010 stating that our significant losses from

operations and net capital deficiency raise substantial doubt as to our ability to continue as going concern Investors in our securities

should review carefully the report of Hem Associates LLP There can be no assurance that we will be able to continue as going

concern

We have no borrowing capacity under our credit agreements and unless we are able to successfully execute one of our strategic

alternatives restructure our existing indebtedness obtain further waivers or forbearance from our existing lenders or otherwise

raise signficant capital it is unlikely that we will be able to meet our obligations as they become due and to continue as going

concern

We have sustained recurring losses and negative cash flows from operations Over the periods presented in the

accompanying financial statements our growth has been funded through combination of equity financings borrowings under our

credit agreements the sale of assets and cash flows from operating activities As of June 30 2010 we had approximately $0.3 million

of cash and cash equivalents available to fund operations See Note to our Consolidated Financial Statements
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On July 20 2010 we terminated our announced merger with Resaca that had been initiated pursuant to an Agreement and

Plan of Merger dated September 29 2009 On July 26 2010 we announced the engagement of Canaccord Genuity and Global Hunter

Securities to assist our Board in review of strategic alternatives with goal of maximizing economic value for our shareholders

The strategic alternatives we are considering include the sale of the Company the sale of some or all of our existing oil and gas

properties and assets and potential business combinations

We currently have limited access to capital On August 2010 we finalized Consent and Forbearance Agreements with the

lenders under our credit agreements that waived covenant compliance issues for the period ended June 30 2010 and potential

covenant compliance issues for the period ending September 30 2010 set certain deadlines for the execution of our strategic

alternatives process and allowed us to sell certain natural gas commodity derivative contracts for cash proceeds of $0.8 million which

was intended to provide Cano sufficient liquidity to complete our strategic alternatives process As discussed in Note to our

Consolidated Financial Statements we currently have no available borrowing capacity under our senior and subordinated credit

agreements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis which contemplates

continuity of operations realization of assets and liquidation of liabilities in the ordinary course of business As result of losses

incurred and our current negative working capital there is no assurance that the carrying amounts of assets will be realized or that

liabilities will be settled for the amounts recorded The ability of the Company to continue as going concern will be dependent upon

the outcome of the strategic alternatives review Unless we are able to successfully execute one of our strategic alternatives

restructure our existing indebtedness obtain further waivers or forbearance from our existing lenders or otherwise raise significant

additional capital it is unlikely that we will be able to meet our obligations as they become due and to continue as going concern

We can provide no assurance that we will be successful in our efforts to execute one of our strategic alternatives restructure our

existing indebtedness obtain further waivers or forbearance from our existing lenders or otherwise raise significant additional capital

We are subject to potential early repayments as well as restrictions pursuant to the terms of our Series Convertible Preferred

Stock which may adversely impact our operations

Pursuant to the terms of our Series Convertible Preferred Stock the Preferred Stock if triggering event occurs the

holders of our Preferred Stock will have the right to require us to redeem their Preferred Stock at price of at least 125% of the $1000

per share stated value of the Preferred Stock plus accrued dividends Triggering events include the following

our common stock is suspended from trading or fails to be listed on the AMEX the New York Stock Exchange

the Nasdaq Global Select Market the Nasdaq Global Market or the Nasdaq Capital Market

we fail to convert and do not cure this failure within 10 business days after the conversion date or give notice of our

intention not to comply with request for conversion

we fail to pay for at least business days any amount when due pursuant to the terms of the Preferred Stock or any

documents related to the sale and registration rights of the Preferred Stock common stock and warrants

we take certain actions or third parties take certain actions with regard to bankruptcy

we default on any indebtedness which default is not waived and the applicable grace period has expired or

we breach any representation warranty covenant or other term or condition of any document relating to the sale and

registration rights relating to the Preferred Stock the common stock and the warrants which to the extent such breach is

curable such breach is not cured within business days

There is no guarantee that we would be able to repay the amounts due under our Preferred Stock upon the occurrence of

triggering event

In addition we cannot issue any preferred stock that is senior or on par
with the Preferred Stock with regard to dividends or

liquidation without the approval of holders of majority of the Preferred Stock
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Ifwefilefor bankruptcy protection holders of our common stock and preferred stock may be severely diluted or eliminated

entirely in connection with bankruptcy filing or restructuring transaction

If we are unable to successfully execute one of our strategic alternatives restructure our existing indebtedness obtain further

waivers or forbearance from our existing lenders or otherwise raise significant additional capital it is unlikely that we will beable to

meet our obligations as they become due and to continue as going concern As result we will likely file for bankruptcy or seek

similar protection Moreover it is possible that our creditors may seek to initiate involuntary bankruptcy proceedings against us or

against one or more of our subsidiaries which would force us to make defensive voluntary filings of our own 1i addition if we
restructure our debt or file for bankruptcy protection it is very likely that our common stock and preferred stock will be severely

diluted if not eliminated entirely

Our limited history makes an evaluation of us and our future and profits are not assureiL

In view of our limited history in the oil and natural gas business you may have difficulty in evaluating us and our business

and prospects Since May 2004 we have acquired rights in oil and natural gas properties and undertaken certain exploitation activities

We are in the early stages of two waterfloods and one ASP project You must consider our business and prospects in light of the risks

expenses and difficulties frequently encountered by companies similar to ourselves Generally for our business plan to succeed we
must successfully undertake the following activities

develop our oil and natural gas properties including the successful application of EOR technologies to the point at

which oil and natural gas are being produced in commercially viable quantities

contract with third parties regarding services necessary to develop our oil and natural gas properties

contract with transporters and purchasers of our oil and natural gas production

maintain access to funds to pursue our capital-intensive business plan

comply with all applicable laws and regulations

implement and successfully execute our business strategy

find and acquire rights in strategic oil and natural gas properties

respond to competitive developments and market changes and

attract retain and motivate qualified personnel

There can be no assurance that we will be successful in undertaking such activities Our failure to successfully undertake

most of the activities described above could materially and adversely affect our business prospects financial condition and results of

operations There can be no assurance that sales of our oil and natural
gas production will be able to sustain profitability in any future

period

We are subject to many restrictions imposed by our lenders under our credit agreements and consent andforbearance agreements

which may adversely impact our future operations

We currently have limited access to capital On August 2010 we finalized Consent and Forbearance Agreements with the

lenders under our credit agreements that waived potential covenant compliance issues for the periods ending June 30 2010 and

September 30 2010 set certain deadlines for the execution of our strategic alternatives process and allowed us to sell certain natural

gas commodity derivative contracts for cash proceeds of $0.8 million which was intended to provide Cano sufficient liquidity to

complete its strategic alternatives process As discussed in Note to our Consolidated Financial Statements we currently have no

available borrowing capacity under our senior and subordinated credit agreements

If we cannot obtain sufficient capital when needed we will not be able to continue with our business strategy

Our business strategy includes developing and acquiring interests in mature oil fields with established primary and/or

secondary reserves that may possess significant remaining upside exploitation potential by implementing various secondary and/or

tertiary EOR techniques As we continue our business plan we may require additional capital to finance acquisitions as well as to
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conduct our EOR operations Due to our current liquidity constraints it is unlikely that we will make any acquisitions of oil and gas

properties and related assets or entities owning such assets for the foreseeable future Additionally in the future we may not be able to

obtain financing in sufficient amounts or on acceptable terms when needed which could adversely affect our operating results and

prospects If we cannot raise the capital required to implement our business strategy we may be required to curtail operations or

develop different strategy which could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations Further any debt financing

must be repaid and redeemable preferred stock must be redeemed regardless of whether or not we generate profits or cash flows from

our business activities

The actual quantities and present value of our proved reserves may be lower than we have estimated

This annual report contains estimates of our proved reserves The process of estimating oil and natural gas reserves is

complex The process involves significant decisions and assumptions in the evaluation of available geological geophysical

engineering and economic data for each reservoir Therefore these estimates are inherently imprecise Actual future production oil

and natural gas prices revenues taxes development expenditures operating expenses and quantities of recoverable oil and natural gas

reserves most likely will vary from these estimates and vary over time Such variations may be significant and could materially affect

the estimated quantities and present value of our proved reserves In addition we may adjust estimates of proved reserves to reflect

production history results of drilling results of secondary and tertiary recovery applications prevailing oil and naturalgas prices and

other factors many of which are beyond our control

Approximately 80% of our total proved reserves as of June 30 2010 consisted of undeveloped reserves and those reserves may not

ultimately be developed orproduced

Approximately 80% of our total proved reserves as of June 30 2010 were undeveloped While we plan to develop and

produce all of our proved reserves these reserves may not ultimately be developed or produced Furthermore not all of our

undeveloped or developed non-producing reserves may be ultimately produced in the time periods we have planned nor at the costs

we have budgeted or at all As of June 30 2010 estimated development costs for our PDNP and PUD reserves were approximately

$7.0 million and $303.5 million respectively through 2019

We may not achieve the produ ction growth we anticipate from our properties or properties we acquire

Our operational strategy is to implement waterflood and EOR techniques upon our existing properties The performance of

waterflood and EOR techniques is often difficult to predict and takes an extended period of time from first investment until actual

production Additionally we may not achieve the anticipated production growth from properties we own or acquire in the future

Acquisitions may prove to be worth less than we paid because of uncertainties in evaluating recoverable reserves and potential

liabilities

Our historical growth has been due in part to acquisitions of exploration and production companies producing properties and

undeveloped leaseholds Successful acquisitions require an assessment of number of factors including estimates of recoverable

reserves exploration potential recovery applicability from waterflood and EOR techniques future oil and natural gas prices operating

costs and potential environmental and other liabilities Such assessments are inexact and their accuracy is inherently uncertain In

connection with our assessments we perform reviews of acquired properties which we believe are generally consistent with industry

practices However such reviews will not reveal all existing or potential problems In addition these reviews may not permit us to

become sufficiently familiar with the properties to fully assess their deficiencies and capabilities Additionally we do not inspect

every well or property Even when we inspect well or property we do not always discover structural subsurface and environmental

problems that may exist or arise We are generally not entitled to contractual indemnification for pre-closing liabilities including

environmental liabilities Normally we acquire interests in properties on an as is basis with limited remedies for breaches of

representations and warranties As result of these factors we may not be able to acquire oil and natural gas properties that contain

economically recoverable reserves

Additionally significant acquisitions can change the nature of our operations and business depending upon the character of

the acquired properties which may have substantially different operating and geological characteristics or be in different geographic

locations than our existing properties It is our current intention to continue focusing on acquiring properties located in onshore United

States To the extent that we acquire properties substantially different from the properties in our primary operating regions or acquire

properties that require different technical expertise we may not be able to realize the economic benefits of these acquisitions
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Exploration and development drilling and the application of waterflooding and EOR techniques may not result in commercially

productive reserves

The new wells we drill or participate in whether undertaken in primary drilling or utilizing waterflood or EOR techniques

may not be productive and we may not recover all or any portion of our investment The engineering data and other technologies we

use do not allow us to know conclusively prior to beginning project that crude oil or natural gas is present in the reservoir or that

those reserves can be produced economically The cost of drilling completing and operating well is often uncertain and cost factors

can adversely affect the economics of project Our efforts will be unprofitable if we drill dry holes or wells that are productive but do

not produce enough reserves to generate an economic return Further our drilling and other operations may be curtailed delayed or

canceled as result of variety of factors including but not limited to

unexpected drilling conditions

title and permitting problems

pressure or irregularities in formations

equipment failures or accidents

volatility in crude oil and natural gas prices

adverse weather conditions and

increases in the costs of or shortages or delays in the availability of chemicals drilling rigs and equipment

Certain of our current development and exploration waterflood or EOR techniques where no proved waterflood or BOR

reserves have previously been recorded activities may not be successful and if unsuccessful this failure could have an adverse effect

on our future results of operations and financial condition While all crude oil and natural gas activities whether developmental or

exploratory involve these risks exploratory activities involve greater risks of failure to find and produce commercial quantities of

crude oil or natural gas

The departure of key management and personnel could adversely affect our ability to run our business

Our future success is dependent on the personal efforts performance and abilities of key management including Jeffrey

Johnson our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Benjamin Daitch Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Michael

Ricketts Vice President and Principal Accounting Officer and Phillip Feiner Vice President Corporate Secretary and General

Counsel All of these individuals are integral parts of our daily operations We have employment agreements with each of them We
do not maintain any key life insurance policies for any of our executive officers or other personnel The loss of

any
officer could

significantly impact our business until adequate replacements can be identified and put in place

As result of our strategic alternatives process we are operating with reduced work force which may affect our ability to

run our business Additionally we may not be able to hire qualified replacements for lost employees in the future

We face strong competition from larger oil and natu ral gas companies

Our competitors include large integrated oil and natural gas companies and numerous independent oil and natural gas

companies individuals and drilling and income programs Many of these competitors are well-established companies with

substantially larger operating staffs and greater capital resources than we have These larger competitors may be able to pay more for

exploratory prospects and productive oil and natural gas properties and may be able to define evaluate bid for and purchase greater

number of properties and prospects than our financial or human resources permit In addition such companies may be able to expend

greater resources on the existing and changing technologies that we believe are and will be increasingly important to attaining

success in the industry

The geographic concentration of our oil and gas reserves may have greater effect on our ability to sell oil and gas compared to

larger more geographically diverse companies and may make us more sensitive to price volatility

All of our oil and
gas reserves are located in Texas New Mexico and Oklahoma Since our reserves are not as diversified

geographically as many of our larger more geographically diverse competitors our business could be more subject to local conditions

than other more diversified companies Any regional events including price fluctuations natural disasters oil and gas processing or
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transportation interruptions and restrictive regulations that increase costs reduce availability of equipment or supplies reduce

demand or limit our production may impact our operations more than if our reserves were more geographically diversified For

example if hurricane strikes certain areas of the Texas Gulf Coast the price received for our natural gas sales may be negatively

impacted due to the temporary closure of natural gas pipelines or natural gas liquids processing plants in the region impacted by the

hurricane

Our business will depend on gathering and transportation facilities owned by others Any limitation in the availability of those

facilities would interfere with our ability to market the oil and natural gas that we produce

The marketability of our crude oil and natural gas production will depend in part on the availability proximity and capacity

of gathering and pipeline systems owned by third parties The amount of crude oil and natural gas that can be produced and sold is

subject to curtailment in certain circumstances such as pipeline interruptions due to scheduled and unscheduled maintenance

excessive pressure physical damage to the gathering or transportation system or lack of contracted capacity on such systems The

curtailments arising from these and similar circumstances may last from few days to several months In many cases we are provided

only with limited if any notice as to when these circumstances will arise and their duration Any significant curtailment in gathering

system or pipeline capacity or significant delay in the construction of necessary gathering and transportation facilities could

adversely affect our business results of operations financial condition and prospects

Our ability to use net operating loss carryovers to offset future taxable income may be limited

Depending on the outcome of our strategic alternatives review as discussed in Note of the Consolidated Financial

Statements our federal income tax net operating loss NOL carryforwards could be subject to the ownership change limitation

provisions of the Internal Revenue Code This will result in limitation on the use of NOL canyforwards to specified amount per

year The Company expects to be able to fully utilize these existing NOL carryforwards in future years However there can be no

certainty that any of our NOL canyforwards will be utilized by us in the future

If the waterflood project at the Cockrell Ranch Unit of the Panhandle Properties is not successful the aggregate reserves of the

Panhandle Properties would be sign flcantly reduced or eliminateL

Cano is currently undertaking waterfiood project at the Cockrell Ranch Unit on 62 injection wells and 71 producing wells

on 1023 developed acres Production has increased from roughly 10 BOEPD to over 100 BOEPD since the initial phase of the project

was started in July 2007 number of performance issues caused by using prior injectors that were open-hole completed has limited

the rate of project response Cano has embarked on an active isolation program to address these issues and retained third-party

engineering firm to perform simulation modeling The modeling results have not been completed as it has been postponed pending

the final results of our strategic alternatives review Once completed it is believed that waterfiood production growth will more

closely track the analog East Schafer Ranch response profile Under the analogous East Schafer Ranch profile the Cockrell Ranch

Unit production would increase from the current levels of 40 BOEPD to approximately 270 BOEPD or roughly BOEPD per

producing well within the next 18 to 24 months after completion The Cockrell Ranch unit contains 301 MBOE of PDP reserves based

on actual performance to date and 1782 MBOE of remaining PUD reserves Should the project response at the Cockrell Ranch not

match the expectations for the PUD reserve profile the reserves for this project area would be significantly reduced or eliminated

Moreover complete failure at the Cockrell Ranch Unit waterflood would impair the PUID reserve calculations for the properties

immediately adjacent to the Cockrell Ranch and could partially impair the remainder of the Panhandle Properties

Derivative activities create risk ofpotentially limiting the ability to realize profits when prices increase

Pursuant to the terms of our credit agreements we are required to maintain our existing commodity derivative contracts to

mitigate the impact of decline in crude oil and natural gas prices These commodity derivative contracts could prevent us from

realizing the full advantage of increases in crude oil or natural gas prices if the NYMEX crude oil and natural gas prices exceed the

contract price ceiling In addition these transactions may expose us to the risk of financial loss if the counterparties to our derivative

contracts fail to perform under the contracts Also increases in crude oil and natural gas prices negatively affect the fair value of our

commodity derivatives contracts recorded on our balance sheet and consequently our reported net income Changes in the recorded

fair value of our derivatives contracts are marked to market through earnings and the decrease in the fair value of these contracts

during any period could result in significant charges to earnings We are currently unable to estimate the effects on earnings in future

periods but the effects could be significant
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Failure to maintain effective internal controls could have material adverse effrct on our operations

We are subject to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act which requires annual management assessments of the

effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting Effective internal controls are necessary for us to produce reliable

financial reports If as result of deficiencies in our internal controls we cannot provide reliable financial reports our business

decision process may be adversely affected our business and operating results could be harmed we may be in violation of our lending

covenants investors could lose confidence in our reported financial information and the price of our stock could decrease as result

During our evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures for the year ended June 30 2010 we concluded that we
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 30 2010 in all material respects based on criteria established

in Internal ControlJntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

COSO

There can be no guarantee that we will not have deficiencies in our disclosure controls and internal controls in the future

Our business involves many operating risks which may result in substantial losses and insurance may be unavailable or

inadequate to protect us against these risks

Our operations are subject to hazards and risks inherent in drilling for producing and transporting oil and natural gas such

as

fires

natural disasters

explosions

pressure forcing oil or natural gas out of the welibore at dangerous velocity coupled with the potential for fire or

explosion

weather

failure of oilfield drilling and service tools

changes in underground pressure in formation that causes the surface to collapse or crater

pipeline ruptures or cement failures

environmental hazards such as natural gas leaks oil spills and discharges of toxic gases and

availability of needed equipment at acceptable prices including steel tubular products

Any of these risks can cause substantial losses resulting from

injury or loss of life

damage to and destrnction of property natural resources and equipment

pollution and other environmental damage

regulatory investigations and penalties

suspension of our operations and

repair and remediation costs
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Part of our business is seasonal in nature which may affect the price of our oil and natural gas sales and severe weather may

adversely impact our ability to deliver oil and natural gas production

Weather conditions affect the demand for and price of oil and natural gas Demand for oil and natural gas is typically higher

during winter months than summer months However warm winters can also lead to downward price trends Therefore our results of

operations may be adversely affected by seasonal conditions Severe weather can cause interruptions to our production and

temporarily shut-in production from our wells

Unfavorable results of litigation could have material adverse impact on our financial statements

We are subject to variety of claims and lawsuits that arise from time to time in the ordinary course of our business

Management currently believes that resolving any of such matters individually or in the aggregate will not have material adverse

impact on our financial position or results of operations The litigation and claims are subject to inherent uncertainties and

managements view of these matters may change in the future There exists the possibility of material adverse impact on our

financial position and the results of operations for the period in which the effect of an unfavorable final outcome becomes probable

and reasonably estimable Please see Legal Proceedings for discussion of our material pending legal proceedings

Currently our lease operating expense per BOE is high in comparison to the oil and natu ral gas industry as whole

Until such time as we achieve significant production growth from our waterfloods our lease operating expense per BOE

should remain higher than companies drilling for primary production These higher operating costs could have an adverse effect on

our results of operations

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Failure to obtain satisfactory result from our strategic alternatives process could adversely affect our common stock price and

our future business and financial results

On July 20 2010 following our termination of the Agreement and Plan of Merger with Resaca we announced the initiation of

strategic alternatives process designed to achieve the best available economic value for our shareholders The strategic alternatives we

are considering include the sale of the Company the sale of some or all of our existing oil and gas properties and assets or potential

business combinations We currently have severe shortage of working capital and funds to pay our liabilities and we currently have

no available borrowing capacity under our senior or subordinated credit agreements We were not in compliance with the interest

coverage ratio and leverage ratio at June 30 2010 On August 2010 we finalized Forbearance Agreements with our lenders that set

certain deadlines for the execution of our strategic alternatives process and allowed us to sell certain natural gas commodity derivative

contracts for $0.8 million The cash proceeds from the sale of the derivative contracts is expected to provide us sufficient liquidity to

complete our strategic alternatives process Our Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on going concern basis

which contemplates continuity of operations realization of assets and liquidation of liabilities in the ordinary course of business As

result of the losses incurred and current negative working capital there is no assurance that the carrying amounts of assets will be

realized or that liabilities will be liquidated or settled for the amounts recorded The ability of Cano to continue as going concern is

dependent upon the strategic alternatives process as previously discussed There can be no assurance that our strategic alternatives

process will adequately resolve issues regarding our liquidity or going concern status

Our historic stock price has been volatile and the future market price for our common stock may continue to be volatile This may

make it dfficu ltfor you to sell our common stock for positive return on your investmenL

The public market for our common stock has historically been very volatile On September 16 2010 our closing price on the

NYSE Amex was $0.75 Any future market price for our shares may continue to be very volatile The stock market in general has

experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that often are unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of

companies Broad market factors and the investing publics negative perception of our business may reduce our stock price regardless

of our operating performance Market fluctuations and volatility as well as general economic market and political conditions could

reduce our stock price As result this may make it difficult or impossible for you to sell our common stock for positive return on

your
investment
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Ifwefail to meet continued listing standards of NYSE Amex our common stock may be delisted which would have material

adverse effect on the price of our common stock

In order for our securities to be eligible for continued listing on NYSE Amex we must remain in compliance with certain

listing standards Among other things these standards require that we remain current in our filings with the SEC and comply with

certain provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 If we were to become noncompliant with NYSE Amexs continued listing

requirements our common stock may be delisted which would have material adverse affect on the price of our common stock This

is also triggering event under our Preferred Stock which could cause the holders of our Preferred Stock to have the right to require

us to redeem their Preferred Stock at price of at least 125% of the $1000 per share stated value of the Preferred Stock plus accrued

dividends

If we are delistedfrom NYSE Amex our common stock may become subject to the penny stock rules of the SEC which would

make transactions in our common stock cumbersome and may reduce the value of an investment in our stock

The SEC has adopted Rule 3a5 1-1 which establishes the definition of penny stock for the purposes relevant to us as any

equity security that is not listed on national securities exchange or registered national securities associations automated quotation

system and has market price of less than $5.00 per share subject to certain exceptions For any transaction involving penny stock

unless exempt Rule 5g-9 requires

that broker or dealer approve persons account for transactions in penny stocks and

the broker or dealer receive from the investor written agreement to the transaction setting forth the identity and

quantity of the penny stock to be purchased

In order to approve persons account for transactions in penny stocks the broker or dealer must

obtain financial information and other information regarding the investment experience and objectives of the person and

make reasonable determination that the transactions in penny stocks are suitable for that person and the person has

sufficient knowledge and experience in financial matters to be capable of evaluating the risks of transactions in penny

stocks

The broker or dealer must also deliver prior to any transaction in penny stock disclosure schedule prescribed by the SEC

relating to the penny stock market which in highlight form

sets forth the basis on which the broker or dealer made the suitability determination and

confirms the broker or dealer received signed written agreement from the investor prior to the transaction

Generally brokers may be less willing to execute transactions in securities subject to the penny stock rules This may make

it more difficult for investors to dispose of our common stock and cause decline in the market value of our stock

Ifsecurities analysts downgrade our stock or cease coverage of us the price of our stock could decline

The trading market for our common stock relies in part on the research and reports that industry or financial analysts publish

about us or our business We do not control the reports these analysts publish about us Furthermore there are many large well-

established publicly-traded companies active in our industry and market which may make it less likely that we will receive

widespread analyst coverage If one or more of the analysts who do cover us downgraded our stock our stock price would likely

decline rapidly If one or more of these analysts cease coverage of our company we could lose visibility in the market which in turn

could cause our stock price to decline

We do not pay dividends on our common stock

We have never paid dividends on our common stock and do not intend to pay cash dividends on the common stock in the

foreseeable future Net income from our operations if any will be used for the development of our business including capital

expenditures and to retire debt Any decisions to pay dividends on the common stock in the future will depend upon our profitability

at the time available cash and other factors Our ability to pay dividends on our common stock is further limited by the terms of our

credit agreements and our Preferred Stock
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Provisions in our corporate governance and loan documents the terms of our Preferred Stock and Delaware law may delay or

prevent an acquisition of Cano which could decrease the value of our common stock

Our certificate of incorporation our Preferred Stock our bylaws our credit agreements and the Delaware General

Corporation Law contain provisions that may discourage other persons from initiating tender offer or takeover attempt that

stockholder might consider to be in the best interest of all stockholders including takeover attempts that might result in premium to

be paid over the market price of our stock

The terms of our Preferred Stock give its holders the right to have their Preferred Stock redeemed upon change of control

In addition the terms of our Preferred Stock do not permit us to enter into certain transactions that would constitute change of

control unless the successor entity assumes all of our obligations relating to the Preferred Stock and the holders of majority of our

Preferred Stock approve such assumption and the successor entity is publicly-traded on the NYSE Amex the New York Stock

Exchange the Nasdaq Global Select Market the Nasdaq Global Market or the Nasdaq Capital Market

In addition subject to the terms of the Preferred Stock we are authorized to issue additional shares of preferred stock

Subject to the terms of the Preferred Stock and our certificate of incorporation our board of directors has total discretion in the

issuance and the determination of the rights and privileges of any shares of preferred stock which might be issued in the future which

rights and privileges may be detrimental to the holders of the common stock It is not possible to state the actual effect of the

authorization and issuance of new series of preferred stock upon the rights of holders of the common stock and other series of

preferred stock unless and until the board of directors determines the attributes of any new series of preferred stock and the specific

rights of its holders These effects might include

restrictions on dividends on common stock and other series of preferred stock if dividends on any new series of preferred

stock have not been paid

dilution of the voting power of common stock and other series of preferred stock to the extent that new series of

preferred stock has voting rights or to the extent that any new series of preferred stock is convertible into common stock

dilution of the equity interest of common stock and other series of preferred stock and

limitation on the right of holders of common stock and other series of preferred stock to share in Canos assets upon

liquidation until satisfaction of any liquidation preference attributable to any new series of preferred stock

The terms of our Preferred Stock and the provisions in our corporate governance documents regarding the granting of

additional preferred stock may deter or render more difficult proposals to acquire control of our company including proposals

stockholder might consider to be in his or her best interest impede or lengthen change in membership of our Board of Directors and

make removal of our management more difficult Furthermore Delaware law imposes some restrictions on mergers and other business

combinations between our company and owners of 15% or more of our common stock These provisions apply even if an acquisition

proposal is considered beneficial by some stockholders and therefore could depress the value of our common stock

The conversion price of our Preferred Stock may be lowered if we issue shares of our common stock at price less than the

existing conversion price which could cause further dilution to our common stockholders

Subject to certain exclusions if we issue common stock at price less than the existing conversion price for our Preferred

Stock the conversion price shall be adjusted downward which would further dilute our common stock holders upon conversion

Our Preferred Stock has voting rights both together with and separate from our common stock which could adversely affect our

common stockholders

The holders of our Preferred Stock vote together with the holders of our common stock on an as-converted basis subject to

limitation on how many votes the Series Convertible Preferred Stock holders may cast if the conversion price falls below $4.79 In

addition approval of holders of majority of the Series Convertible Preferred Stock is required for us to take the following actions

to modify the certificate of incorporation or bylaws in manner adverse to the Preferred Stock

increase or decrease the number of authorized shares of Preferred Stock

create any class of preferred stock that has preference over or is in parity with the Preferred Stock with respect to

dividends or liquidation
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purchase repurchase or redeem any share of common stock

pay dividends or make any other distribution on the common stock or

circumvent right of the Preferred Stock

These voting rights may have an adverse impact on the common stock and the voting power of our common stockholders

Since we are United States real property holding corporation non-U.S investors may be subject to U.S.federal income tax

including withholding ta on gains realized on disposition of our shares and U.S investors selling our shares may be required to

certify as to their status in order to avoid withholding

Since we are United States real property holding corporation non-U.S holder of our common stock will generally be

subject to U.S federal income tax on gains realized on sale or other disposition of our common stock Certain non-U.S holders of

our common stock may be eligible for an exception to the foregoing general rule if our common stock is regularly traded on an

established securities market during the calendar year in which the sale or disposition occurs However we cannot offer any assurance

that our common stock will be so traded in the future

If our common stock is not considered to be regularly traded on an established securities market during the calendar year in

which sale or disposition occurs the buyer or other transferee of our common stock will generally be required to withhold tax at the

rate of 10% of the sales price or other amount realized unless the transferor furnishes an affidavit certifying that it is not foreign

person in the manner and form specified in applicable Treasury regulations

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

See Items and Business and Properties

Item Legal Proceedings

Burnett Case

On March 23 2006 the following lawsuit was filed in the 100th Judicial District Court in Carson County Texas Cause

No 9840 The Tom and Anne Burnett Trust by Anne Burnett Windfohr Windi Phillips Ben Fortson Jr George Beggs III and Ed

Hudson Jr as Co-Trustees Anne Burnett Windfohr and Burnett Ranches Ltd Cano Petroleum Inc W.O Energy of

Nevada Inc Operating Company Ltd and WO Energy Inc The plaintiffs claim that the electrical wiring and equipment of

Cano or certain of its subsidiaries relating to oil and natural gas operations started wildfire that began on March 12 2006 in Carson

County Texas

The plaintiffs allege negligence and gross negligence and ii seek damages including but not limited to damages for

damage to their land and livestock certain expenses related to fighting the fire and certain remedial expenses totaling approximately

$1.7 million to $1.8 million In addition the plaintiffs seek termination of certain oil and natural
gas leases ii reimbursement for

their attorneys fees in the amount of at least $549000 and iiiexemplary damages The plaintiffs also claim that Cano and its

subsidiaries are jointly and severally liable as single business enterprise and/or general partnership or de facto partnership The

owner of the remainder of the mineral estate Texas Christian University intervened in the suit on August 18 2006 joining Plaintiffs

request to terminate certain oil and gas leases On June 21 2007 the judge of the 100th Judicial District Court issued Final Judgment

granting motions for summary judgment in favor of Cano and certain of its subsidiaries on plaintiffs claims for breach of

contract/termination of an oil and gas lease and ii negligence and granting the plaintiffs no-evidence motion for summary

judgment on contributory negligence assumption of risk repudiation and estoppel affirmative defenses asserted by Cano and certain

of its subsidiaries

The Final Judgment was appealed and decision was reached on March 11 2009 as the Court of Appeals for the Tenth

District of Texas in Amarillo affirmed in part and reversed in part the ruling of the 100th Judicial District Court The Court of Appeals

affirmed the trial courts granting of summary judgment in Canos favor for breach of contract/termination of an oil and gas lease

and reversed the trial courts granting of summary judgment in Canos favor on plaintiffs claims of Canos negligence The Court
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of Appeals ordered the case remanded to the 100th Judicial District Court On March 30 2009 the plaintiffs filed motion for

rehearing with the Court of Appeals and requested rehearing on the affirmance of the trial courts holding on the plaintiffs breach of

contract/termination of an oil and gas lease claim On June 30 2009 the Court of Appeals ruled to deny the plaintiffs motion for

rehearing On August 17 2009 we filed an appeal with the Texas Supreme Court to request the reversal of the Court of Appeals ruling

regarding our potential negligence On December 11 2009 the Texas Supreme Court declined to hear Canos appeal Therefore this

case has been remanded to the district court for trial on the negligence claims and the trial date has been set for November 2010

Due to the inherent risk of litigation the ultimate outcome of this case is uncertain and unpredictable At this time Cano

management continues to believe that this lawsuit is without merit and will continue to vigorously defend itself and its subsidiaries

while seeking cost-effective solutions to resolve this lawsuit Based on our knowledge and judgment of the acts as of September 22

2010 we believe our financial statements present fairly the effect of the actual and the anticipated future costs to resolve this matter as

of June 30 2010

There is no remaining insurance coverage for any claims associated with this fire litigation

Securities Litigation against Outside Directors

On October 2008 lawsuit 08 CV 8462 was filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New

York against David Wehlmann Gerald Haddock Randall Boyd Donald Niemiec Robert Gaudin William

Powell III and the underwriters of the June 26 2008 public offering of Cano common stock Secondary Offering alleging

violations of the federal securities laws Messrs Wehlmann Haddock Boyd Niemiec Gaudin and Powell were Cano outside

directors on June 26 2008 At the defendants request the case was transferred to the United States District Court for the Northern

District of Texas

On July 2009 the plaintiffs filed an amended complaint that added as defendants Cano Canos Chief Executive Officer

and Chairman of the Board Jeff Johnson Canos former Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Morris Sam Smith

Canos current Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Ben Daitch Canos Vice President and Principal Accounting

Officer Michael Ricketts and Canos former Senior Vice President of Engineering and Operations Patrick McKinney and dismissed

Gerald Haddock former director of Cano as defendant The amended complaint alleges that the prospectus for the Secondary

Offering contained statements regarding Canos proved reserve amounts and standards that were materially false and overstated

Canos proved reserves The plaintiff is seeking to certif the lawsuit as class action lawsuit and is seeking an unspecified amount of

damages On July 27 2009 the defendants moved to dismiss the lawsuit On December 2009 the U.S District Court for the

Northern District of Texas granted motions to dismiss all claims brought by the plaintiffs On December 18 2009 the plaintiffs filed

notice of appeal with the U.S Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit On April 2010 Cano filed its appellate brief to support its

position On April 19 2010 the plaintiffs filed their response brief On August 2010 the U.S Court of Appeals for the Fifth

Circuit affirmed the dismissal by the U.S District Court for the Northern District of Texas of all claims by the plaintiffs By affirming

the decision of the lower court the U.S Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit agreed that the plaintiffs complaint failed to state

claim upon which relief could be granted and thus found merit in dismissing the lawsuit Due to the inherent risk of litigation the

outcome of this lawsuit is uncertain and unpredictable however Cano its officers and its outside directors intend to continue to

vigorously defend the lawsuit

Cano is cooperating with its directors and officers liability insurance carrier regarding the defense of the lawsuit We believe

that the potential amount of losses resulting from this lawsuit in the future if any will not exceed the policy limits of Canos

directors and officers liability insurance

Other

Occasionally we are involved in other various claims and lawsuits and certain governmental proceedings arising in the

ordinary course of business Our management does not believe that the ultimate resolution of any current matters that are not set forth

above will have material effect on our financial position or results of operations Managements position is supported in part by the

existence of insurance coverage indemnification and escrow accounts None of our directors officers or affiliates owners of record or

beneficial owners of more than five percent of any class of our voting securities or security holder is involved in proceeding adverse

to us or our subsidiaries or has material interest adverse to us or our subsidiaries

Section 7.6 of the Merger Agreement with Resaca provided for the Company and Resaca to share transaction expenses

related to the printing filing and mailing of the registration statement the proxy/prospectus and the solicitation of stockholder

approvals On September 2010 we filed an action against Resaca in the Tarrant County District Court seeking declaratory

judgment to clarify the
scope

and determine the amount of
any expenses

that are reimbursable under Section 7.6 of the Merger

Agreement
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Environmental

To date our expenditures to comply with environmental or safety regulations have not been significant and are not expected

to be significant in the future However new regulations enforcement policies claims for damages or other events could result in

significant future costs

Item Removed and Reserved

PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Market Information

Our shares of common stock are listed on the NYSE Amex under the trading symbol CFW For the years ended June 30
2009 and 2010 the following table sets forth the high and low sales prices per share of common stock for each quarterly period On
September 16 2010 the closing sale price of our common stock on the NYSE Amex was $0.75

Fiscal 2010 Fiscal 2009

High Low High Low

Fiscal Quarter

First Quarter Ended September30 1.37 0.52 8.03 2.01

Second Quarter Ended December 31 1.31 0.79 2.34 0.22

Third Quarter Ended March 31 1.22 0.76 0.75 0.24

Fourth Quarter Ended June 30 1.25 0.66 1.55 0.40

Holders

As of September 16 2010 our shares of common stock were held by approximately 106 stockholders of record In many
instances record stockholder is broker or other entity holding shares in street name for one or more customers who beneficially

own the shares We estimate that as of September 16 2010 there were approximately 7300 beneficial holders who own shares of our

common stock in street name

Dividends

We have not declared any dividends to date on our common stock We have no present intention of paying any cash

dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future as we intend to reinvest earnings if any into our operations Our credit

agreements do not permit us to pay dividends on our common stock In addition the terms of our Preferred Stock do not permit us to

pay dividends on our common stock without the approval of the holders of majority of the Preferred Stock

For the year ended June 30 2010 the Preferred Stock dividend was $1.8 million of which $1.1 million were paid-in-kind

dividends On August 2010 we entered into Consent and Forbearance Agreements with the lenders under our credit agreements that

prohibit us from making any indirect or direct cash payment cash dividend or cash distribution in respect of our shares of Series

Convertible Preferred Stock

During the year ended June 30 2010 there were no equity securities issued pursuant to transactions exempt from registration

requirements under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended that were not disclosed previously in Current Reports on Form 8-K or

Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q
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ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Maximum Number

Total Number of or Approximate

Shares Dollar Value of

Total or Units Shares or Units

Number Average Purchased as that May Yet Be

of Shares Price Paid Part of Publicly Purchased Under

or Units per Share Announced Plans the Plans or

Period Purchasedl or Unit or Programs Programs

April 2010 through

April 30 2010

May 12010 through

May 31 2010 31217 1.06

June 2010 through

June3O2010 8816 1.11

Total 40033 1.07

Shares of our common stock were delivered to us during the fourth quarter of 2010 to satisfy tax withholding obligations by

Jeffrey Johnson Benjamin Daitch Patrick McKinney Michael Ricketts and Phillip Feiner pursuant to the terms of the

Cano Petroleum Inc 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan to satisfy tax withholding obligations related to the vesting of their

respective restricted stock awards In addition Mr McKinney forfeited 78334 restricted common shares of Cano stock upon

his resignation on May 31 2010

Item Selected Financial Data

Not applicable

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKENG STATEMENTS

Certain of the matters discussed under the captions Business and Properties Legal Proceedings Managements

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and elsewhere in this annual report may constitute

forward-looking statements for purposes of the Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and as such may

involve known and unknown risks uncertainties and other factors that may cause the actual results performance or achievements to

be materially different from future results performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements

When used in this report the words anticipates estimates plans believes continues expects projections forecasts

intends may might could should and similarexpressions are intended to be among the statements that identify forward-

looking statements Various factors could cause the actual results performance or achievements to differ materially from our

expectations When considering our forward-looking statements keep in mind the risk factors and other cautionary statements

disclosed in this annual report Cautionary Statements including without limitation those statements made in conjunction with the

forward-looking statements included under the captions identified above and otherwise herein All written and oral forward-looking

statements attributable to us are qualified in their entirety by the Cautionary Statements We do not undertake any obligation to update

or revise publicly any forward-looking statements except as required by law and you are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any

forward-looking statement

Overview

Introduction

We are an independent oil and natural gas company Our strategy is to exploit our current undeveloped reserves and acquire

where economically prudent assets suitable for enhanced oil recovery at low cost We intend to convert our proved undeveloped

and/or unproved reserves into proved producing reserves by applying water gas
and/or chemical flooding and other EOR techniques

Our assets are located onshore U.S in Texas New Mexico and Oklahoma

During our first three years of operations our primary objective was to achieve growth through acquiring existing mature

crude oil and natural gas fields Since then we have focused on waterflood operations in our two largest properties Panhandle and

Cato These development activities are more clearly described below under Drilling Capital Development and Operating Activities

Update
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As discussed under Liquidity Going Concern on July 20 2010 we terminated our announced merger with Resaca

Exploitation Inc Resaca that had been initiated pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated September 29 2009 On July

26 2010 we announced the engagement of Canaccord Genuity and Global Hunter Securities to assist our Board in review of

strategic alternatives The strategic alternatives we are considering include the sale of the Company the sale of some or all of our

existing oil and gas properties and assets and potential business combinations

Proved Reserves

On September 14 2010 we announced the results of our year-year reserves review as of June 30 2010 as prepared by Haas
our independent petroleum engineer The following table compares our proved reserves by property as of June 30 2010 to June 30
2009 The amounts are presented in thousands of barrels oil equivalent MBOE

in MBOE

June 302010 June 302009

Properties PDP PDNP PUD Proved PDP .PDNP PUD Proved

Panhandle 2389 20990 23379 3440 25433 28873

Cato 921 719 13194 14834 1858 530 13582 15970

Nowata 1839 50 1889 1547 1547

Davenport 696 507 1203 744 565 1309

Desdemona 196 978 1174 147 1251 _______ 1398

Total Proved Reserves 6041 2254 34184 42479 7736 2346 39015 49097

As of June 30 2010 our proved reserves total 42.5 MMBOE or 6.6 MMBOE lower than our proved reserves of 49.1

MMBOE at June 30 2009 The primary contributors to the 6.6 MMBOE decrease are reduced PUD reserves at the Panhandle

Properties of 4.4 MMBOE reduced PDP reserves at the Cato Properties of 0.9 MMBOE the sale of certain wells in the Panhandle

Properties of 0.5 MMBOE as discussed in Note to our Consolidated Financial Statements and production for the twelve-month

period ended June 30 2010 of 0.4 MMBOE

Haas utilized the East Schafer Ranch waterflood as the analogy for assessing the PUD reserves for each lease of the

Panhandle Properties The East Shafer Ranch waterflood experienced secondary recovery of 11% of the original oil in place or

OOIP which equated to secondary to primary ratio of 0.35 Haas based solely on its professional experience and engineering

judgment determined that for the purpose of reporting the Panhandle Properties proved reserves they would limit each of the

Panhandle Properties waterflood recovery factors to 0.35 secondary to primary ratio as maximum and not use percentage of

OOIP to determine proved reserves In some cases adjustments were made since the by lease production history appeared to have

allocation issues Haas decision to limit proved reserve recovery based upon 0.35 secondary to primary ratio resulted in proved

reserve decrease of 3.1 MMBOE Further Haas looked at the delayed responses Cano has experienced at its Cockrell Ranch unit

along with reservoir conformance and permeability trends analyzed from core data and decided to limit proved reserves to 0.175

secondary to primary ratio for the Cockrell Ranch and the adjacent Pond Lease resulting in proved reserve decrease of 1.3

MMBOE Haas determined that the reductions to the combined companys proved reserves would be validly reclassified as probable

reserves as proved reserves indicate 90% likelihood that production will meet or exceed the booked value while probable reserves

require 50% confidence level to be so classified

The reduction of PDP reserves at Cato Properties is result of lower field production rates associated with lower water

injection rates at the waterflood

The reserve estimates as of June 30 2010 include the effects of the SECs final rule Modernization of Oil and Gas

Reporting issued in December 2008 This final rule is effective for annual reports on Form 10-K for years ending on or after

December 31 2009

The prices used to compute the crude oil and natural gas proved reserves represent the unweighted average first-day-of-the

month NYMEX crude oil and natural prices for the past 12 fiscal months ended June 30 2010 pursuant to the previously discussed

SECs final rule which we compute to be $75.76 per barrel and $4.10 per MMBtu respectively as compared to $68.89 per
barrel and

$3.71 per MJVIBIu on June 30 2009 Crude oil reserves accounted for 78% of our total proved reserves at June 30 2010
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The table below summarizes the changes in our proved reserves from June 30 2009 to June 30 2010

Summary of Changes in Proved Reserves MBOE

Reserves at June 30 2009 49097

Extensions and Discoveries 279

Sale of Producing Properties 512
Revisions of prior estimates 5983
Production for the year ended June 30 2010 402
Reserves at June 302010 42479

Extensions and Discoveries totaling 279 MBOE include newly identified behind-pipe opportunities at our Cato and Panhandle

Properties Additionally approximately 60 MBOE of previously categorized PDNP reserves at the Desdemona Properties were

reclassified to PDP reserves as we are in the midst of development project to return to production previously shut-in gas wells from

the Duke Sand formation Our development activities are more fully described below under Development Capital Expenditures

and Operating Activities Update

Drilling Capital Development and Operating Activities Update

For the quarter ending June 30 2010 current quarter our production averaged 1149 net barrels of oil equivalent per day

BOEPD which was 52 BOEPD 4.3% lower as compared to production of 1201 BOEPD for the quarter ended June 30 2009

prior year quarter Production for the year ended June 30 2010 2010 Fiscal Year of 1102 net BOEPD was 42 BOEPD 3.7%
lower as compared to the year ended June 30 2009 2009 Fiscal Year of 1144 net BOEPD These reported production amounts

exclude the sale of Certain Panhandle Properties as discussed in Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements which averaged 98

BOEPD during the 2010 Fiscal Year For both the current quarter and 2010 Fiscal Year the production decreases were primarily

attributed to mandatory lower waterflood injection volumes at our Cato Properties as discussed below At our other properties normal

field declines of production were offset by workover activities and return-to-production RTP program at the Desdemona Field

For the 2010 Fiscal Year we incurred development capital expenditures of $12.2 million excludes capitalized general and

administrative and interest expenses Our development capital budget was designed to maintain our current level of production and to

minimize drawing on the ARCA while we pursued the completion of the planned merger with Resaca The development capital

expenditures were incurred as follows

$4.5 million at the Cato Properties

$6.9 million at the Panhandle Properties and

$0.8 million at the Desdemona Properties

The following is discussion of our field level activity during the 2010 Fiscal Year

Cato Properties

Our 2010 Fiscal Year development capital plan included expanding the waterflood footprint from 640 acres to approximately

1000 acres by adding three new injection wells which were put into service during the quarter ended December 31 2009 We have

identified new source of water in non-productive formation within our acreage and have confirmed that the water well is capable

of producing 2500 to 3000 barrels of water per day This new water source formation has been penetrated in number of existing

wellbores in the Cato Properties and confirms the reservoir continuity necessary to validate it as reliable water source for future

expansion of the Cato waterflood As we develop this new water source we will be able to increase the waterflood footprint without

decreasing the injection rate at our existing injectors which should enable us to maintain production from existing producing wells at

current levels We averaged 14000 barrels of water injection per day BWIPD during the quarter ended September 30 2009 We

experienced decrease to 12000 BWIPD through March 31 2010 as we measured increasing injection pressures in the northern part

of the flood area and we were required under our existing waterflood permit to reduce the injection rate in these wells On May

2010 we received administrative approval from the New Mexico Oil and Gas Conservation Division NMOGCD to increase

injection pressures at the 14 active wells to our current physical plant capabilities of approximately 21000 BWIPD As of August 31

2010 we have maintained an injection rate of 12000 BWIPD which is less than the approved rate from the NMOGCD as we have

reduced capital spending pending the outcome of our strategic alternatives review We have seen increased fluid production rates and

corresponding increasing crude oil rates from this waterflood We have submitted an application to the NMOGCD to expand the

waterflood operations and expect their approval by December 2010
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The Cato Properties will be developed through the purchase of additional equipment to increase water injection and to

increase fluid production and crude oil rates from this waterflood Additional development plans for the Cato Properties include

behind-pipe recompletions restoration of production from the Tom-Tom and Tomahawk fields and the drilling of Morrow
formation test well Net production at the Cato Properties for the quarter ended June 30 2010 was 237 BOEPD which was 96

BOEPD lower than the prior year quarter of 333 BOEPD Net production at the Cato Properties for the 2010 Fiscal Year was 257

BOEPD which was 39 BOEPD lower than 2009 Fiscal Year of 296 BOEPD The decreases for the current quarter and 2010 Fiscal

Year resulted from the reduction in injected water and redistribution of water injection at the waterflood

Please see Business Properties Our Properties Cato Properties for description of the Cato Properties

Panhandle Properties

In the quarter ended September 30 2009 we established controlled water injection pattern at the Cockrell Ranch unit to

gauge the effects of optimizing water injection into the highest remaining crude oil saturation intervals of the Brown Dolomite

formation We essentially performed Mini-Flood in the key target interval at the Cockrell Ranch unit The result of this field

observation helped us determine an optimal pattern for waterflooding the balance of the Cockrell Ranch unit with an increasingly

predicable production profile Moreover the field observation should improve the planning of future development programs for the

remaining leases located within our Panhandle Properties To isolate the observed wells we had temporarily shut-in production during

most of the quarter ended September 30 2009 which reduced Panhandle production by 25 net BOEPD All production that was shut-

in for the controlled injection project was restored on September 28 2009 We have experienced positive results from the controlled

injection project Oil production from wells in the affected area has increased to at or above target levels of 8-12 BOEPD on per

well basis

Net production at the Panhandle Properties as adjusted for the sale of Certain Panhandle Properties as discussed in Note to

the Consolidated Financial Statements for the quarters ended June 30 2010 and 2009 were 546 BOEPD and 517 BOEPD
respectively Net production for the Panhandle Properties for the 2010 and 2009 Fiscal Years was 494 BOEPD and 495 BOEPD
respectively During the 2010 Fiscal Year we constructed gathering lines to redirect natural gas production from Eagle Rock Field

Services L.P Eagle Rock to DCP Midstream LP DCP As of June 30 2010 we had redirected approximately 80% of the

natural gas production previously delivered to Eagle Rock to DCP

Please see Business Properties Our Properties Panhandle Properties for description of the Panhandle Properties

Desdemona Properties

During the 2010 Fiscal Year we implemented project to return to production previously shut-in gas wells from the Duke
Sand formation We converted approximately 311 MBOE of previously PDNP reserves to PDP reserves for 12 RTPd gas wells in

December 2009 Production increased from 46 BOEPD for the quarter ended December 31 2009 to 69 BOEPD for the quarter ended

March 31 2010 without the benefit of selling any natural gas liquids NGLs We RTPd an additional 13 wells during the quarter

ended June 30 2010 Production from all of the RTPd natural gas wells including associated NGL
recovery from our gas plant is

expected to be approximately 10-20 Mcfe per day for each gas well returned to production We have re-equipped our gas plant to

handle the increased natural gas production and the gas plant became functional during August 2010 Daily production from the

Desdemona Properties is projected to be 100 110 BOEPD

During the quarter ended March 31 2010 we drilled one new well to total depth of 3650 feet to test the Marble Falls

Atoka and Strawn Sand formations We have completed the new well in the Strawn Sand formation at depth of 1750 feet As of

August 31 2010 the well produced BOEPD We are currently evaluating this well to optimize production

Net production at the Desdemona Properties for the quarters ended June 30 2010 and June 30 2009 was 69 BOEPD and 59

BOEPD respectively Net production at the Desdemona Properties for the 2010 and 2009 Fiscal Years was 55 BOEPD and 61

BOEPD respectively During July 2009 we shut-in our Barnett Shale natural gas wells based upon the then current and the outlook

for natural gas prices from the Bamett Shale wells

Please see Business Properties Our Properties Desdemona Properties for description of the Desdemona Properties

Nowata Properties Proved reserves as of June 30 2010 attributable to the Nowata Properties were 1.9 MMBOE of which

1.8 MMBOE were PDP and 0.1 MMBOE were PDNP Net production for the quarters ended June 30 2010 and June 30 2009 was

219 BOEPD and 218 BOEPD respectively Net production for the 2010 and 2009 Fiscal Years was 219 BOEPD and 221 BOEPD
respectively We are currently assessing our operations at the Nowata Properties to increase production including constructing an

additional gas gathering system and optimizing current infrastructure Please see Business Properties Our Properties Nowata

Properties for description of the Nowata Properties
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Davenport Properties Proved reserves as of June 30 2010 attributable to the Davenport Properties were 1.2 MMBOE of

which 0.7 MMBOE were PDP and 0.5 MMBOE were PDNP Net production for the quarters ended June 30 2010 and June 30 2009

was 79 BOEPD and 74 BOEPD respectively Net production for the 2010 and 2009 Fiscal Years was 76 BOEPD and 71 BOEPD

respectively Please see Business Properties Our Properties Davenport Properties for description of the Davenport

Properties

Industry Conditions

We operate in competitive environment for acquiring properties ii marketing oil and natural gas and iiiattracting

trained personnel Some of our competitors possess and employ financial resources substantially greater than ours and some of our

competitors employ more technical personnel Some of our competitors may be able to pay more for productive oil and natural gas

properties and exploratory prospects and to evaluate bid for and purchase greater number of properties and prospects than what our

financial or technical resources permit Our ability to acquire additional properties and to find and develop reserves in the future will

depend on our ability to identify evaluate and obtain capital for investment in the oil and natural
gas industry

EOR techniques involve significant capital investment and an extended period of time generally year or longer until

production increases Generally surfactant-polymer injection is regarded as more risky as compared to waterflood operations Our

ability to successfully convert PUD reserves to PDP reserves will be contingent upon our ability to obtain future financing and/or raise

additional capital Further there are inherent uncertainties associated with the production of crude oil and natural gas as well as price

volatility See Item 1A.Risk Factors

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity Going Concern

At June 30 2010 we had cash and cash equivalents of $0.3 million We had negative working capital of $66.9 million which

includes $66.5 million of long-term debt that was shown as current liability For the year ended June 30 2010 we had cash flow

used in operations of $0.2 million which included $1.9 million of merger-related cash expenses

On July 20 2010 we terminated our announced merger with Resaca Exploitation Inc Resaca that had been initiated

pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated September 29 2009 On July 26 2010 we announced the engagement of

Canaccord Genuity and Global Hunter Securities to assist our Board in review of strategic alternatives with goal of maximizing

economic value for our shareholders The strategic alternatives we are considering include the sale of the Company the sale of some

or all of our existing oil and gas properties and assets and potential business combinations

We currently have limited access to capital On August 2010 we finalized Consent and Forbearance Agreements with the

lenders under our credit agreements that waived potential covenant compliance issues for the periods ending June 30 2010 and

September 30 2010 set certain deadlines for the execution of our strategic alternatives review and allowed us to sell certain natural

gas commodity derivative contracts for cash proceeds of $0.8 million which was intended to provide Cano sufficient liquidity to

complete its strategic alternatives review As discussed in Note to our Consolidated Financial Statements we currently have no

available borrowing capacity under our senior and subordinated credit agreements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis which contemplates

continuity of operations realization of assets and liquidation of liabilities in the ordinary course of business As result of losses

incurred and our current negative working capital there is no assurance that the carrying amounts of assets will be realized or that

liabilities will be settled for the amounts recorded The ability of the Company to continue as going concern will be dependent upon

the outcome of the strategic alternatives review Unless we are able to successfully execute one of our strategic alternatives

restructure our existing indebtedness obtain further waivers or forbearance from our existing lenders or otherwise raise significant

additional capital it is unlikely that we will be able to meet our obligations as they become due and to continue as going concern

On December 28 2007 our universal shelf registration statement was declared effective by the SEC for the issuance of

common stock preferred stock warrants senior debt and subordinated debt up to an aggregate amount of $150.0 million After the

issuance of common stock on July 2008 we have $96.0 million of availability under this registration however the amount of

securities which we may offer pursuant to this shelf registration statement during any twelve-month period shall be limited to one

third of the aggregate market value of the common equity of the Company held by our non-affiliates since our public float is not in

excess of $75.0 million We may periodically offer one or more of these securities in amounts prices and on terms to be announced

when and if the securities are offered At the time any of the securities covered by the registration statement are offered for sale

prospectus supplement will be prepared and filed with the SEC containing specific information about the terms of any such offering

The universal shelf registration statement expires on December 31 2010
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Credit Agreements

At June 30 2010 and 2009 the outstanding amount due under our credit agreements was $66.5 million and $55.7 million

respectively The $66.5 million at June 30 2010 consisted of outstanding borrowings under the amended and restated credit

agreement the ARCA and subordinated credit agreement the SCA of $51.5 million and $15.0 million respectively At June 30
2010 the average interest rates under the ARCA and SCA were 2.85% and 6.54% respectively

Forbearance Agreements

On August 2010 we executed Consent and Forbearance Agreement the Senior Forbearance Agreement with Natixis

and Union Bank N.A UBNA relating to existing and potential defaults under the ARCA dated December 17 2008 among Cano
Natixis and UIBNA and Consent and Forbearance Agreement together with the Senior Forbearance Agreement the Forbearance

Agreements with UnionBanCal Equities Inc UBE relating to existing defaults under the SCA dated December 17 2008

between Cano and UBE as amended the SCA and together with the ARCA the Credit Agreements Pursuant to the Forbearance

Agreements Natixis UBNA and UBE agreed to forbear from exercising certain rights and remedies under the Credit Agreements

arising as result of the following defaults the Designated Defaults

Canos failure to pay the amendment fees required by Amendment No to each of the Credit Agreements

Canos failure to provide an Internal Engineering Report and accompanying officers certificate on or before March 30
2010 as required by the Credit Agreements

Cano potentially prohibited cash payments with respect to its shares of Preferred Stock on June 29 2010 and June 30

2010 and

Canos failure to comply with certain financial covenants contained in the Credit Agreements for the quarter ended

June 30 2010 and potential failure to comply with such covenants for the quarter ended September 30 2010

The Forbearance Agreements also contain the following material terms

Natixis UBNA and UBE consent to Cano termination of certain natural gas hedge contracts

Cano may not make any indirect or direct cash payment cash dividend or cash distribution in respect of its shares of

Preferred Stock

Natixis UBNA and UBE agree to forbear from exercising certain rights and remedies under the Credit Agreements

arising as result of Canos potential failure to pay interest upon receipt of default notice on the unpaid principal

amount of each advance under the SCA on September 30 2010

Cano must establish on or before August 10 2010 an electronic data room with information available to persons that

may be interested in consummating an asset purchase merger combination refinancing recapitalization or other similar

transaction with Cano each Prospective Transaction

Cano must execute on or before September 15 2010 letter of intent evidencing the parties intent to consummate

Prospective Transaction that will close on or before October 29 2010 the Definitive Transaction

Cano must execute definitive documentation providing for Definitive Transaction on or before September 30 2010

Cano must close Definitive Transaction on or before October 29 2010

Cano must deliver to UBNA and UBE weekly written report of the parties visiting the electronic data room and

summary of progress and correspondence with respect to any Prospective Transaction

Cano must pay forbearance fee in an amount equal to 1% of the aggregate principal amount of the advances

outstanding under the Credit Agreements as of August 2010 and the amendment fees required by Amendment No to

each of the Credit Agreements upon receipt of proceeds from Definitive Transaction
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The aggregate commitments of Natixis and UBNA to lend to Cano pursuant to the ARCA are permanently reduced to

$51.5 million the current amount outstanding

UBNA and UBE shall not redetermine Canos borrowing bases under the Credit Agreements at any time prior to the

termination of the Forbearance Agreements

The Forbearance Agreements will terminate on the earlier of October 29 2010 the date of Canos failure to comply with any

of the terms described above and the date of the occurrence or existence of any default under either Credit Agreement other than the

Designated Defaults

Regarding our compliance with the material items of the Forbearance Agreements

Prior to August 10 2010 we did establish an electronic data room with information available to persons interested in

consummating Proposed Transaction

On August 10 2010 we sold certain natural gas commodity derivative contracts to our counterparty UBNA for $0.8

million

At September 15 2010 we were in discussions with parties regarding potential transaction structures and did not deliver

letter of intent pursuant to the Forbearance Agreements as discussed above We continue to work with potential parties

and our lenders on transaction structures

The ARCA and SCA are discussed in greater detail below

ARCA

On December 17 2008 we finalized new $120.0 million Amended and Restated Credit Agreement the ARCA with

UBNA and Natixis UBNA is the Administrative Agent and Issuing Lender of the ARCA The current amount outstanding under the

ARCA is equal to the commitment of $51.5 million Per the terms of the Forbearance Agreement the ARCAs borrowing base shall

not be redetermined

Based upon the terms of the Forbearance Agreement our interest rate is the sum of the one two or three month LIBOR rate

and 2.75% As of the Forbearance Agreement there will not be commitment fee and we are deemed fully borrowed

Unless specific events of default occur the maturity date of the ARCA is December 17 2012 Specific events of default

which could cause all outstanding principal and accrued interest to be accelerated include but are not limited to payment defaults

material breaches of representations and warranties breaches of covenants certain cross-defaults insolvency change in control or

material adverse change Unless we are able to successfully execute one of our strategic alternatives restructure our existing

indebtedness obtain further waivers or forbearance from our existing lenders or otherwise raise significant additional capital it is

unlikely that we will be able to meet our obligations as they become due and to continue as going concern The ARCA contains

certain negative covenants including subject to certain exceptions covenants against the following incurring additional liens

ii incurring additional debt or issuing additional equity interests other than common equity interests iiimerging or consolidating or

selling leasing transferring assigning farming-out conveying or otherwise disposing of any property iv making certain payments

including cash dividends to our common stockholders making any loans advances or capital contributions to or making any

investment in or purchasing or committing to purchase any stock or other securities or evidences of indebtedness or interest in any

person or oil and gas properties or activities related to oil and gas properties unless with regard to new oil and gas properties such

properties are mortgaged to UBNA as administrative agent or with regard to new subsidiaries such subsidiaries execute

guaranty pledge agreement security agreement or mortgage in favor of UBNA as administrative agent and vi entering into affiliate

transactions on terms that are not at least as favorable to us as comparable arms length transactions

SCA

On December 17 2008 we finalized $25.0 million SCA among Cano and UBE as the Administrative Agent On March 17

2009 we borrowed the maximum available amount of $15.0 million under this agreement

The interest rate is the sum of the one two or three month LIBOR rate at our option and 6.0% Through March 17

2009 we owed commitment fee of 1.0% on the unborrowed portion of the available borrowing amount We no longer have

commitment fee since we borrowed the full $15.0 million available amount
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Unless specific events of default occur the maturity date is June 17 2013 Specific events of default which could cause all

outstanding principal and accrued interest to be accelerated include but are not limited to payment defaults material breaches of

representations and warranties breaches of covenants certain cross-defaults insolvency change in control or material adverse

change as defined in the SCA Unless we are able to successfully execute one of our strategic alternatives restructure our existing

indebtedness obtain further waivers or forbearance from our existing lenders or otherwise raise significant additional capital it is

unlikely that we will be able to meet our obligations as they become due and to continue as going concern The SCA contains certain

negative covenants including subject to certain exceptions covenants against the following incurring additional liens

ii incurring additional debt or issuing additional equity interests other than common equity interests of Cano iiimerging or

consolidating or selling leasing transferring assigning farming-out conveying or otherwise disposing of any property iv making
certain payments including cash dividends to our common stockholders making any loans advances or capital contributions to or

making any investment in or purchasing or committing to purchase any stock or other securities or evidences of indebtedness or

interest in any person or oil and gas properties or activities related to oil and
gas properties unless with regard to new oil and gas

properties such properties are mortgaged to UBE as administrative agent or with regard to new subsidiaries such subsidiaries

execute guaranty pledge agreement security agreement or mortgage in favor of UBE as administrative agent and vi entering into

affiliate transactions on terms that are not at least as favorable to us as comparable arms length transactions

Credit Agreement Covenant Compliance

Both the ARCA and the SCA have current ratio covenant that requires us to maintain ratio of not less than 1.00 to 1.00 for

each fiscal quarter The current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets as defined in both credit agreements by current liabilities

as defined in both credit agreements Current assets include unused borrowing base under the ARCA and the aggregate availability

under the SCA Current liabilities exclude all current portions of long-term debt other than any current debt relating to the Preferred

Stock and liabilities for asset retirement obligations Current assets and current liabilities exclude derivative assets and liabilities At

June 30 2010 our ratio of current assets to current liabilities was 1.89 to 1.00 The calculation and reconciliation of current assets and

current liabilities as defined by GAAP to current assets and current liabilities as defined in the credit agreements is as follows in
thousands

June 302010

Current assets GAAP 6537
Unused borrowing base at June 30 2010 85501
Less derivative assets 2968
Modified current assets non-GAAP 12119A

Current liabilities GAAP 73454
Less current portion of long-term debt 66450
Less derivative liabilities 410
Less asset retirement obligation 189
Modified current liabilities non-GAAP 6405B

Modified current ratio 1.89 to 1.00

Represents the $60.0 million borrowing base under the ARCA at June 30 2010 less $51.5 million of debt outstanding under

the ARCA at June 30 2010

We were not in compliance with the covenants relating to our leverage ratio and interest coverage ratio for the quarters ended

December 31 2009 March 31 2010 and June 30 2010 The leverage ratio is the ratio of consolidated Debt as defined in both credit

agreements to consolidated EBITDA as defined in both credit agreements for the cumulative four fiscal
quarter periods Under the

ARCA and SCA the leverage ratio cannot be greater than 4.00 to 1.00 and 4.50 to 1.00 respectively The interest
coverage

ratio is

the ratio of consolidated EBITDA as defined in both credit agreements to consolidated Interest Expense as defined in both

agreements for the cumulative four fiscal quarter periods Under the ARCA and SCA the interest coverage ratio cannot be less than

3.00 to 1.00 and 2.50 to 1.00 respectively The Forbearance Agreements address our non-compliance with the leverage ratio and

interest coverage ratio as previously discussed
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The SCA has minimum asset coverage ratio covenant that requires us to maintain ratio of not less than 1.50 to 1.00 The

minimum asset coverage ratio is calculated by dividing Total Present Value as of the applicable determination date which is

defined as the sum of 100% of the net present value discounted at 10% per annum of the future net revenues expected to accrue to

PDP reserves PDNP reserves and PUD reserves with the total present value of PDP reserves being at least 60% of the

aggregate total present value by ii consolidated Debt as defined in the Subordinated Credit Agreement as of the applicable

determination date At June 30 2010 our minimum asset coverage
ratio was 2.03 to 1.00 calculated as follows in thousands

Quarter Ended

June 30 2010

Total present value non-GAAP 134917C

For the 2010 Fiscal Year we had loss applicable to common stock of $13.4 million which was $21.3 million decrease as

compared to income applicable to common stock of $7.9 million for the 2009 Fiscal Year Items contributing to the $21.3 million

decrease were reduced gain on derivatives of $45.7 million decreased income from preferred stock repurchased for less than the

carrying amount of $10.9 million and lower income from discontinued operations of $10.3 million Partially offsetting the earnings

decrease were lower operating expenses of $43.9 million which is primarily attributable to $26.7 million charge for impairment of

long-lived assets during the 2009 Fiscal Year Other items that decreased operating expenses were reductions to general and

administrative expenses of $7.3 million decreased exploration expense of $6.4 million and lower lease operating expenses of $2.8

million

For the 2009 Fiscal Year we had income applicable to common stock of $7.9 million which was $29.5 million

improvement as compared to the $21.6 million loss applicable to common stock for the 2008 Fiscal Year Items that led to the

improvement were increased gain on derivatives of $75.7 million preferred stock repurchased for less than the carrying amount of

$10.9 million higher income from discontinued operations of $7.1 million and lower preferred stock dividend of $1.4 million These

positive factors were partially offset by higher operating expenses of $49.7 million lower operating revenues of $7.9 million lower

deferred income tax benefit of $7.5 million and goodwill impairment of $0.7 million

Operating Revenues

The table below summarizes our operating revenues

Operating Revenues In Thousands

Sales

Crude Oil MBbls
Natural Gas MMcf
MBOE

Average Realized Price

Crude Oil $/Bbl
Natural Gas $/Mcf

Operating Revenues and Commodity

Derivative Settlements In Thousands

Average Adjusted Price includes

Commodity Derivative Settlements

Crude Oil $/Bbl
Natural Gas $/Mcf

68.98 62.13

7.53 7.28

27789 29723 28707

74.19 75.85

15.65 11.06

Long-term debt GAAP
Total present value to debt C/D

Results of OperationsYears Ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008

Overall

June 302010

66450D

2.03 to 1.00

2010

22849

285

426

356

Years Ended June 30

2009

23433

308

545

399

Increase Decrease

2010 2009 2009 2008

584 7859
2008

31292

248

641

355

23 60

119 96
43 44

94.06 6.85 31.93

11.93 0.25 4.65

1934 1016

81.85 1.66 6.00

12.73 4.59 1.67
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2010 Fiscal Year 2009 Fiscal Year

The 2010 Fiscal Year operating revenues of $22.8 million were $0.6 million lower as compared to the 2009 Fiscal Year

operating revenues of $23.4 million The $0.6 million reduction is primarily attributable to decreased crude oil and natural gas sales

volumes which lowered revenues by $1.6 million and $0.9 million respectively and lower other revenues of $0.3 million These

decreases were partially offset by increased prices received for crude oil and natural gas sales volumes of $2.1 million and $0.2

million respectively

Crude Oil Sales Our 2010 Fiscal Year crude oil sales were 23 MBbls lower as compared to the 2009 Fiscal Year due to

lower sales from our Cato Properties and Panhandle Properties of 12 MBbls and MBbls respectively The sales decrease at our Cato

Properties resulted from the redistribution of water injection at the waterflood which resulted in lower production as discussed under

Overview-Drilling Capital Development and Operating Activities Update

The sales decrease at the Panhandle Properties is due to the controlled injection project at the Cockrell Ranch waterflood and

severe weather during January and February 2010 which temporarily curtailed production All Cockrell Ranch production that had

been temporarily shut-in for the controlled injection project was restored on September 28 2009

Natural Gas Sales Our 2010 Fiscal Year natural gas sales were 119 MMcf lower as compared to the 2009 Fiscal Year

primarily due to lower sales at the Panhandle Properties of 44 MMcf Desdemona Properties of 36 MMcf and Cato Properties of 36

MIMcf Lower natural gas sales at the Panhandle Properties resulted from severe weather and from the controlled production project at

Cockrell Ranch waterflood as previously discussed and one of our gas purchasers experiencing unplanned plant outages during

August 2009 September 2009 May 2010 and June 2010 which resulted in reduced natural gas and NGL sales Lower natural gas

sales at the Desdemona Properties resulted from the shut-in natural gas production from our Barnett Shale wells during July 2009
based upon the then current and near-term outlook of natural gas prices and the temporary shut-in of our gas plant to equip the plant

to handle increased natural gas production from the return to production of 25 shut-in Duke Sand gas wells as previously discussed

under the OverviewDrilling Capital Development and Operating Activities Update Lower natural gas sales at the Cato

Properties resulted from the purchaser temporarily declining to take natural gas production from January through March 2010

2009 Fiscal Year 2008 Fiscal Year

The 2009 Fiscal Year operating revenues of $23 .4 million were $7.9 million lower as compared to the 2008 Fiscal Year

operating revenues of $31.3 million The $7.9 million reduction is primarily attributable to lower prices received for crude oil and

natural gas sales which lowered revenues by $7.9 million and $3.0 million respectively and by lower natural gas sales volumes

which lowered revenues by $0.7 million These decreases were partially offset by increased crude oil sales volumes which increased

revenues by $3.7 million

Crude Oil Sales For the 2009 Fiscal Year approximately 82% of the increased crude oil sales of 60 MBbls were attributed

to the waterflood development activity at the Cato Properties Also we had increased crude oil sales from the Panhandle Properties

due to the waterflood development

Natural Gas Sales For the 2009 Fiscal Year the overall decrease in natural
gas sales of 96 MMcf pertains primarily to

reductions with respect to our Barnett Shale project at our Desdemona Properties During the first half of calendar year 2008 various

workovers and re-fracture stimulations were attempted to increase production Through December 2008 these efforts were met with

marginal success In January 2009 we halted our workover program in the Desdemona PropertiesBarnett Shale Once the Bamett

Shale workover activity ceased we experienced Bamett Shale production declines of approximately 65 90%

Also higher gas production from the Cato Properties due to the aforementioned development activity was offset by lower gas

production from our Panhandle Properties due to normal field decline of approximately 10% annually and temporary pipeline

curtailments of gas deliveries to our gas purchasers

Crude Oil and Natural Gas Prices

The average price we receive for crude oil sales is generally at market prices received at the wellhead except for the Cato

Properties for which we receive below market prices due to the level of impurities in the oil Differentials increased briefly as

commodity prices rapidly declined between July 2008 and December 2008 however the differentials have since recovered The

average price we receive for natural gas sales is approximately the market price received at the wellhead adjusted for the value of

natural gas liquids less transportation and marketing expenses
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The average prices we received for our crude oil and natural gas sales were supplemented or reduced by commodity

derivative settlements received or paid for the 2010 2009 and 2008 Fiscal Years As discussed in Note to our Consolidated

Financial Statements if crude oil and natural gas NYMEX prices are lower than the floor prices we will be reimbursed by our

counterparty for the difference between the NYMEX price and floor price i.e realized gain Conversely if crude oil and natural

gas NYMEX prices are higher than the derivative ceiling prices we will pay our counterparty for the difference between the

NYMEX price and ceiling price i.e realized loss

Operating Expenses

2010 Fiscal Year 2009 Fiscal Year

For the 2010 Fiscal Year our total operating expenses were $40.0 million or $43.9 million lower than the 2009 Fiscal Year

of $83.8 million The 2009 Fiscal Year included an impairment of long-lived assets of $26.7 million which is the primary reason for

the overall decrease In addition we had reduced general and administrative of $7.3 million reduced exploration expense of $6.4

million lower lease operating expenses of $2.8 million and lower depletion and depreciation expense of $0.8 million

2009 Fiscal Year 2008 Fiscal Year

For the 2009 Fiscal Year our total operating expenses were $83.8 million or $49.7 million higher than the 2008 Fiscal Year

of $34.1 million The primary contributors to the increase were an impairment of long-lived assets of $26.7 million and exploration

expense of $11.4 million associated with the Desdemona PropertiesDuke Sands waterflood project In addition we experienced

increased lease operating expenses of $5.5 million general and administrative of $4.3 million and higher depletion and depreciation of

$1.8 million

Lease Operating Expenses

Our lease operating expenses LOE consist of the costs of producing crude oil and natural gas such as labor supplies

repairs maintenance workovers and utilities

For the 2010 Fiscal Year our LOE was $15.7 million which is $2.8 million lower than 2009 Fiscal Year of $18.5 million

The $2.8 million decrease resulted primarily from reduced service rates negotiated with vendors of $2.5 million the shut-in of our

Barnett Shale natural gas wells which reduced LOE by $0.6 million and lower electricity expense of $0.3 million Partially offsetting

these LOE cost reductions were increased LOE at the Cato Properties of $0.6 million to support increased focus on production

activities

For the 2010 Fiscal Year our LOE per BOE based on production was reduced by $5.55 per BOE to $38.90 as compared to

$44.45 for the 2009 Fiscal Year for the reasons previously discussed For the quarter ended June 30 2010 the LOE per BOE was

$36.35 In general secondary and tertiary LOE is higher than the LOE for companies developing primary production because our

fields are more mature and typically produce less oil and more water However we expect our LOE per BOE to decrease during the

2011 Fiscal Year as we realize the benefit of full year of lower service rates with vendors Further we expect LOE per BOE to

decrease as production increases from the waterflood and EOR development activities we have implemented and are implementing as

discussed under the Drilling Capital Development and Operating Activities Update

For the 2009 Fiscal Year our LOE was $18.5 million which is $5.5 million higher than 2008 Fiscal Year of $13.0 million

The $5.5 million increase resulted primarily from increased workover activities and general repairs at the Panhandle Properties of

$4.2 million and higher operating expenses incurred at the Cato Properties of $2.1 million to support increased crude oil and natural

gas sales as discussed under Operating Revenues partially offset by lower operating expenses of $1.1 million due to lower natural

gas
sales at the Desdemona Properties as discussed under Operating Revenues We also had higher LOE at the Davenport and

Nowata Properties of $0.3 million due to increased electricity expenses general repairs and workover expenses The workover

activities at the Panhandle Properties pertained to returning wells to production and have increased production as discussed under

Operating Revenues For the 2009 Fiscal Year our LOE per BOE was $44.45 which is an $8.38 per BOE increase as compared to

$36.07 for Fiscal Year 2008 The $8.38 per BOE increase is due to the reasons previously discussed

Production and Ad Valorem Taxes

For the 2010 Fiscal Year our production and ad valorem taxes were $1.9 million which is $0.2 million lower than the 2009

Fiscal Year of $2.1 million Our production taxes were lower by $0.1 million due to lower operating revenues and ad valorem taxes

were lower by $0.1 million due to reductions in tax property valuations by taxing authorities Our production taxes as percent of

operating revenues for the 2010 Fiscal Year of 6.3% was comparable to the 2009 Fiscal Year of 6.5% We anticipate the 2011 Fiscal

Year to be subject to similar production tax rates

36



For the 2009 Fiscal Year our production and ad valorem taxes were $2.1 million which is comparable to 2008 Fiscal Year

Our production taxes were lower by $0.5 million due to lower operating revenues which was offset by increased ad valorem taxes of

$0.5 million The increased ad valorem taxes were due to notification of revisions in tax property valuations by taxing authorities for

the 2008 calendar year Therefore the 2009 Fiscal Year includes higher tax rates for the twelve months plus charge for applying the

rates to the first six months of the 2008 calendar year Our production taxes as percent of operating revenues for the 2009 Fiscal

Year of 6.5% was comparable to the 2008 Fiscal Year of 6.6%

General and Administrative Expenses

Our general and administrative GA expenses consist of support services for our operating activities legal matters and

investor relations costs

2010 Fiscal Year 2009 Fiscal Year

For the 2010 Fiscal Year our GA expenses totaled $11.8 million which is $7.3 million lower than Fiscal Year 2009 of

$19.2 million The $7.3 million expense reduction resulted primarily from reduced litigation costs of $6.0 million reduced share-

based compensation costs of $2.1 million and lower payroll and benefits costs of $0.9 million Partially offsetting these expense
reductions were increased costs related to the terminated merger of $2.1 million The reduced payroll and benefits costs resulted from

workforce reductions we implemented during the quarter ended March 31 2009 which eliminated 25% of our home office staff The

lower share-based compensation costs are directly related to reduced issuances of stock options and restricted stock The litigation cost

reduction occurred as we settled all but one of our fire litigation claims during the fiscal year ended June 30 2009

2009 Fiscal Year 2008 Fiscal Year

For the 2009 Fiscal Year our GA expenses totaled $19.2 million which is $4.3 million higher than Fiscal Year 2008 of

$14.9 million The primary contributors to the $4.3 million increase were higher litigation costs of $4.4 million pertaining to the

settlement costs and legal fees pertaining to the fire litigation and increased stock compensation expense of $0.2 million partially

offset by reduced payroll expense of $0.3 million During the quarter ended March 31 2009 we took steps to reduce our payroll

eliminating 25% of our home office staff The quarter ended June 30 2009 was the first time we realized these savings

Exploration Expense

During the 2010 Fiscal Year we recorded exploration expense of $5.0 million pertaining to the Nowata ASP Project During
December 2009 we finalized our performance analysis which indicated the Nowata ASP Project did not result in significantly

increased oil production quantities and is therefore considered not economically viable Accordingly at December 31 2009 we
recorded $5.0 million pre-tax exploration expense

During the 2009 Fiscal Year we recorded exploration expense of $11.4 million pertaining to the Duke Sand waterflood

project The primary source of water for this waterflood project had been derived from our Barnett Shale wells As we shut-in our

Barnett Shale natural gas production due to uneconomic natural gas commodity prices we no longer had an economic source of water

to continue flooding the Duke Sand Therefore our rate of water injection had been reduced to point where we could not consider

the waterflood active We continue to believe that this reservoir is an excellent secondary and tertiary recovery candidate however

we do not have plans to recommence injection for the foreseeable future

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

During the 2010 Fiscal Year we wrote down $0.3 million of costs associated with the ASP facility used for the Nowata ASP

Project The facilitys water filtering process did not work properly with the oil-water fluid production at our Nowata Properties The

ASP facility is portable and may be used in future pilot tertiary projects at our Cato and Panhandle Properties

During the 2009 Fiscal Year we recorded $26.7 million impairment on our Barnett Shale Properties as the decline in

commodity prices created an uncertainty about the likelihood of developing our reserves associated with our Barnett Shale natural gas

properties within the next five years Therefore during the quarter ended December 31 2008 we recorded $22.4 million pre-tax

impairment to our Barnett Shale Properties During the quarter ended June 30 2009 we recorded an additional $4.3 million pre-tax

impairment to our Barnett Shale Properties as the forward outlook for natural gas prices continued to decline and we shut-in our

Barnett Shale natural gas wells The fair value was determined using estimates of future production volumes prices and operating

expenses discounted to present value
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Depletion and Depreciation

For the 2010 Fiscal Year our depletion and depreciation expense was $5.0 million decrease of $0.7 million as compared to

the 2009 Fiscal Year depletion and depreciation expense This includes depletion expense pertaining to our oil and natural gas

properties and depreciation expense pertaining to our field operations vehicles and equipment natural gas plant office furniture and

computers The decrease is due to decreased crude oil and natural gas sales volumes net as previously discussed under Operating

Revenues For the 2010 Fiscal Year our depletion rate pertaining to our oil and gas properties was $13.99 per BOE as compared to

the 2009 Fiscal Year rate of $14.20 per BOE The decreased depletion rates resulted primarily from our reserve redetermination at

December 31 2009 and periodic assessments of depletion rates during the 2010 Fiscal Year and impairments of our Bamett Shale

Properties as previously discussed

For the 2009 Fiscal Year our depletion and depreciation expense was $5.7 million an increase of $1.8 million as compared

to the 2008 Fiscal Year depletion and depreciation expense The increase is due to increased crude oil and natural gas sales volumes

net as previously discussed under Operating Revenues and higher per BOE depletion rates For the 2009 Fiscal Year our

depletion rate pertaining to our oil and gas properties was $14.20 per BOE as compared to the 2008 Fiscal Year rate of $10.88 per

BOE The increased depletion rates resulted from higher depletion rates for our Cato and Panhandle Properties based on our reserve

estimates at June 30 2009 and periodic assessments of depletion rates during the 2009 Fiscal Year

Interest Expense and Other

For the 2010 2009 and 2008 Fiscal Years we recorded interest expense of $1.0 million $0.5 million and $0.7 million

respectively as direct result of the credit agreements we entered into as discussed in Note to our Consolidated Financial

Statements The interest expense
for the 2010 2009 and 2008 Fiscal Years was reduced by $2.0 million $1.4 million and $2.5 million

respectively for interest cost that was capitalized to the waterflood and ASP projects discussed under the Drilling Capital

Development and Operating Activities Update We incurred higher interest costs during both the 2010 and 2008 Fiscal Years due to

higher outstanding debt balances and higher interest rates

Gain Loss on Commodiey Derivatives

As discussed in Note to our Consolidated Financial Statements we have entered into financial contracts for our commodity

derivatives and our interest rate swap For the 2010 Fiscal Year the loss on commodity derivatives of $1.9 million consisted of an

unrealized loss of $6.6 million and realized gain of $4.7 million For the 2009 Fiscal Year the gain on commodity derivatives of

$43.8 million consisted of an unrealized gain of $36.9 million and realized gain on settlements of commodity derivative contracts of

$6.9 million For the 2008 Fiscal Year the loss on commodity derivatives of $32.0 million consisted of unrealized and realized losses

of $29.4 million arid $2.6 million respectively

For the realization of settlements if crude oil and natural gas NYMEX prices are lower than the floor prices we will be

reimbursed by our counterparty for the difference between the NYMEX price and floor price i.e realized gain Conversely if crude

oil and natural gas NYMEX prices are higher than the ceiling prices we will pay our counterparty for the difference between the

NYMEX price and ceiling price i.e realized loss

The unrealized gain for the 2010 Fiscal Year reflects the change in fair value of the commodity derivatives during the 2010

Fiscal Year By their nature these commodity derivatives can have highly volatile impact on our earnings ten percent change in

the NYMEX prices for crude oil and natural gas that impact our commodity derivative instruments could affect our pre-tax earnings

by approximately $5.0 million

Income Tax Benefit Expense

For the 2010 Fiscal Year we had an income tax benefit of $5.3 million For the 2009 Fiscal Year we had income tax expense

of $1.7 million For the 2008 Fiscal Year we had an income tax benefit of $9.8 million These tax amounts included taxes related to

discontinued operations as shown in Note to our Consolidated Financial Statements The higher amount of income taxes for the

2009 Fiscal Year as compared to the 2010 and 2008 Fiscal Years is due to higher taxable income and an increase in other permanent

items as presented in Note 14 to our Consolidated Financial Statements resulting in an aggregate rate of 107.4% The income tax

rates for the 2010 and 2008 Fiscal Years was 1.3% and 35.8% respectively
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Income from Discontinued Operations

For the 2010 2009 and 2008 Fiscal Years we had income from discontinued operations of $2.1 million $12.3 million and

$5.2 million respectively due to our divestitures of the Pantwist LLC Corsicana Properties and Certain Panhandle Properties as

discussed in Note to our Consolidated Financial Statements

Preferred Stock Dividend

The preferred stock dividend for the 2010 Fiscal Year of $1.8 million was decrease of $0.9 million from the 2009 Fiscal

Year This resulted from the November and December 2008 repurchases of preferred stock as discussed in Note to our Consolidated

Financial Statements Due to the repurchases our quarterly preferred stock dividends will be approximately $0.5 million per quarter of

which 59% will be paid-in-kind with the balance paid in cash

The preferred stock dividend for the 2009 Fiscal Year of $2.7 million was decrease of $1.4 million from the 2008 Fiscal

Year This resulted from the November and December 2008 repurchases of preferred stock as previously discussed Also the 2008

Fiscal Year amount includes $0.5 million of federal tax we were required to withhold in accordance with Internal Revenue Service

regulations from September 2006 through June 2008 These amounts did not have material effect to our prior period financial

statements Due to the previously discussed repurchases we no longer have any Preferred Stock that require withholding taxes

On August 2010 we entered into Consent and Forbearance Agreements with the lenders under our credit agreements that

prohibit us from making any indirect or direct cash payment cash dividend or cash distribution in respect of our shares of Series

Convertible Preferred Stock

Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth our contractual obligations in thousands at June 30 2010 for the periods shown

Amounts in $000s
_____________

Long-term debt See Note to our Consolidated

Financial Statements

Series Preferred Stock

Operating lease obligations See Note 15 to our

Consolidated Financial Statements ___________ ___________ ___________
Total contractual obligations

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

Our off balance sheet arrangements are limited to operating leases that have not and are not reasonably likely to have

current or future material effect on our financial condition changes in financial condition revenues or expenses results of operations

liquidity capital expenditures or capital resources

Selected Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

We derived the selected historical financial data in the table below from our unaudited interim consolidated financial

statements The sum of net income per share by quarter may not equal the net income per share for the year due to variations in the

weighted average shares outstanding used in computing such amounts The historical data presented here are only summary and

should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements related notes and other financial information included

elsewhere in this annual report

In thousands except per share data

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2010 Sept 30 Dec 31a Mar 31 Jun 30

Operating revenues from continuing operations 4931 5634 5803 6481

Operating loss from continuing operations 4726 8170 2383 1760
Income loss from continuing operations 3693 8648 1494 289

Income loss from discontinued operations net of tax 132 212 1722

Net loss applicable to common stock 4031 8854 243 190
Net loss

per sharebasic and diluted 0.09 0.19 0.01

Less than

Total Year

66450 66450

iTo 3to

Years Years

28100 28100

2562 633 1294 635

97112 67083 29394 635

More

Than

Years
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2009 Sept 30b Dec 31c Mar 31 Jun 30d

Operating revenues from continuing operations 10017 4496 3606 5314

Operating loss from continuing operations 2073 33940 4520 19854

Income loss from continuing operations 13144 8770 815 16108

Income loss from discontinued operations net of tax 390 12388 105 215

Net income loss applicable to common stock 11818 13653 1179 16363

Net income loss per
sharebasic and diluted 0.26 0.30 0.03 0.36

For the quarter ended December 31 2009 our results of operations were unfavorably impacted by unrealized loss on

commodity derivatives of $5.8 million

For the quarter ended September 30 2008 our results of operations were favorably impacted by $24.2 million unrealized gain

on commodity derivatives resulting from significant price decrease for both crude oil and natural gas

For the quarter ended December 31 2008 our results of operations were unfavorably impacted by impairment of long-lived

assets of $22.4 million partially offset by unrealized gain on commodity derivatives

For the quarter ended June 30 2009 our results of operations were unfavorably impacted by exploration expense
of

$11.4 million and impairment of long-lived assets of $4.3 million

Critical Accounting Policies

We have identified the critical accounting policies used in the preparation of our financial statements These are the

accounting policies that we have determined involve the most complex or subjective decisions or assessments

Consolidation and Use of Estimates

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America GAAP and include the accounts of Cano and its wholly-owned subsidiaries thtercompany accounts

and transactions are eliminated In preparing the accompanying financial statements management has made certain estimates and

assumptions that affect reported amounts in the financial statements and disclosures of contingencies Actual results may differ from

those estimates Significant assumptions are required in the valuation of proved crude oil and natural gas reserves which may affect

the amount at which crude oil and natural gas properties are recorded The computation of share-based compensation expense requires

assumptions such as volatility expected life and the risk-free interest rate Our liabilities and assets associated with commodity

derivatives involve significant assumptions related to volatility and future prices for crude oil and natural gas It is at least reasonably

possible these estimates could be revised in the near term and these revisions could be material

Cano Proved Reserves

The term proved reserves is defined by the SEC in Rule 4-10a of Regulation S-X adopted under the Securities Act of 1933

as amended In general proved reserves are the estimated quantities of crude oil natural gas and natural gas liquids that geological or

engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years from known reservoirs under existing

economic and operating conditions i.e prices based on an unweighted 12-month average
and costs as of the date the estimate is

made Prices include consideration of changes in existing prices provided only by contractual arrangements but not on escalations

based on future conditions

Our estimates of proved reserves materially impact depletion expense If proved reserves decline then the rate at which we

record depletion expense increases decline in estimates of proved reserves may result from lower prices new information obtained

from development drilling and production history mechanical problems on our wells and catastrophic events such as explosions

hurricanes and floods Lower prices also may make it uneconomical to drill wells or produce from fields with high operating costs In

addition decline in proved reserves may impact our assessment of our oil and natural gas properties for impairment

Our proved reserves estimates are function of many assumptions all of which could deviate materially from actual results

As such reserves estimates may vary materially from the ultimate quantities of crude oil and natural gas actually produced
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Oil and Gas Properties and Equipment

We follow the successful efforts method of accounting Exploration expenses including geological and geophysical expenses
and delay rentals are charged to expense The costs of drilling and equipping exploratory wells are deferred until the Company has
determined whether proved reserves have been found If proved reserves are found the deferred costs are capitalized as part of the
wells and related equipment and facilities If no proved reserves are found the deferred costs are charged to expense All development
activity costs are capitalized We are primarily engaged in the development and acquisition of crude oil and natural gas properties Our
activities are considered development where existing proved reserves are identified prior to commencement of the project and are
considered exploration if there are no proved reserves at the beginning of such project The property costs reflected in the

accompanying consolidated balance sheets resulted from acquisition and development activities and deferred exploratory drilling
costs Capitalized overhead costs that directly relate to our drilling and development activities were $0.8 million and $1.1 million for
the years ended June 30 2010 and 2009 respectively We recorded capitalized interest costs of $2.0 million and $1.4 million for the

years ended June 30 2010 and 2009 respectively

Costs for repairs and maintenance to sustain or increase production from existing producing reservoirs are charged to

expense Significant tangible equipment added or replaced that extends the useful or productive life of the property is capitalized
Costs to construct facilities or increase the productive capacity from existing reservoirs are capitalized

Depreciation and depletion of producing properties are computed on the unit-of-production method based on estimated

proved oil and natural gas reserves Our unit-of-production amortization rates are revised prospectively on quarterly basis based on
updated engineering information for our proved developed reserves Our development costs and lease and wellhead equipment are
depleted based on proved developed reserves Our leasehold costs are depleted based on total proved reserves Investments in major
development projects are not depleted until such project is substantially complete and producing or until impairment occurs As of
June 30 2010 and 2009 capitalized costs related to waterflood and alkaline-surfactant-polymer ASP projects that were in process
and not subject to depletion amounted to $51.6 million and $49.4 million respectively of which $0.0 million and $4.8 million
respectively were deferred costs related to drilling and equipping exploratory wells associated with our ASP project as discussed in
Note to our Consolidated Financial Statements

If conditions indicate that long-term assets may be impaired the carrying value of our properties is compared to

managements future estimated undiscounted net cash flow from the properties If undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying
value then the asset value is written down to fair value Impairment of individually significant unproved properties is assessed on
property-by-property basis and impairment of other unproved properties is assessed and amortized on an aggregate basis The
impairment assessment is affected by factors such as the results of exploration and development activities commodity price
projections remaining lease terms and potential shifts in our business strategy

Asset Retirement Obligation

Our financial statements reflect the fair value of our asset retirement obligation ARO which consists of future plugging
and abandonment expenditures related to our oil and gas properties that can be reasonably estimated and discounted at our credit-

adjusted risk-free rate The asset retirement obligation is recorded as liability at its estimated fair value at the assets inception with
an offsetting increase to producing properties on the consolidated balance sheets which is depreciated such that the cost of the ARO is

recognized over the useful life of the asset Periodic accretion of the discount of the estimated liability to its expected settlement value
is recorded as an expense in the consolidated statements of operations

Inherent in the fair value calculation of ARO are numerous assumptions and judgments including the ultimate settlement
amounts inflation factors credit adjusted discount rates timing of settlement and changes in the legal regulatory enviroimwntal and
political environments To the extent future revisions to these assumptions impact the fair value of the existing ARO liability

corresponding adjustment is made to the oil and gas property balance

Revenue Recognition

Our revenue recognition is based on the sales method We do not have imbalances for natural gas sales since we are primarily
the 100% working interest owner in our properties We recognize revenue when crude oil and natural gas quantities are delivered to or
collected by the respective purchaser Title to the produced quantities transfers to the purchaser at the time the purchaser receives or
collects the quantities Prices for such production are defined in sales contracts and are readily determinable based on publicly
available information The purchasers of such production have historically made payment for crude oil and natural gas purchases
within thirty-five days of the end of each production month We periodically review the difference between the dates of production
and the dates we collect payment for such production to ensure that accounts receivable from the purchasers are collectible The point
of sale for our crude oil and natural gas production is at our applicable field tank batteries and gathering systems therefore we do not
incur transportation costs related to our sales of crude oil and natural gas production
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As previously discussed for the years ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 we sold our crude oil and natural gas production

to several independent purchasers The following table shows purchasers that accounted for 10% or more of our total operating

revenues

Year Ended June 30

2010 2009 2008

Valero Marketing Supply Co 33% 32% 33%

Coffeyville Resources Refinery and Marketing LLC 22% 18% 15%

Plains Marketing LP 18% 15%

Eagle Rock Field Services LP 13% 18%

DCP Midstream LP 10% 10% 14%

Less than 10% of operating revenue

Share-Based Compensation Expense

We account for share-based payment arrangements with employees and directors at their grant-date fair value and record the

related expense over their respective service periods The value of share-based compensation is impacted by our stock price which

has been highly volatile and items that require managements judgment such as expected lives and forfeiture rates

Derivatives

We are required to maintain commodity derivative contracts for portion of our crude oil and natural gas production under

our senior and subordinated credit agreements as discussed in Note to our Consolidated Financial Statements The purpose of the

derivatives is to reduce our exposure to declining commodity prices By locking in minimum prices we protect our cash flows which

support our annual capital expenditure plans We have entered into commodity derivatives that involve costless collars and swaps

for our crude oil and natural gas sales These derivatives are recorded as derivative assets and liabilities on our consolidated balance

sheets based upon their respective fair values We have entered into an interest rate basis swap contract to reduce our exposure to

future interest rate increases

We do not designate our derivatives as cash flow or fair value hedges We do not hold or issue derivatives for speculative or

trading purposes We are exposed to credit losses in the event of nonperformance by the counterparties to our commodity and interest

rate swap derivatives We anticipate however that our counterparties will be able to fully satisfy their respective obligations under

our commodity and interest rate swap derivatives contracts We do not obtain collateral or other security to support our commodity

derivatives contracts nor are we required to post any collateral We monitor the credit standing of our counterparties to understand our

credit risk

Changes in the fair values of our derivative instruments and cash flows resulting from the settlement of our derivative

instruments are recorded in earnings as gains or losses on derivatives on our consolidated statements of operations

New Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2008 the FASB issued ASC 815 formerly SFAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging

ActivitiesAn Amendment of FASB Statement 133 ASC 815 expands the required disclosures to discuss the uses of derivative

instruments the accounting for derivative instruments and related hedged items under ASC 815 and how derivative instruments and

related hedged items affect the companys financial position financial performance and cash flows We adopted ASC 815 on July

2009 The adoption of this statement did not have material impact on our financial position results of operations or cash flows

In June 2008 the FASB issued ASC 260 formerly EITF 03-6-1 Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based

Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities ASC 260 addresses whether instruments granted in share-based payment

transactions are participating securities prior to vesting and need to be included in the calculation of earnings per share under the two

class method Under ASC 260 share-based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends are participating

securities and therefore should be included in computing earnings per share using the two-class method ASC 260 is effective for

financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15 2008 We adopted ASC 260 on July

2009 The effect of adopting ASC 260 increased the number of shares used to compute our earnings per share however the adoption

of ASC 260 did not have material impact on our financial position results of operations or cash flows

42



In December 2008 the FASB issued ASC 815 formerly EITF 07-5 Determining Whether an Instrument or Embedded
Feature Is Indexed to an Entitys Own Stock ASC 815 affects companies that have provisions in their securities purchase
agreements e.g convertible instruments that provide for the reset of the current conversion price based upon new issuances by
companies at prices below the current conversion price of said instrument Securities purchase agreements with such provisions will

require the embedded derivative instrument to be bifurcated and separately accounted for as derivative Subject to certain exceptions
our preferred stock provides for resetting the conversion price if we issue new common stock below $5.75 per share ASC 815 is

effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15 2008 We adopted ASC 815
on July 2009 The adoption of this statement did not have material impact on our financial position results of operations or cash
flows as the reset conversion provision did not meet the definition of derivative since it was not readily net-cash settled

On December 31 2008 the SEC issued Release No 33-8995 Modernization of Oil and Gas Reporting which revises

disclosure requirements for oil and gas companies In addition to changing the definition and disclosure requirements for oil and
gas

reserves the new rules change the requirements for determining oil and gas reserve quantities These rules permit the use of new
technologies to determine proved reserves under certain criteria and allow companies to disclose their probable and possible reserves
The new rules also require companies to report the independence and qualifications of their reserve preparer or auditor and file reports
when third party is relied upon to prepare reserve estimates or conducts reserve audit The new rules also require that oil and gas
reserves be reported using twelve-month

average price rather than period-end prices The new rules are effective for annual reports
on Forms 10-K for fiscal years ending on or after December 31 2009 Early adoption of the new rules is prohibited Additionally the
FASB issued authoritative guidance on oil and

gas reserve estimation and disclosures as set forth in ASU No 2010-03 Extractive
ActivitiesOil and Gas Topic 932 to align with the requirements of the SECs revised rules The adoption of this statement did not
have material impact on our financial position results of operations or cash flows

In January 2010 the FASB issued ASU 2010-06 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic 820 ASU 2010-06
Subtopic 820-10 provides new guidance on improving disclosures about fair value measurements The new standard requires some
new disclosures and clarifies some existing disclosure requirements about fair value measurement Specifically the new standard will

now require reporting entity should disclose separately the amounts of significant transfers in and out of Level and Level fair

value measurements and describe the reasons for transfers and in the reconciliation for fair value measurements using significant
unoberservable inputs reporting entity should present separately information about purchases sales issuances and settlements In
addition the new standard clarifies the requirements of the following existing disclosures for

purposes of reporting fair value
measurements for each class of assets and liabilities reporting entity needs to use judgment in determining the appropriate classes of
assets and liabilities and reporting entity should provide disclosures about the valuation techniques and inputs used to measure
fair value for both recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements The new standard is effective for interim and annual reporting
periods beginning after December 15 2009 except for the disclosures about purchases sales issuances and settlements in the roll

forward of activity in Level fair value measurements Those disclosures are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15
2010 and for interim periods within those fiscal years Early application is permitted The adoption of the requirements of this

standard in the quarter ended March 31 2010 did not have material impact on our financial position or results of operations

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Not applicable

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm and Consolidated Financial Statements are set forth beginning
on page F-i of this annual report on Form 10-K and are incorporated herein

The financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is shown in

the Consolidated Financial Statements or the Notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None
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Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e under the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports filed or submitted under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is accumulated and communicated to our management including our ChiefExecutive Officer and

Chief Financial Officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure and ii recorded processed

summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC

We carried out an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of our management including our Chief

Executive Officer and ChiefFinancial Officer of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the

period covered by this annual report Based on that evaluation our management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as of June 30 2010 were effective

Managements Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as that

term is defined in Rules 3a- 5f and 15d- 15f under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Our internal control over financial

reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting and the preparation

of our financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP Our control environment is the foundation for our system

of internal control over financial reporting and is an integral part of our Code of Ethics and Business Conduct for Officers Directors

and Employees which sets the tone of our Company Our internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and

procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect our acquisitions and

dispositions of our assets ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of our

financial statements in accordance with GAAP and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with

authorizations of our management and directors and iiiprovide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of

unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of our assets that could have material effect on our financial statements

In order to evaluate the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of June 30 2010 as required by

Section 404 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 our management conducted an assessment including testing based on the criteria set

forth in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

the COSO Framework Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements In addition projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may

become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting and based on that

assessment determined that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of June 30 2010 to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Changes in Internal Controls

During the quarter ended June 30 2010 there was no change in our internal control over financial reporting that has

materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

None

PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Information required by this item relating to our directors and executive officers ii audit committee iiiCode of Ethics

and Business Conduct iv changes in procedures by which security holders may recommend nominees to our board of directors and

compliance with Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act will be set forth in the earlier filed of an amendment to this annual

report on Form 10-K or our definitive proxy statement relating to our 2010 annual meeting of stockholders and will be incorporated

herein by reference
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Item 11 Executive Compensation

Information required by this item relating to executive compensation will be set forth in the earlier filed of an amendment to

this annual report on Form 10-K or our definitive proxy statement relating to the 2010 Fiscal Year annual meeting of stockholders and

will be incorporated herein by reference

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Information required by this item relating to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management and

ii securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans will be set forth in the earlier filed of an amendment to this

annual report on Form 10-K or our definitive proxy statement relating to the 2010 Fiscal Year annual meeting of stockholders and will

be incorporated herein by reference

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

Information required by this item relating to certain business relationships and related transactions with management and

other related parties and ii director independence will be set forth in the earlier filed of an amendment to this annual report on
Form 10-K or our definitive

proxy statement relating to the 2010 Fiscal Year annual meeting of stockholders and will be incorporated
herein by reference

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information relating to fees billed to the Company by the independent registered public accounting firm for services

for the
years ended June 30 2010 and 2009 and ii the audit committees pre-approval policies and procedures for audit and non-audit

services will be set forth in the earlier filed of an amendment to this annual report on Form 10-K or our definitive proxy statement

relating to our 2010 Fiscal Year annual meeting of stockholders and will be incorporated herein by reference

PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as part of this report

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30 2010 and 2009 Consolidated Statements of Operations for each of the

three years in the period ended June 30 2010 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity for each

of the three years in the period ended June 30 2010 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three

years in the period ended June 30 2010 and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is

shown in the Consolidated Financial Statements or the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The exhibits required to be filed by this Item 15 are set forth in the Index to Exhibits accompanying this report
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly caused

this Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

CANO PETROLEUM iNC

Date September 22 2010 By Is/ JEFFREY JOHNSON

Jeffrey Johnson

ChiefExecutive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following

persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Date September 22 2010 By Is BENJAMIN DAITCH

Benjamin Daitch

Senior Vice-President and

Chief Financial Officer

Date September 22 2010 By Is MICHAEL RICKETTS

Michael Ricketts

Vice-President and

Principal Accounting Officer

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that each of the undersigned directors of Cano Petroleum Inc hereby

constitutes and appoints Jeffrey Johnson and Benjamin Daitch or either of them with full power to each of them to act alone his

true and lawful attorney-in-facts and agents with full power of substitution for him and on his behalf and in his name place and

stead in any and all capacities to sign execute and file any and all amendments to this Form 10-K with all exhibits thereto and other

documents in connection therewith with the SEC granting unto said attorneys and each of them full power and authority to do so

and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in and about the premises in order to effectuate the same

as full to all intents and purposes as he himself might or could do if personally present thereby ratifing and confirming all that said

attorneys-in-fact and agents or either of them or their or his substitute or substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done

In accordance with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following persons on

behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature Title Date

IS JEFFREY JOHNSON Chairman of the Board September 22 2010

Jeffrey Johnson

Is RANDALL BOYD Director September 22 2010

Randall Boyd

/s ROBERT GAUDIN Director September 22 2010

Robert Gaudin

Is DONALD NIEMIEC Director September 22 2010

Donald Niemiec

/s WILLIAM POWELL III Director September 22 2010

William Powell III

/s/ GARRETT SMITH Director September 22 2010

Garrett Smith

Is DAVID WEHLMANN Director September 22 2010

David Wehlmann
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Number Description

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Huron Ventures Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys
Registration Statement on Form 10 SB File No 000-503 86 filed with the SEC on September 2003

3.2 Certificate of Ownership of Huron Ventures Inc and Cano Petroleum Inc amending the Companys Certificate of

Incorporation incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-KSB filed

with the SEC on September 23 2004

3.3 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of Cano Petroleum Inc incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3.8 to the Companys Post-Effective Amendment No on Form S-I filed with the SEC on January 23 2007
3.4 Second Amended and Restated By-Laws of Cano Petroleum Inc dated May 2009 incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 13 2009
3.5 Certificate of Designation for Series Convertible Preferred Stock incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to

the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 2004
3.6 Certificate of Designation for Series Convertible Preferred Stock incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to

the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 15 2004
3.7 Certificate of Designation for Series Convertible Preferred Stock incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to

the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 2006
3.8 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Designations Preferences and Rights of Series Convertible Preferred

Stock of the Company incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K

filed with the SEC on June 24 2010

4.3 Form of Common Stock certificate incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to the Companys Registration

Statement on Form S-3 No 333-148053 filed with the SEC on December 13 2007
4.4 Designation for Series Convertible Preferred Stock included in the Certificate of Incorporation of Huron

Ventures Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys registration statement on Form 10 SB
File No 000-503 86 filed with the SEC on September 2003

4.5 Certificate of Designation for Series Convertible Preferred Stock incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to

the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 2004
4.6 Certificate of Designation for Series Convertible Preferred Stock incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to

the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 15 2004
4.7 Certificate of Designation for Series Convertible Preferred Stock incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to

the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 2006
4.8 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Designations Preferences and Rights of Series Convertible Preferred

Stock of the Company incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K

filed with the SEC on June 24 2010

10.1 Stock Option Agreement dated December 16 2004 between Cano Petroleum Inc and Gerald Haddock
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on

December 16 2004

10.2 2005 Directors Stock Option Plan incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report

on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 28 2005
10.3 Cano Petroleum Inc 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan dated December 2005 incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 2005
10.4 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Cano Petroleum Inc 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on

December 19 2005

10.5 Employment Agreement dated effective January 2006 between Cano Petroleum Inc and Jeffrey Johnson

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on

January 19 2006

10.7 Employment Agreement of Patrick McKinney effective June 2006 incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 2006
10.8 First Amendment to Employment Agreement of Patrick McKinney dated November 2006 incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 2006
10.10 Employment Agreement of Michael Ricketts effective July 2006 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1

to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 17 2006
10.13 Amendment No to the Cano Petroleum Inc 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan dated December 28 2006 incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January

2007
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10.14 Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement dated December 28 2006 between Cano Petroleum Inc and Jeffrey Johnson

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on

January 2007

10.18 Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement dated December 28 2006 between Cano Petroleum Inc and Michael

Ricketts incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the

SEC on January 2007

10.21 Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement of Randall Boyd dated December 28 2006 incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 10.77 to the Companys Post-Effective Amendment No on Form S-i File No 333-126167 filed with the

SEC on January 23 2007

10.25 Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement of William Powell III dated April 2007 incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 10.7 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on May 2007

10.26 Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement of Robert Gaudin dated April 2007 incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.8 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form i0-Q filed with the SEC on May 2007

10.27 Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement of Donald Niemiec dated April 2007 incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.9 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on May 2007

10.30 Form of Restricted Stock Award under the Cano Petroleum Inc 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 2007

10.31 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement under the Cano Petroleum Inc 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on

July 2007

10.32 Second Amendment to Employment Agreement of Patrick McKinney dated June 29 2007 incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 2007

10.33 First Amendment to Employment Agreement of Michael Ricketts dated June 29 2007 incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 2007

10.34 Form of the First Amendment to the Cano Petroleum Inc Employee Restricted Stock Award Agreement incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.96 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on

September ii2007

10.35 Form of Restricted Stock Award under the Cano Petroleum Inc 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 10.97 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on September 11

2007

10.38 First Amendment dated June 28 2007 to the Cano Petroleum Inc Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement of James

Dale Underwood dated December 13 2005 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.103 to the Companys

Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on September 11 2007

10.39 First Amendment dated June 28 2007 to the Cano Petroleum Inc Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement of James

Underwood dated December 28 2006 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.104 to the Companys Annual

Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on September 11 2007

10.51 $25000000 Subordinated Credit Agreement dated March 17 2008 among Cano Petroleum Inc as Borrower the

Lenders Party Hereto from Time to Time as Lenders and UnionBanCal Equities Inc as Administrative Agent

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC

on May 2008

10.52 Subordinated Security Agreement dated March 17 2008 among Cano Petroleum Inc Ladder Companies Inc Square

One Energy Inc WO Energy Inc W.O Energy of Nevada Inc Cano Petro of New Mexico Inc Pantwist LLC
W.O Operating Company Ltd W.O Production Company Ltd and UnionBanCal Equities Inc as Administrative

Agent incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with

the SEC on May 2008

10.53 Subordinated Pledge Agreement dated March 17 2008 among Cano Petroleum Inc WO Energy Inc W.O Energy of

Nevada Inc and UnionBanCal Equities Inc as Administrative Agent incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8

to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form i0-Q filed with the SEC on May 2008

10.54 Subordinated Guaranty Agreement dated March 17 2008 by Ladder Companies Inc Square One Energy Inc WO

Energy Inc W.O Energy of Nevada Inc Cano Petro of New Mexico Inc Pantwist LLC W.O Operating

Company Ltd and W.O Production Company Ltd in favor of UnionBanCal Equities Inc as Administrative Agent

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC

on May 2008

10.55 Consent Agreement dated February 21 2008 among Cano Petroleum Inc Ladder Companies Inc Square One
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10.56 First Amendment dated May 31 2008 to Employment Agreement of Jeffrey Johnson dated January 2006

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.84 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC

on September 11 2008

10.57 Third Amendment dated May 31 2008 to Employment Agreement of Patrick McKinney dated June 29 2007 as

amended incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.86 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with

the SEC on September 11 2008
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on September 112008
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on September 11 2008

10.65 Amendment 11 to Valero 1-0838 dated June 12 2006 between W.O Operating Company Ltd and Valero

Marketing and Supply Company confidential treatment has been requested for this exhibit and confidential portions

have been filed with the SEC incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.97 to Amendment No to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-KIA filed with the SEC on July 2009

10.66 Amendment 12 to Valero 01-0838 dated August 23 2006 between W.O Operating Company Ltd and Valero

Marketing and Supply Company incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.98 to Amendment No to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 0-KIA filed with the SEC on July 2009
10.67 Amendment 13 to Valero 01-0838 dated August 31 2007 between W.O Operating Company Ltd and Valero

Marketing and Supply Company confidential treatment has been requested for this exhibit and confidential portions

have been filed with the SEC incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.99 to Amendment No to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-KJA filed with the SEC on July 2009

10.68 Amendment 14 to Valero 01-0838 dated January 25 2008 between W.O Operating Company Ltd and Valero

Marketing and Supply Company confidential treatment has been requested for this exhibit and confidential portions

have been filed with the SEC incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.100 to Amendment No to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-KIA filed with the SEC on July 2009

10.69 Amendment 15 to Valero 01-0838 dated August 2008 between W.O Operating Company Ltd and Valero

Marketing and Supply Company confidential treatment has been requested for this exhibit and confidential portions

have been filed with the SEC incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.101 to Amendment No to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K/A filed with the SEC on July 2009
10.70 Amendment 16 to Valero 01-0838 dated April 2009 between W.O Operating Company Ltd and Valero

Marketing and Supply Company incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.102 to Amendment No to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K/A filed with the SEC on July 2009

10.71 Amendment 17 to Valero 01-0838 dated May 2009 between W.O Operating Company Ltd and Valero Marketing

and Supply Company confidential treatment has been requested for this exhibit and confidential portions have been

filed with the SEC incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.103 to Amendment No to the Companys Annual

Report on Form 10-K/A filed with the SEC on July 2009

10.72 Gas Purchase Agreement dated April 2007 between Eagle Rock Field Services L.P and W.O Operating

Company Ltd and Pantwist LLC confidential treatment has been requested for this exhibit and confidential portions

have been filed with the SEC incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.104 to Amendment No to the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K/A filed with the SEC on July 2009
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10.73 Letter Agreement dated March 25 2009 Regarding Gas Purchase Agreement dated April 2007 Eagle Rock Contract

50038 Schafer between Eagle Rock Energy Partners and W.O Operating Company Ltd confidential treatment has

been requested for this exhibit and confidential portions have been filed with the SEC incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.105 to Amendment No to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K/A filed with the SEC

on July 2009

10.74 Letter Agreement dated April 30 2009 Regarding Gas Purchase Agreement dated April 2007 Eagle Rock Contract

50038 Schafer between Eagle Rock Energy Partners and W.O Operating Company Ltd incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.106 to Amendment No to the Companys Annual Report on Form 0-K/A filed with the SEC

on July 2009

10.76 Letter Agreement Regarding Crude Oil Purchase Agreement for Ladder Energy Operated Leases dated January 15

2009 between Ladder Energy Companies Inc and Coffeyville Resources Refinery and Marketing LLC confidential

treatment has been requested for this exhibit and confidential portions have been filed with the SEC incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.108 to Amendment No to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K/A filed

with the SEC on July 2009

10.77 Letter Agreement Regarding Crude Oil Purchase Agreement for Ladder Energy Operated Leases dated February 11

2009 between Ladder Energy Companies Inc and Coffeyville Resources Refinery and Marketing LLC confidential

treatment has been requested for this exhibit and confidential portions have been filed with the SEC incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.109 to Amendment No to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10 K/A filed

with the SEC on July 2009

10.78 Letter Regarding Gas Purchase Contract No PAM058500 Panhandle Area dated May 21 2009 between W.O
Operating Company Ltd and DCP Midstream incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.113 to Amendment

No to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10 K/A filed with the SEC on July 2009

10.79 Letter Regarding Gas Purchase Contract No BORO66300A Panhandle Area dated May 21 2009 between W.O
Operating Company Ltd and DCP Midstream incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.114 to Amendment

No to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10 K/A filed with the SEC on July 2009

10.80 Letter Regarding Gas Purchase Contract No BORO67500B Panhandle Area dated May 21 2009 between W.O

Operating Company Ltd and DCP Midstream incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.115 to Amendment

No to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10 K/A filed with the SEC on July 2009

10.81 Letter Regarding Gas Purchase Contract No BOR1 8000R Panhandle Area dated May 21 2009 between W.O
Operating Company Ltd and DCP Midstream incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.116 to Amendment

No to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10 K/A filed with the SEC on July 2009

10.82 Letter Regarding Gas Purchase Contract No BOR1 18100 Panhandle Area dated May 21 2009 between W.O

Operating Company Ltd and DCP Midstream incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.117 to Amendment

No to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10 K/A filed with the SEC on July 2009

10.83 Letter Regarding Gas Purchase Contract No BOR1 34200R Panhandle Area dated May 21 2009 between W.O
Operating Company Ltd and DCP Midstream incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.118 to Amendment

No to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10 K/A filed with the SEC on July 2009

10.84 Crude Oil Purchase Agreement Sunoco Reference No 502606 dated February 2000 between Sunoco Inc and

Ladder Energy Company confidential treatment has been requested for this exhibit and confidential portions have been

filed with the SEC incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.119 to Amendment No to the Companys Annual

Report on Form 10 K/A filed with the SEC on July 2009

10.85 Letter of Amendment to the Crude Oil Purchase Agreement Sunoco Reference No 502606 dated September 2005

between Sunoco Partners Marketing Terminals L.P and Ladder Energy Company confidential treatment has been

requested for this exhibit and confidential portions have been filed with the SEC incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.120 to Amendment No to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10K/A filed with the SEC on July

2009

10.86 Letter of Amendment to the Crude Oil Purchase Agreement Sunoco Reference No 502606 dated September 26 2006

between Sunoco Partners Marketing Terminals L.P and Ladder Energy Company confidential treatment has been

requested for this exhibit and confidential portions have been filed with the SEC incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.121 to Amendment No to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10 K/A filed with the SEC on July

2009

10.87 Letter of Amendment to the Crude Oil Purchase Agreement Sunoco Reference No 502606 dated September 11 2008

between Sunoco Partners Marketing Terminals L.P and Ladder Energy Company confidential treatment has been

requested for this exhibit and confidential portions have been filed with the SEC incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.122 to Amendment No to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10K/A filed with the SEC on July

2009
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10.88 Crude Oil Purchase Agreement Sunoco Reference No 521329 dated March 2004 between Sunoco Partners

Marketing Terminals L.P and Square One Energy confidential treatment has been requested for this exhibit and

confidential portions have been filed with the SEC incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.123 to Amendment
No to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10 KJA filed with the SEC on July 2009

10.89 Letter of Amendment to the Crude Oil Purchase Agreement Sunoco Reference No 521329 dated December 2006

between Sunoco Partners Marketing Terminals L.P and Square One Energy Inc confidential treatment has been

requested for this exhibit and confidential portions have been filed with the SEC incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.124 to Amendment No to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10 K/A filed with the SEC on July

2009

10.90 Letter of Amendment to the Crude Oil Purchase Agreement Sunoco Reference No 521329 dated February 16 2009

between Sunoco Partners Marketing Terminals L.P and Square One Energy Inc confidential treatment has been

requested for this exhibit and confidential portions have been filed with the SEC incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.125 to Amendment No to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10 K/A filed with the SEC on July

2009

10.91 Letter of Amendment to the Crude Oil Purchase Agreement Sunoco Reference No 521329 dated April 2009 between

Sunoco Partners Marketing Terminals L.P and Square One Energy confidential treatment has been requested for

this exhibit and confidential portions have been filed with the SEC incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.126

to Amendment No to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10 K/A filed with the SEC on July 2009
10.92 Summary of 2009 Cash Incentive Awards incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on November 10 2008
10.93 Consulting Agreement dated October 2008 between Cano Petroleum Inc and Morris Smith incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 2008
10.94 Amendment to Employment Agreement of Phillip Feiner dated September 2008 incorporated herein-by reference to

Exhibit 10.3 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on November 10 2008
10.95 Letter Agreement Regarding Payment of Prepayment Premium dated September 30 2008 between Unionbancal

Equities Inc and Cano Petroleum Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Companys Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on November 10 2008
10.96 Letter Agreement dated November 19 2008 between Union Bank of California NA and Cano Petroleum Inc

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on

November 20 2008

10.97 Letter Agreement dated November 19 2008 between Unionbancal Equities Inc and Cano Petroleum Inc
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on

November 20 2008

10.98 Temporary Waiver of Benefits dated October 28 2008 between Jeffrey Johnson and Cano Petroleum Inc
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on

July 2009

10.99 First Amendment to the Cano Petroleum Inc 2008 Annual Incentive Plan dated October 20 2008 incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on February 2009

10.100 $120000000 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated December 17 2008 among Cano Petroleum Inc as

Borrower The Lenders Party Thereto From Time to Time as Lenders and Union Bank of California N.A as

Administrative Agent incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-

filed with the SEC on February 2009
10.101 $25000000 Subordinated Credit Agreement dated December 17 2008 among Cano Petroleum Inc as Borrower The

Lenders Party Thereto From Time to Time as Lenders and UnionBanCal Equities Inc as Administrative Agent and as

Issuing Lender incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
filed with the SEC on February 2009

10.102 Amended and Restated Guaranty Agreement dated December 17 2008 by Square One Energy Inc Ladder

Companies Inc W.O Energy of Nevada Inc WO Energy Inc W.O Operating Company Ltd W.O Production

Company Ltd and Cano Petro of New Mexico Inc in favor of Union Bank of California N.A as Administrative

Agent incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with

the SEC on February 2009

10.103 Subordinated Guaranty Agreement dated December 17 2008 by Square One Energy Inc Ladder Companies Inc
W.O Energy of Nevada Inc WO Energy Inc W.O Operating Company Ltd W.O Production Company Ltd and

Cano Petro of New Mexico Inc in favor of UnionBanCal Equities Inc as Administrative Agent incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on February

2009

10.104 Amended and Restated Pledge Agreement dated December 17 2008 among Cano Petroleum Inc WO Energy Inc

and W.O Energy of Nevada Inc and Union Bank of California N.A as Administrative Agent incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on February 2009
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10.105 Subordinated Pledge Agreement dated December 17 2008 among Cano Petroleum Inc W.O Energy Inc and W.O

Energy of Nevada Inc and UnionBanCal Equities Inc as Administrative Agent incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.12 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on February 2009

10.106 Amended and Restated Security Agreement dated December 17 2008 among Cano Petroleum Inc Square One

Energy Inc Ladder Companies Inc W.O Energy of Nevada Inc W.O Energy Inc W.O Operating

Company Ltd W.O Production Company Ltd and Cano Petro of New Mexico Inc and Union Bank of California

N.A as Administrative Agent incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Companys Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on February 2009

10.107 Subordinated Security Agreement dated December 17 2008 among Cano Petroleum Inc Square One Energy Inc

Ladder Companies Inc W.O Energy of Nevada Inc W.O Energy Inc W.O Operating Company Ltd W.O
Production Company Ltd and Cano Petro of New Mexico Inc and UnionBanCal Equities Inc as Administrative

Agent incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with

the SEC on February 2009

10.108 Second Amendment to Employment Agreement dated December 31 2008 between Cano Petroleum Inc and Jeffrey

Johnson incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with

the SEC on February 2009

10.109 First Amendment to Employment Agreement dated December 31 2008 between Cano Petroleum Inc and Ben Daitch

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC

on February 2009

10.110 Fourth Amendment to Employment Agreement dated December 31 2008 between Cano Petroleum Inc and Patrick

McKinney incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed

with the SEC on February 2009

10.111 Fifth Amendment to Employment Agreement dated December 31 2008 between Cano Petroleum Inc and Michael

Ricketts incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with

the SEC on February 2009

10.112 Second Amendment to Employment Agreement dated December 31 2008 between Cano Petroleum Inc and Phillip

Feiner incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with

the SEC on February 2009

10.113 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated September 29 2009 by and among Resaca Exploitation Inc Resaca Acquisition

Sub Inc and Cano Petroleum Inc incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

October 2009

10.114 Gas Purchase Agreement by and between W.O Operating Company Ltd and DCP Midstream L.P effective on July

2009 incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the

SEC on November 13 2009

10.115 Stock Voting Agreement dated as of September 29 2009 by and between Cano Petroleum Inc and D.E Shaw

Laminar Portfolios L.L.C incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

October 2009

10.116 Separation Agreement and Release dated as of September 29 2009 by and among Cano Petroleum Inc Resaca

Exploitation Inc and Jeffrey Johnson incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on October 2009

10.117 Separation Agreement and Release dated as of September 29 2009 by and among Cano Petroleum Inc Resaca

Exploitation Inc and Benjamin Daitch incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to Current Report on Form 8-K

filed on October 2009

10.118 Form of Stock Voting Agreement between Cano Petroleum Inc and certain holders of Series Convertible Preferred

Stock of Cano Petroleum Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Canos Current Report on Form 8-K

filed with the SEC on October 21 2009

10.119 Form of Stock Voting Agreement between Cano Petroleum Inc and Jeffrey Johnson incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Canos Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 21 2009

10.120 Amendment No and Agreement dated December 30 2009 among Cano Petroleum Inc certain Guarantors certain

Lenders and Union Bank N.A incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Canos Current Report on Form 8-K

filed with the SEC on January 2010

10.121 Amendment No and Agreement dated December 30 2009 among Cano Petroleum Inc certain Guarantors certain

Lenders and UnionBanCal Equities Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Canos Current Report on

Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 2010

10.122 Amendment No dated February 24 2010 to Agreement and Plan of Merger dated September 29 2009 by and among

Resaca Exploitation Inc Resaca Acquisition Sub Inc and Cano Petroleum Inc incorporated by reference from

Exhibit 10.1 to Canos Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 25 2010
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10.123 Amendment No dated April 2010 to Agreement and Plan of Merger dated September 29 2009 by and among
Resaca Exploitation Inc Resaca Acquisition Sub Inc and Cano Petroleum Inc incorporated by reference from

Exhibit 10.1 to Canos Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 2010
10.124 Amendment No dated April 28 2010 to Agreement and Plan of Merger dated September 29 2009 by and among

Resaca Exploitation Inc Resaca Acquisition Sub Inc and Cano Petroleum Inc incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.1 to Canos Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 29 2010

10.125 Amendment No and Agreement dated March 30 2010 among Cano certain Guarantors certain Lenders and Union

Bank N.A incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Canos Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC
on March 31 2010

10.126 Amendment No and Agreement dated March 30 2009 among Cano certain Guarantors certain Lenders and

UnionBanCal Equities Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Canos Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on March 31 2010

10.127 Investors Rights Agreement dated April 2010 by and among Resaca Cano and the holders of Resaca preferred

stock incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Canos Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on

April 62010
10.128 Amendment No dated May 19 2010 to Agreement and Plan of Merger dated September 29 2009 by and among

Resaca Exploitation Inc Resaca Acquisition Sub Inc and Cano Petroleum Inc incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.1 to Canos Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 20 2010

12.1 Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

1.1 Subsidiaries of the Company
23.1 Consent of Hem Associates LLP
23.2 Consent of Miller Lents Ltd Independent Petroleum Engineers
23.3 Consent of Haas Engineering Services Inc Independent Petroleum Engineers
24.1 Power of Attorney included on the signature page hereto

31.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer required by Rule 3a- 14a or Rule Sd- 14a of the Exchange Act
promulgated pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification by Chief Financial Officer required by Rule 3a- 14a or Rule 5d- 14a of the Exchange Act
promulgated pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer required by Rule 3a- 14b or Rule Sd- 14b of the Exchange Act and
Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code promulgated pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification by Chief Financial Officer required by Rule 3a- 14b or Rule Sd- 14b of the Exchange Act and
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Oxley Act of 2002

99.1 Report of Haas Petroleum Engineering Services Inc
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Cano Petroleum Inc

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Cano Petroleum Inc and subsidiaries collectively the Company as of

June 30 2010 and 2009 and the related consolidated statements of operations changes in stockholders equity and cash flows for

each of the three years
in the period ended June 30 2010 These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are

free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management

as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial position of

Cano Petroleum Inc and subsidiaries as of June 30 2010 and 2009 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of

the three years in the period ended June 30 2010 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as going concern As

discussed in Note to the financial statements the Company has suffered recurring losses from operations and has net capital

deficiency that raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as going concern Managements plans in regard to these matters

are also described in Note The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this

uncertainty

We were not engaged to examine managements assessment of the effectiveness of Cano Petroleum Inc.s internal control over

financial reporting as of June 30 2010 included in the accompanying Managements Annual Report on Internal Control over

Financial Reporting and accordingly we do not express an opinion thereon

HEIN ASSOCIATES LLP

Dallas Texas

September 22 2010
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CANO PETROLEUM INC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

In Thousands Except Shares and Per Share Amounts

June 30

2010 2009

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 300 392

Accounts receivable 2411 2882
Derivative assets 2968 4955
Assets held for sale Note 3760

Inventory and other current assets 858 810

Total current assets 6537 12799

Oil and gas properties successful efforts method 294961 285063

Less accumulated depletion and depreciation 44615 40057
Net oil and gas properties 250346 245006

Fixed assets and other net 2404 3240
Derivative assets 2882
Goodwill 101 101

TOTAL ASSETS 259388 264028

LIABILITIES TEMPORARY EQUITYAND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 3915 4395

Accrued liabilities 1686 1952

Deferred tax liabilities 1431

Oil and gas sales payable 804 702

Derivative liabilities 410 159

Liabilities associated with discontinued operations Note 123

Current portion of long-term debt Note 66450

Current portion of asset retirement obligations 189 86

Total current liabilities 73454 8848

Long-term liabilities

Long-term debt 55700

Asset retirement obligations 2991 2785
Derivative liabilities 1368

Deferred tax liabilities and other 18992 22831

Total liabilities 96805 90164

Temporary equity

Series convertible preferred stock and cumulative paid-in-kind dividends par value

$.0001 per share stated value $1000 per share 49116 shares authorized 23849
issued at June 30 2010 and 2009 respectively liquidation preference at June 30
2010 and 2009 of $28100 and $26987 respectively 26518 25405

Commitments and contingencies Note 15
Stockholders equity

Common stock par value $.0001 per share 100000000 authorized 47159706 and

45456629 shares issued and outstanding respectively at June 30 2010 and

47297910 and 45594833 shares issued and outstanding respectively at

June 30 2009

Additional paid-in capital 190500 189526

Accumulated deficit 53743 40375
Treasury stock at cost 1703077 shares held in escrow at June 30 2010 and 2009

respectively 697 697
Total stockholders equity 136065 148459

TOTAL LIABILITIES TEMPORARY EQUITY AND STOCKHOLDERS
EQUITY 259388 264028

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements
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CANO PETROLEUM INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

In Thousands Except Per Share Data

Years Ended June 30

2010 2009 2008

Operating Revenues

Crude oil sales 19642 19155 23335

Natural gas sales 3207 3966 7640

Other revenue 312 317

Total operating revenues 22849 23433 31292

Operating Expenses

Lease operating 15720 18535 13016

Production and ad valorem taxes 1856 2111 2129
General and administrative 11818 19156 14859

Exploration expense Note 5024 11379

Impairment of long-lived assets Note 12 283 26670

Depletion and depreciation 4978 5666 3862

Accretion of discount on asset retirement obligations 287 303 203

Total operating expenses 39966 83820 34069

Loss from operations 17117 60387 2777

Other income expense
Interest expense and other 1016 450 687
Impairment of goodwill 685
Gain loss on derivatives 1925 43790 31955

Total other income expense 2941 42655 32642

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes 20058 17732 35419
Deferred income tax benefit 6462 5183 12720

Loss from continuing operations 13596 12549 22699
Income from discontinued operations net of related taxes 2057 12318 5178

Netloss 11539 231 17521

Preferred stock dividend 1829 2730 4083
Preferred stock repurchased for less than canying amount 10890

Net income loss applicable to common stock 13368 7929 21604

Net income loss per share basic and diluted

Continuing operations 0.34 0.10 0.74
Discontinued operations 0.05 0.27 0.15

Net income loss per share basic and diluted 0.29 0.17 0.59

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Basic and Diluted 45560 45980 36355

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements
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CANO PETROLEUM INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Dollar Amounts in Thousands

Balance at July 2007

Issuance of restricted stock

Share-based compensation expense

Net proceeds from issuance of common

shares from private placement and

other

Net proceeds from issuance of common

shares for warrants exercised

Common stock issued for preferred stock

conversion

Preferred stock dividend

Net loss
_______________ _______________ _______________ _______________ _______________

Balance at June 30 2008

Net proceeds from issuance of common

shares on July 12008

Forfeiture and surrender of restricted stock...

Share-based compensation

Preferred stock dividend

Preferred stock repurchased for less than

carrying amount

Shares returned to treasuly stock from

escrow related to acquisition of W.O

Energy of Nevada Inc

Net loss
_______________ _______________ _______________ _______________ _______________

Balance at June 30 2009

Forfeiture and surrender of restricted stock...

Share-based compensation expense

Net proceeds from issuance of common
shares

Preferred stock dividend

Net loss _______________ _______________ _______________ _______________ _______________

Balance at June 30 2010

Total

Stockholders

Equity

68861

2905

23852

5194

4642

4083

17521

571 83850

53908

261

3159

2730

10890

126 126

231

697 148459

71

1043

1829

11.539

697 136065

Additional

Common Stock Paid-in Accumulated Treasury Stock

Shares Amount Capital Deficit Shares Amount

33956392 85239 15810 1268294 571

949000

2905

3575000 23851

1228851 5194

813925 4642

4083

17521

40523168 121831 37414 1268294

7000000 53907

225258 261

-..-.- 3159

2730

10890

434783

231

47297910 189526 40375 1703077

143054 71

1043

4850

1829

11.539

47159706 190500 53743 1703077

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements
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CANO PETROLEUM INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Dollar Amounts in Thousands

Years Ended June 30

2010 2009 2008

Cash flow from operating activities

Netloss 11539 231 17521
Adjustments needed to reconcile net loss to net cash provided

by used in operations

Unrealized loss gain on derivatives 6591 36900 29370
Gain on sale of oil and gas properties 2478 19246
Accretion of discount on asset retirement obligations 284 308 219

Settlement of asset retirement obligations 314
Depletion and depreciation 5005 5735 5009
Exploration expense 5024 11379

Impairment of oil and gas properties 283 30186

Impairment of goodwill 685

Share-based compensation expense 1043 3159 2905
Deferred income tax expense benefit 5288 1731 9901
Amortization of debt issuance costs and prepaid expenses 1758 1457 1312

Treasury stock 126

Changes in assets and liabilities relating to operations

Restricted cash 6000
Accounts receivable 831 1408 844
Derivative assets 346 2423 291
Inventory and other current assets and liabilities 1402 1244 1077
Accounts payable 622 833 405

Accrued liabilities 388 6271 1139

Oil and gas sales payable 103 229 303

Net cash provided by used in operations 211 6609 17028

Cash flow from investing activities

Additions to oil and gas properties fixed assets and other 15912 56202 87393
Proceeds from sale of equipment used in oil and gas operations 3000
Additions to fixed assets and other 129 1333 358
Proceeds from sale of oil and gas properties 6173 40186

Net cash used in investing activities 9868 17349 84751

Cash flow from financing activities

Repayments of long-term debt 3000 128500 23000
Borrowings of long-term debt 13750 110700 63000

Payments for debt issuance costs 933 507
Proceeds from issuance of common stock net 53908 29046

Repurchases of preferred stock 10377
Payment of deferred offering costs 287
Payment of preferred stock dividend 765 1145 1951

Net cash provided by financing activities 9987 23653 66301

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 92 305 1422
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 392 697 2119
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 300 392 697

Supplemental disclosure of noncash transactions

Payments of preferred stock dividend in kind 1113 1585 2132
Preferred stock repurchased for less than carrying amount 10890

Common stock issuedfor preferred stock conversion 4642

Supplemental disclosure of cash transactions

Cash paid during the period for interest 2912 1852 3298

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements
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CANO PETROLEUM INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ORGANIZATION

As of June 30 2010 Cano Petroleum Inc together with its direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries Cano we
us or the Company is an independent crude oil and natural gas company based in Fort Worth Texas Our strategy is to exploit

our current undeveloped reserves and acquire where economically prudent assets suitable for enhanced oil recovery EOR
techniques at low cost We intend to convert these proved undeveloped and/or unproved reserves into proved producing reserves by

applying water gas and/or chemical flooding and other EOR techniques Our assets are located onshore U.S in Texas New Mexico

and Oklahoma

LIQUIDITY GOING CONCERN

At June 30 2010 we had cash and cash equivalents of $0.3 million We had negative working capital of $66.9 million which

includes $66.5 million of long-term debt that was shown as current liability For the year ended June 30 2010 we had cash flow

used in operations of $0.2 million which included $1.9 million of merger-related cash expenses

On July 20 2010 we terminated our announced merger with Resaca Exploitation Inc Resaca that had been initiated

pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated September 29 2009 On July 26 2010 we announced the engagement of

Canaccord Genuity and Global Hunter Securities to assist our Board in review of strategic alternatives with goal of maximizing

economic value for our shareholders The strategic alternatives we are considering include the sale of the Company the sale of some

or all of our existing oil and gas properties and assets and potential business combinations

We currently have limited access to capital On August 2010 we finalized Consent and Forbearance Agreements with the

lenders under our credit agreements that waived potential covenant compliance issues for the periods ending June 30 2010 and

September 30 2010 set certain deadlines for the execution of our strategic alternatives process and allowed us to sell certain natural

gas commodity derivative contracts for cash proceeds of $0.8 million which was intended to provide Cano sufficient liquidity to

complete its strategic alternatives process As discussed in Note to our Consolidated Financial Statements we currently have no

available borrowing capacity under our senior and subordinated credit agreements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis which contemplates

continuity of operations realization of assets and liquidation of liabilities in the ordinary course of business As result of losses

incurred and our current negative working capital there is no assurance that the carrying amounts of assets will be realized or that

liabilities will be settled for the amounts recorded The ability of the Company to continue as going concern will be dependent upon

the outcome of the strategic alternatives review Unless we are able to successfully execute one of our strategic alternatives

restructure our existing indebtedness obtain further waivers or forbearance from our existing lenders or otherwise raise significant

additional capital it is unlikely that we will be able to meet our obligations as they become due and to continue as going concern

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Consolidation and Use of Estimates

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America GAAP and include the accounts of Cano and its wholly-owned subsidiaries Intercompany accounts

and transactions are eliminated In preparing the accompanying financial statements management has made certain estimates and

assumptions that affect reported amounts in the financial statements and disclosures of contingencies Actual results may differ from

those estimates Significant assumptions are required in the valuation of proved crude oil and natural gas reserves which may affect

the amount at which crude oil and natural gas properties are recorded The computation of share-based compensation expense requires

assumptions such as volatility expected life and the risk-free interest rate Our liabilities and assets associated with commodity

derivatives involve significant assumptions related to volatility and future prices for crude oil and natural gas It is at least reasonably

possible these estimates could be revised in the near term and these revisions could be material

Cano Proved Reserves

The term proved reserves is defined by the SEC in Rule 4-10a of Regulation S-X adopted under the Securities Act of 1933

as amended In general proved reserves are the estimated quantities of crude oil natural gas and natural gas liquids that geological or

engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years from known reservoirs under existing
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economic and operating conditions i.e prices based on an unweighted 12-month average and costs as of the date the estimate is

made Prices include consideration of changes in existing prices provided only by contractual arrangements but not on escalations

based on future conditions

Our estimates of proved reserves materially impact depletion expense If proved reserves decline then the rate at which we

record depletion expense increases decline in estimates of proved reserves may result from lower prices new information obtained

from development drilling and production history mechanical problems on our wells and catastrophic events such as explosions

hurricanes and floods Lower prices also may make it uneconomical to drill wells or produce from fields with high operating costs In

addition decline in proved reserves may impact our assessment of our oil and natural gas properties for impairment

Our proved reserves estimates are function of many assumptions all of which could deviate materially from actual results

As such reserves estimates may vary materially from the ultimate quantities of crude oil and natural gas actually produced

Oil and Gas Properties and Equipment

We follow the successful efforts method of accounting Exploration expenses including geological and geophysical expenses

and delay rentals are charged to expense The costs of drilling and equipping exploratory wells are deferred until the Company has

determined whether proved reserves have been found If proved reserves are found the deferred costs are capitalized as part of the

wells and related equipment and facilities If no proved reserves are found the deferred costs are charged to expense All development

activity costs are capitalized We are primarily engaged in the development and acquisition of crude oil and natural gas properties Our

activities are considered development where existing proved reserves are identified prior to commencement of the project and are

considered exploration if there are no proved reserves at the beginning of such project The property costs reflected in the

accompanying consolidated balance sheets resulted from acquisition and development activities and deferred exploratory drilling

costs Capitalized overhead costs that directly relate to our drilling and development activities were $0.8 million and $1.1 million for

the years ended June 30 2010 and 2009 respectively We recorded capitalized interest costs of $2.0 million and $1.4 million for the

years ended June 30 2010 and 2009 respectively

Costs for repairs and maintenance to sustain or increase production from existing producing reservoirs are charged to

expense Significant tangible equipment added or replaced that extends the useful or productive life of the property is capitalized

Costs to construct facilities or increase the productive capacity from existing reservoirs are capitalized

Depreciation and depletion of producing properties are computed on the unit-of-production method based on estimated

proved oil and natural gas reserves Our unit-of-production amortization rates are revised prospectively on quarterly basis based on

updated engineering information for our proved developed reserves Our development costs and lease and wellhead equipment are

depleted based on proved developed reserves Our leasehold costs are depleted based on total proved reserves Investments in major

development projects are not depleted until such project is substantially complete and producing or until impairment occurs As of

June 30 2010 and 2009 capitalized costs related to waterflood and alkaline-surfactant-polymer ASP projects that were in process

and not subject to depletion amounted to $51.6 million and $49.4 million respectively of which $0.0 million and $4.8 million

respectively were deferred costs related to drilling and equipping exploratory wells associated with our ASP project as discussed in

Note

If conditions indicate that long-term assets may be impaired the carrying value of our properties is compared to

managements future estimated undiscounted net cash flow from the properties If undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying

value then the asset value is written down to fair value Impairment of individually significant unproved properties is assessed on

property-by-property basis and impairment of other unproved properties is assessed and amortized on an aggregate basis The

impairment assessment is affected by factors such as the results of exploration and development activities commodity price

projections remaining lease terms and potential shifts in our business strategy

Asset Retirement Obligation

Our financial statements reflect the fair value of our asset retirement obligation ARO which consists of future plugging

and abandomnent expenditures related to our oil and gas properties that can be reasonably estimated and discounted at our credit

adjusted risk-free rate The asset retirement obligation is recorded as liability at its estimated fair value at the assets inception with

an offsetting increase to producing properties on the consolidated balance sheets which is depreciated such that the cost of the ARO is

recognized over the useful life of the asset Periodic accretion of the discount of the estimated liability to its expected settlement value

is recorded as an expense in the consolidated statements of operations
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Inherent in the fair value calculation of ARO are numerous assumptions and judgments including the ultimate settlement

amounts inflation factors credit adjusted discount rates timing of settlement and changes in the legal regulatory environmental and

political environments To the extent future revisions to these assumptions impact the fair value of the existing ARO liability

corresponding adjustment is made to the oil and gas property balance

Goodwill

The amount paid for certain acquisitions in excess of the fair value of the net assets acquired has been recorded as goodwill in

the consolidated balance sheets Goodwill is not amortized but is assessed for impairment annually or whenever conditions would

indicate impairment may exist The goodwill impairment analysis is evaluated at the subsidiary level as part of the impairment

analysis performed on oil and gas properties as previously discussed

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are considered to be all highly liquid investments having an original maturity of three months or less

Excess cash funds are generally invested in U.S government-backed securities At times we maintain deposit balances in excess of

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limits

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable principally consist of crude oil and natural gas sales proceeds receivable and are typically collected

within 35 days from the end of the month in which the related quantities are produced We require no collateral for such receivables

nor do we charge interest on past due balances We periodically review accounts receivable for collectability and reduce the canying

amount of the accounts receivable by an allowance No such allowance was recorded at June 30 2010 or 2009 As of June 30 2010

our accounts receivable were primarily with independent purchasers of our crude oil and natural gas production At June 30 2010 we

had balances due from three customers which were greater than 10% of our accounts receivable related to crude oil and natural gas

production These three customers accounted for 42% Valero Marketing Supply Co 19% Coffeyville Resources Refinery and

Marketing LLC and 18% Plains Marketing LP of our accounts receivable respectively

At June 30 2009 we had balances due from three customers which were greater than 10% of our accounts receivable related

to crude oil and natural gas production These three customers accounted for 41% Valero Marketing Supply Co 19% Coffeyville

Resources Refinery and Marketing LLC and 18% Plains Marketing LP of our accounts receivable respectively

In the event that one or more of these significant customers ceases doing business with us we believe that there are potential

alternative purchasers with whom we could establish new relationships and replace one or more lost purchasers We would not expect

the loss of any single purchaser to have long-term material adverse effect on our operations though we may experience short-term

decrease in our revenues as we make arrangements for alternative purchasers However the loss of single purchaser could

potentially reduce the competition for our crude oil and natural gas production which could negatively impact the prices we receive

Revenue Recognition

Our revenue recognition is based on the sales method We do not have imbalances for natural gas sales since we are primarily

the 100% working interest owner in our properties We recognize revenue when crude oil and natural gas quantities are delivered to or

collected by the respective purchaser Title to the produced quantities transfers to the purchaser at the time the purchaser receives or

collects the quantities Prices for such production are defined in sales contracts and are readily determinable based on publicly

available information The purchasers of such production have historically made payment for crude oil and natural gas purchases

within thirty-five days of the end of each production month We periodically review the difference between the dates of production

and the dates we collect payment for such production to ensure that accounts receivable from the purchasers are collectible The point

of sale for our crude oil and natural gas production is at our applicable field tank batteries and gathering systems therefore we do not

incur transportation costs related to our sales of crude oil and natural gas production

As previously discussed for the years ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 we sold our crude oil and natural gas production

to several independent purchasers The following table shows purchasers that accounted for 10% or more of our total operating

revenues

Year Ended June 30

2010 2009 2008

Valero Marketing Supply Co 33% 32% 33%

Coffeyville Resources Refinery and Marketing LLC 22% 18% 15%

Plains Marketing LP 18% 15%

Eagle Rock Field Services LP 13% 18%

DCP Midstream LP 10% 10% 14%
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Less than 10% of operating revenue

Oil and Gas Sales Payable

Our accounts receivable includes amounts that we collect from the purchasers of our crude oil and natural gas sales on behalf

of us and certain working interest and royalty owners The portion of accounts receivable that pertains to us is recognized as operating

revenue The portion that pertains to certain working interest and royalty owners are included in oil and gas sales payable on our

consolidated balance sheets

Inventoiy

Our inventory consists of unsold barrels of crude oil remaining in our storage tanks at the end of the period We value these

crude oil barrels based on the lower of market or our average production cost

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized for the anticipated future tax effects of temporary differences between the

financial statement basis and the tax basis of our assets and liabilities These balances are measured using tax rates in effect for the

year in which the differences are expected to reverse valuation allowance for deferred tax assets is recorded when it is more likely

than not that the benefit from the deferred tax asset will not be realized As of June 30 2010 we have not recorded any accruals for

uncertain tax positions We are notinvolved in any examinations by the Internal Revenue Service For Texas Oklahoma New Mexico

and U.S federal purposes the review of our income tax returns is open for examination by the related taxing authorities for the tax

years of 2004 through 2009

Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents accounts receivable accounts payable

and accrued liabilities approximate fair value unless otherwise stated as of June 30 2010 and 2009 The carrying amounts for

derivative assets and liabilities are based on mark-to-market valuations

Net Income Loss per Common Share

Diluted net income loss per common share is computed in the same manner as basic net income loss per common share

but also considers the effect of shares of common stock underlying the following

Year Ended June 30
2010 2009 2008

Stock options Note 1310710 1400002 1084051

Preferred Stock Note 4147652 4147652 7734609
Paid-in-kind dividends P1K Note 739347 545773 674569

The shares Of common stock underlying the stock options Preferred Stock and P1K dividends as shown in the preceding

table are not included in weighted average shares outstanding for the years ended June 30 2010 2009 or 2008 as their effects would

be anti-dilutive

Share-Based Compensation Expense

We account for share-based payment arrangements with employees and directors at their grant-date fair value and record the

related expense over their respective service periods The value of share-based compensation is impacted by our stock price which

has been highly volatile and items that require managements judgment such as expected lives and forfeiture rates

Derivatives

We are required to maintain commodity derivative contracts for portion of our crude oil and natural gas production under

our senior and subordinated credit agreements as discussed in Note The purpose of the derivatives is to reduce our exposure to

declining commodity prices By locking in minimum prices we protect our cash flows which support our annual capital expenditure

plans We have entered into commodity derivatives that involve costless collars and swaps for our crude oil and natural gas sales

These derivatives are recorded as derivative assets and liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets based upon their respective fair

values We have entered into an interest rate basis swap contract to reduce our exposure to future interest rate increases
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We do not designate our derivatives as cash flow or fair value hedges We do not hold or issue derivatives for speculative or

trading purposes We are exposed to credit losses in the event of nonperformance by the counterparties to our commodity and interest

rate swap derivatives We anticipate however that our counterparties will be able to fully satisfy their respective obligations under

our commodity and interest rate swap derivatives contracts We do not obtain collateral or other security to support our commodity

derivatives contracts nor are we required to post any collateral We monitor the credit standing of our counterparties to understand our

credit risk

Changes in the fair values of our derivative instruments and cash flows resulting from the settlement of our derivative

instruments are recorded in earnings as gains or losses on derivatives on our consolidated statements of operations

Comprehensive Income

We had no elements of comprehensive income other than net loss for the years ended June 30 2010 2009 or 2008

New Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2008 the FASB issued ASC 815 formerly SFAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging

ActivitiesAn Amendment of FASB Statement 133 ASC 815 expands the required disclosures to discuss the uses of derivative

instruments the accounting for derivative instruments and related hedged items under ASC 815 and how derivative instruments and

related hedged items affect the companys financial position financial performance and cash flows We adopted ASC 815 on July

2009 The adoption of this statement did not have material impact on our financial position results of operations or cash flows

In June 2008 the FASB issued ASC 260 formerly EITF 03-6-1 Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based

Payment Transactions Are Particzpating Securities ASC 260 addresses whether instruments granted in share-based payment

transactions are participating securities prior to vesting and need to be included in the calculation of earnings per share under the two-

class method Under ASC 260 share-based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends are participating

securities and therefore should be included in computing earnings per share using the two-class method ASC 260 is effective for

financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15 2008 We adopted ASC 260 on July

2009 The effect of adopting ASC 260 increased the number of shares used to compute our earnings per share however the adoption

of ASC 260 did not have material impact on our financial position results of operations or cash flows

In December 2008 the FASB issued ASC 815 formerly EITF 07-5 Determining Whether an Instrument or Embedded

Feature Is Indexed to an Entity Own Stock ASC 815 affects companies that have provisions in their securities purchase

agreements e.g convertible instruments that provide for the reset of the current conversion price based upon new issuances by

companies at prices below the current conversion price of said instrument Securities purchase agreements with such provisions will

require the embedded derivative instrument to be bifurcated and separately accounted for as derivative Subject to certain exceptions

our preferred stock provides for resetting the conversion price if we issue new common stock below $5.75 per share ASC 815 is

effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15 2008 We adopted ASC 815

on July 2009 The adoption of this statement did not have material impact on our financial position results of operations or cash

flows as the reset conversion provision did not meet the definition of derivative since it was not readily net-cash settled

On December 31 2008 the SEC issued Release No 33-8995 Modernization of Oil and Gas Reporting which revises

disclosure requirements for oil and gas companies In addition to changing the definition and disclosure requirements for oil and gas

reserves the new rules change the requirements for determining oil and gas reserve quantities These rules permit the use of new

technologies to determine proved reserves under certain criteria and allow companies to disclose their probable and possible reserves

The new rules also require companies to report the independence and qualifications of their reserve preparer or auditor and file reports

when third party is relied upon to prepare reserve estimates or conducts reserve audit The new rules also require that oil and gas

reserves be reported using twelve-month average price rather than period-end prices The new rules are effective for annual reports

on Forms 10-K for fiscal years ending on or after December31 2009 Early adoption of the new rules is prohibited Additionally the

FASB issued authoritative guidance on oil and gas reserve estimation and disclosures as set forth in ASU No 20 10-03 Extractive

ActivitiesOil and Gas Topic 932 to align with the requirements of the SECs revised rules The adoption of this statement did not

have material impact on our financial position results of operations or cash flows

In January 2010 the FASB issued ASU 20 10-06 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic 820 ASU 20 10-06

Subtopic 820-10 provides new guidance on improving disclosures about fair value measurements The new standard requires some

new disclosures and clarifies some existing disclosure requirements about fair value measurement Specifically the new standard will

now require reporting entity should disclose separately the amounts of significant transfers in and out of Level and Level fair

value measurements and describe the reasons for transfers and in the reconciliation for fair value measurements using significant

unoberservable inputs reporting entity should present separately information about purchases sales issuances and settlements In
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addition the new standard clarifies the requirements of the following existing disclosures for purposes of reporting fair value

measurements for each class of assets and liabilities reporting entity needs to use judgment in determining the appropriate classes of

assets and liabilities and reporting entity should provide disclosures about the valuation techniques and inputs used to measure

fair value for both recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements The new standard is effective for interim and annual reporting

periods beginning after December 15 2009 except for the disclosures about purchases sales issuances and settlements in the roll

forward of activity in Level fair value measurements Those disclosures are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15

2010 and for interim periods within those fiscal years Early application is permitted The adoption of the requirements of this

standard in the quarter ended March 31 2010 did not have material impact on our financial position or results of operations

PREFERRED STOCK

On September 2006 we sold $49.1 million of Preferred Stock We were required to file registration statement on

Form S-i with the Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC registering the resale of the common shares underlying the

Preferred Stock which was filed on October 13 2006 and was declared effective on January 2007 On April 2007 we also filed

to register these same common shares on registration statement on Form S-3 which was declared effective on April 19 2007 We
are required to maintain the effectiveness of the registration statement until such common shares may be resold pursuant to Rule 144

under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended or all such common shares have been resold subject to certain exceptions and if the

effectiveness is not maintained then we must pay 1.5% of the gross proceeds and an additional 1.5% for every 30 days it is not

maintained The maximum aggregate of all registration delay payments is 10% of the gross proceeds from the September 2006

offering We do not believe it is probable we will incur any penalties under this provision and accordingly have not accrued any loss

The Preferred Stock has 7.875% dividend and features paid-in-kind P1K provision that allows the investor at its

option to receive additional shares of common stock upon conversion for the dividend in lieu of cash dividend payment Once the

investor has chosen the P1K or cash distribution option all future distributions follow the same choice As of June 30 2009

approximately 59% of the Preferred Stock dividends were P1K The Preferred Stock is convertible at the holders option to common
stock at price of $5.75 per share If any Preferred Stock remains outstanding on September 2011 we are required to redeem the

Preferred Stock for redemption amount in cash equal to the stated value of the Preferred Stock plus accrued dividends and P1K

dividends The issuance of Preferred Stock is accounted for as temporary equity since the holder can request redemption for cash

under certain circumstances

Pursuant to the terms of the Preferred Stock and subject to certain exceptions if we issue or sell common stock at price less

than the conversion price currently $5.75 per share in effect immediately prior to such issuance or sale the conversion price shall be

reduced If such an issuance is made the conversion price will be lowered to the weighted average price of the total common
shares outstanding prior to said issuance multiplied by $5.75 and the new shares issued at the new issuance price The above

described adjustment is not triggered by issuances or sales involving the following shares issued in connection with an employee

benefit plan ii shares issued upon conversion of our Preferred Stock iii shares issued in connection with firm commitment

underwritten public offering with gross proceeds in excess of $50000000 iv shares issued in connection with any strategic

acquisition or transaction shares issued in connection with any options or convertible securities that were outstanding on

August 25 2006 or vi shares issued in connection with any stock split stock dividend recapitalization or similar transaction

Each holder of Preferred Stock is entitled to the whole number of votes equal to the number of shares of common stock

issuable upon conversion The Preferred Stock shall vote as class with the holders of the common stock as if they were single class

of securities upon any matter submitted to the vote of the stockholders except those matters required by law or the terms of the

Preferred Stock to be submitted to class vote of the holders of the Preferred Stock in which case the holders of the Preferred Stock

only shall vote as separate class

Upon voluntary or involuntary liquidation dissolution or winding up of Cano or such subsidiaries of Cano the assets of

which constitute all or substantially all of the assets of the business of Cano and its subsidiaries taken as whole the holders of our

Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive an amount per share equal to $1000 plus dividends owed on such share prior to any

payments being made to any class of capital stock ranking junior on liquidation to the Preferred Stock

At June 30 2010 28100 shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock were outstanding including 4251 shares from P1K

dividends At June 30 2009 26987 shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock were outstanding including 3138 shares from

P1K dividends During November and December 2008 we repurchased 22948 shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock

including accrued dividends and 2323 shares from P1K dividends for approximately $10.4 million realizing gain of $10.9 million

For the year ended June 30 2010 the preferred dividend was $1.8 million of which $1.1 million were P1K dividends For the

year ended June 30 2009 the preferred dividend was $2.7 million of which $1.6 million were P1K dividends
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At June 30 2010 the Preferred Stock and cumulative P1K dividends were convertible into 4147652 and 739347 shares

respectively of our common stock at conversion price of $5.75 per share

On August 2010 we entered into Consent and Forbearance Agreements with the lenders under our credit agreements that

prohibit us from making any indirect or direct cash payment cash dividend or cash distribution in respect of our shares of Series

Convertible Preferred Stock

5.DEBT

At June 30 2010 and 2009 the outstanding amount due under our credit agreements was $66.5 million and $55.7 million

respectively The $66.5 million at June 30 2010 consisted of outstanding borrowings under the amended and restated credit

agreement the ARCA and subordinated credit agreement the SCA of $51.5 million and $1 5.0 million respectively At June 30

2010 the average interest rates under the ARCA and SCA were 2.85% and 6.54% respectively

Forbearance Agreements

On August 2010 we executed Consent and Forbearance Agreement the Senior Forbearance Agreement with Natixis

and Union Bank N.A UBNA relating to existing and potential defaults under the ARCA dated December 17 2008 among Cano
Natixis and UBNA and Consent and Forbearance Agreement together with the Senior Forbearance Agreement the Forbearance

Agreements with UnionBanCal Equities Inc UBE relating to existing defaults under the SCA dated December 17 2008

between Cano and UBE as amended the SCA and together with the ARCA the Credit Agreements Pursuant to the Forbearance

Agreements Natixis UBNA and JiBE agreed to forbear from exercising certain rights and remedies under the Credit Agreements

arising as result of the following defaults the Designated Defaults

Canos failure to pay the amendment fees required by Amendment No to each of the Credit Agreements

Canos failure to provide an Internal Engineering Report and accompanying officers certificate on or before March 30

2010 as required by the Credit Agreements

Canos potentially prohibited cash payments with respect to its shares of Preferred Stock on June 29 2010 and June 30

2010 and

Canos failure to comply with certain financial covenants contained in the Credit Agreements for the quarter ended

June 30 2010 and potential failure to comply with such covenants for the quarter ended September 30 2010

The Forbearance Agreements also contain the following material terms

Natixis UBNA and UBE consent to Canos termination of certain natural gas hedge contracts

Cano may not make any indirect or direct cash payment cash dividend or cash distribution in respect of its shares of

Preferred Stock

Natixis UBNA and UBE agree to forbear from exercising certain rights and remedies under the Credit Agreements

arising as result of Canos potential failure to pay interest upon receipt of default notice on the unpaid principal

amount of each advance under the SCA on September 30 2010

Cano must establish on or before August 10 2010 an electronic data room with information available to persons that

may be interested in consummating an asset purchase merger combination refinancing recapitalization or other similar

transaction with Cano each Prospective Transaction

Cano must execute on or before September 15 2010 letter of intent evidencing the parties intent to consummate

Prospective Transaction that will close on or before October 29 2010 the Definitive Transaction

Cano must execute definitive documentation providing for Definitive Transaction on or before September 30 2010

Cano must close Definitive Transaction on or before October 29 2010
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Cano must deliver to UBNA and UBE weekly written report of the parties visiting the electronic data room and

summary of progress and correspondence with respect to any Prospective Transaction

Cano must pay forbearance fee in an amount equal to 1% of the aggregate principal amount of the advances

outstanding under the Credit Agreements as of August 2010 and the amendment fees required by Amendment No to

each of the Credit Agreements upon receipt of proceeds from Definitive Transaction

The aggregate commitments of Natixis and UBNA to lend to Cano pursuant to the ARCA are permanently reduced to

$51.5 million the current amount outstanding

UBNA and UBE shall not redetermine Canos borrowing bases under the Credit Agreements at any time prior to the

termination of the Forbearance Agreements

The Forbearance Agreements will terminate on the earlier of October 29 2010 the date of Cano failure to comply with any

of the terms described above and the date of the occurrence or existence of any default under either Credit Agreement other than the

Designated Defaults

Regarding our compliance with the material items of the Forbearance Agreements

Prior to August 10 2010 we did establish an electronic data room with information available to persons interested in

consummating Proposed Transaction

On August 10 2010 we sold certain natural
gas commodity derivative contracts to our counterparty UBNA for $0.8

million

At September 15 2010 we were in discussions with parties regarding potential transaction structures and did not deliver

letter of intent pursuant to the Forbearance Agreements as discussed above We continue to work with potential parties

and our lenders on transaction structures

The ARCA and SCA are discussed in greater detail below

ARCA

On December 17 2008 we finalized new $120.0 million Amended and Restated Credit Agreement the ARCA with

UBNA and Natixis UBNA is the Administrative Agent and Issuing Lender of the ARCA The current amount outstanding under the

ARCA is equal to the commitment of $51.5 million Per the terms of the Forbearance Agreement the ARCAs borrowing base shall

not be redetermined

Based upon the terms of the Forbearance Agreement our interest rate is the sum of the one two or three month LIBOR rate

and 2.75% As of the Forbearance Agreement there will not be commitment fee and we are deemed fully borrowed

Unless specific events of default occur the maturity date of the ARCA is December 17 2012 Specific events of default

which could cause all outstanding principal and accrued interest to be accelerated include but are not limited to payment defaults

material breaches of representations and warranties breaches of covenants certain cross-defaults insolvency change in control or

material adverse change Unless we are able to successfully execute one of our strategic alternatives restructure our existing

indebtedness obtain further waivers or forbearance from our existing lenders or otherwise raise significant additional capital it is

unlikely that we will be able to meet our obligations as they become due and to continue as going concern

The ARCA contains certain negative covenants including subject to certain exceptions covenants against the following

incurring additional liens ii incurring additional debt or issuing additional equity interests other than common equity interests

iiimerging or consolidating or selling leasing transferring assigning farming-out conveying or otherwise disposing of any

property iv making certain payments including cash dividends to our common stockholders making any loans advances or

capital contributions to or making any investment in or purchasing or committing to purchase any stock or other securities or

evidences of indebtedness or interest in any person or oil and gas properties or activities related to oil and
gas properties unless

with regard to new oil and gas properties such properties are mortgaged to UBNA as administrative agent or with regard to

new subsidiaries such subsidiaries execute guaranty pledge agreement security agreement or mortgage in favor of UBNA as

administrative agent and vi entering into affiliate transactions on terms that are not at least as favorable to us as comparable arms

length transactions
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SCA

On December 17 2008 we finalized $25.0 million SCA among Cano and UBE as the Administrative Agent On March 17

2009 we borrowed the maximum available amount of $15.0 million under this agreement

The interest rate is the sum of the one two or three month LIBOR rate at our option and 6.0% Through March 17

2009 we owed commitment fee of 1.0% on the unborrowed portion of the available borrowing amount We no longer have

commitment fee since we borrowed the full $15.0 million available amount

Unless specific events of default occur the maturity date is June 17 2013 Specific events of default which could cause all

outstanding principal and accrued interest to be accelerated include but are not limited to payment defaults material breaches of

representations and warranties breaches of covenants certain cross-defaults insolvency change in control or material adverse

change as defined in the SCA Unless we are able to successfully execute one of our strategic alternatives restructure our existing

indebtedness obtain further waivers or forbearance from our existing lenders or otherwise raise significant additional capital it is

unlikely that we will be able to meet our obligations as they become due and to continue as going concern

The SCA contains certain negative covenants including subject to certain exceptions covenants against the following

incurring additional liens ii incurring additional debt or issuing additional equity interests other than common equity interests of

Cano iiimerging or consolidating or selling leasing transferring assigning farming-out conveying or otherwise disposing of any

property iv making certain payments including cash dividends to our common stockholders making any loans advances or

capital contributions to or making any investment in or purchasing or committing to purchase any stock or other securities or

evidences of indebtedness or interest in any person or oil and gas properties or activities related to oil and gas properties unless

with regard to new oil and gas properties such properties are mortgaged to UBE as administrative agent or with regard to new

subsidiaries such subsidiaries execute guaranty pledge agreement security agreement or mortgage in favor of UBE as

administrative agent and vi entering into affiliate transactions on terms that are not at least as favorable to us as comparable arms

length transactions

DERIVATIVES

Our derivatives consist of commodity derivatives and an interest rate swap arrangement which are discussed in greater detail

below

Commodity Derivatives

Pursuant to the ARCA and SCA discussed in Note we are required to maintain our existing commodity derivative

contracts We entered into commodity derivative contracts to partially mitigate the risk associated with extreme fluctuations of prices

for our crude oil and natural gas sales We have no obligation to enter into commodity derivative contracts in the future Should we

choose to enter into commodity derivative contracts to mitigate future price risk we cannot enter into contracts for greater than 85%

of our crude oil and natural gas production volumes attributable to proved producing reserves for given month As of June 30 2010

we maintained the following collar commodity derivative contracts with UBNA as our counterparty which is one of the senior

lenders under the ARCA

Barrels of

Floor Equivalent

Time Floor Ceiling Barrels Gas Ceiling Mcf Oil per

Period Oil Price Oil Price Per Day Price Gas Price per Day Daya

7/1/10 12/31/10 80.00 108.20 333 7.75 9.85 1567b 594

7/1/10- 12/31/10 85.00 101.50 233 8.00 9.40 1033 406

1/1/11 3/31/11 80.00 107.30 333 7.75 11.60 1467b 578

1/1/11 -3/31/11 85.00 100.50 200 8.00 11.05 967 361

This column is computed by dividing the Mcf per Day by and adding it to Barrels per Day
As discussed in Note on August 10 2010 we sold certain natural gas commodity derivative contracts realizing net

proceeds of $0.8 million pursuant to the Forbearance Agreement

During October 2008 we sold certain uncovered floor price commodity derivative contracts for the period July 2010 to

December 2010 for $0.6 million to our counterparty and realized gain of $0.1 million During November 2008 we sold all

remaining uncovered floor price commodity derivative contracts for the period November 2008 through June 2010 for $2.6 million

to our counterparty and realized gain of $0.6 million
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On September 11 2009 we entered into two fixed price commodity swap contracts with Natixis as our counterparty which

is one of our senior lenders under the ARCA The fixed price swaps are based on West Texas Intermediate NYMEX prices and are

summarized in the table below

Time Fixed Barrels

Period Oil Price Per Day

4/1/11 12/31/11 75.90 700

1/1/12-12/31/12 77.25 700

Interest Rate Swap Agreement

On January 12 2009 we entered into three-year LIBOR interest rate basis swap contract with Natixis Financial

Products Inc Natixis FPI for $20.0 million in notional exposure We entered into the interest rate swap agreement to partially

mitigate the risk associated with rising interest rates Under the terms of the transaction we will pay Natixis FPI in three-month

intervals fixed rate of 1.73% and Natixis FPI will pay Cano the prevailing three-month LIBOR rate

Financial Statement Impact

During the years ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively the gain loss on derivatives reported in our

consolidated statements of operations is summarized as follows

Settlements received/accrued on

commodity derivatives

Settlements receivedsale of floor price

contracts on commodity derivatives

Settlements paid/accrued on commodity

derivatives

Settlements paid/accrued on interest rate

swap ___________ ___________ ___________
Realized gain loss on derivatives

Unrealized gain loss on commodity

derivatives

Unrealized gain loss on interest rate

swap

Gain loss on derivatives

The realized gain loss on derivatives consists of actual cash settlements under our commodity collars and interest rate swap

derivatives during the respective periods and the sale of floor price commodity derivative contracts during October and

November 2008 The cash settlements received/accrued by us under commodity derivatives were cumulative monthly payments due to

us since the NYMEX natural gas and crude oil prices were lower than the floor prices set for the respective time periods and realized

gains from the sale of uncovered floor price contracts as previously discussed The cash settlements paid/accrued by us under

commodity derivatives were cumulative monthly payments due to our counterparty since the NYMEX crude oil and natural gas prices

were higher than the ceiling prices set for the respective time periods The cash settlements paid/accrued by us under the interest rate

swap were quarterly payments to our counterparty since the actual three-month LIBOR interest rate was lower than the fixed 1.73%

rate we pay to the counterparty The cash flows relating to the derivative instrument settlements that are due but not cash settled are

reflected in operating activities on our consolidated statements of cash flows as changes to current liabilities At June 30 2010 we had

recorded $0.3 million receivable from our counterparty included in accounts receivable on our consolidated balance sheet At

June 30 2009 we had recorded $0.6 million receivable from our counterparty included in accounts receivable on our consolidated

balance sheet

The unrealized gain loss on commodity derivatives represents estimated future settlements under our commodity

derivatives and is based on mark-to-market valuation based on assumptions of forward prices volatility and the time value of money

as discussed below We compared our internally derived valuation to our counterparties independently derived valuation to further

validate our mark-to-market valuation

Location of Gain Year Ended June 30
Loss Derivative 2010 2009 2008

Other income expense

Other income expense

Other income expense

Other income expense

Other income expense

Other income expense

Other income expense
Other income expense

4940 6840 504

653

550 3089

274 53
4666 6890 2585

6274 36849 29370

317 51

1925 43790 31955
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The unrealized gain loss on interest rate swap represents estimated future settlements under our interest rate swap

agreement and is based on mark-to-market valuation based on assumptions of interest rates volatility and the time value of money as

discussed below

Fair Value Measurements

Our assets and liabilities recorded at fair value are categorized based upon the level ofjudgment associated with the inputs used

to measure their fair value fair value hierarchy has been established that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value The

hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities Level measurement and the

lowest priority to unobservable inputs Level measurement We classify fair value balances based on the observability of those

inputs The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows

Level 1Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that we have the ability to access Active markets

are those in which transactions for the asset or liability occur in sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing

information on an ongoing basis

Level 2Inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets included in Level which are either directly or indirectly

observable These inputs are either directly observable in the marketplace or indirectly observable through corroboration with

market data for substantially the full contractual term of the asset or liability being measured

Level 3Inputs reflect managements best estimate of what market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability at

the measurement date Consideration is given to the risk inherent in the valuation technique and the risk inherent in the inputs

to the model

In valuing certain contracts the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy For

disclosure purposes assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety in the fair value hierarchy level based on the lowest level of

input that is significant to the overall fair value measurement Our assessment of the significance of particular input to the fair value

measurement requires judgment and may affect the placement within the fair value hierarchy levels

The fair value of our derivative contracts are measured using Level and Level inputs The Level input pertained to the

subjective valuation for the effect of our own credit risk which was significant to the fair value of the crude oil swap derivative

contracts The fair value of our commodity derivative contracts and interest rate swap are measured using Level inputs based on the

hierarchies previously discussed

The estimated fair value of derivatives included in the consolidated balance sheet at June 30 2010 is summarized below

In thousands

Derivative assets Level

Crude oil collars and price floorscurrent 1231

Natural gas collars and price floorscurrent 1738

Derivative liability Level

Interest rate swapcurrent 204
Interest rate swapnoncurrent 60

Derivative liability Level

Crude oil swapcurrent 206
Crude oil swapnoncurrent 1308

Net derivative assets 1191

At September 30 2009 our net derivative asset was classified as Level as the subjectivity of our valuation for the effect of our

own credit risk was insignificant At December 31 2009 since the subjective valuation of our own credit risk is significant we

reclassified our derivative liabilities as Level At June 30 2010 we continue to classify our derivative liabilities as Level as

presented in the table below

Purchases

Sales

Issuances

and

Settlements

______________________________________ ______________ ______________
net

______________ ______________ _____________________

Total

Beginning Gains

In thousands Balance Losses

Derivatives assets liabilities 870

Unrealized Gains

Losses for Level

Transfers Assets/Liabilities

into Ending Outstanding at

Level balance June 302010

644 1514 1514
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Total realized and unrealized gains are included in gain loss on commodity derivatives in the consolidated statements of

operations

The following table shows the reconciliation of changes in the fair value of the net derivative assets classified as Level and

respectively in the fair value hierarchy for the year ended June 30 2010 in thousands

In thousands

Balance at June 30 2009

Unrealized loss on derivatives

Settlements net

Balance at June 30 2010

Total Net

Derivative

Assets

Liabilities

7678

6591
104

1191

The change from net derivative assets of $7.7 million at June 30 2009 to net derivative assets of $1.2 million at June 30 2010 is

attributable to the increases in crude oil and natural
gas futures prices These amounts are based on our mark-to-market valuation of

these derivatives at June 30 2010 and may not be indicative of actual future cash settlements

The following table summarizes the fair value of our derivative contracts as of the dates indicated

Derivatives

current

Derivatives

noncurrent

Derivatives

current

Derivatives

noncurrent

Derivatives

2969 current

Derivatives

noncurrent

Derivatives

current

Derivatives

noncurrent

2969

Derivatives

4955 current

Derivatives

2670 noncurrent

Derivatives

current

Derivatives

212 noncurrent

7837

Derivatives

current

Derivatives

noncurrent

Derivatives

current

Derivatives

noncurrent

1778 159

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On October 2008 we completed the sale of our wholly-owned subsidiary Pantwist LLC for net purchase price of

$40.0 million consisting of $42.7 million purchase price adjusted for $2.1 million of net cash received from discontinued operations

during the three months ended September 30 2008 and $0.6 million of advisory fees The sale had an effective date of July 2008

On December 2008 we completed the sale of our Corsicana oil and gas properties the Corsicana Properties for

$0.3 million In the three-month period ended September 30 2008 we recorded $3.5 million $2.3 million after-tax impairment of

the Corsicana Properties as we determined that we would not be developing its proved undeveloped reserves within the next five

years

On January 27 2010 we completed the sale of our interests in certain oil and gas properties located in the Texas Panhandle

Certain Panhandle Properties for net proceeds of $6.2 million subject to customary post-closing adjustments The sale had an

effective date of January 2010

AsseL Derivatives

June 30 2010 June 30 2009 June 30 2010 June 30 2009

Balance Sheet Fair Balance Sheet Fair Balance Sheet Fair Balance Sheet Fair

Location Value Location Value Location Value Location Valuetn thousands

Derivatives not designated as

hedging instruments

Commodity derivative contracts

Commodity derivative contracts

Interest rate swaps

tnterest rate swaps

Total derivatives not designated as

hedging instruments

Total derivatives designated as

hedging instruments

Total derivatives

Liahilitv Derivatives

206

1308

204

60

2969

159

7837 1778 159
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The operating results of Pantwist LLC the Corsicana Properties and the Certain Panhandle Properties for the years ended

June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 have been reclassified as discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of operations as

detailed in the table below in thousands

For the Year Ended June 30

2010 2009 2008

Operating Revenues

Crude oil sales 35 1388 4573

Natural gas sales 972 3666 8798

Total operating revenues 1007 5054 13371

Operating Expenses

Lease operating 178 945 2529

Production and ad valorem taxes 118 438 1225

Impairment of long-lived assets 3516

Depletion and depreciation 27 69 1147

Accretion of discount on asset retirement obligations 16

Interest expense net 43 97 294

Total operating expenses 367 5070 5211

Gain loss on sale of properties 2591 19246 76
Income before income taxes 3231 19230 8084

Income tax provision 1174 6912 2906
Income from discontinued operations 2057 12318 5178

Interest expense net of interest income was allocated to discontinued operations based on the percent of operating revenues

applicable to discontinued operations to the total operating revenues

At June 30 2009 on our consolidated balance sheet the assets relating to the Certain Panhandle Properties are classified as

assets held for sale and the liabilities are classified as liabilities associated with discontinued operations

COSTS INCURRED FOR DRILLING AND EQUIPPING EXPLORATORY WELLS USING SECONDARY AND
TERTIARY TECHNOLOGY

As part of our growth strategy we incur costs associated with secondary and tertiary techniques that involve drilling and

equipping exploratory wells This occurs within reservoirs for which we already have proved developed reserves recorded from

existing primary or secondary development however there are no proved reserves for subsequent secondary or tertiary activities

Secondary and tertiary costs for drilling and equipping wells include converting primary production wells to injection wells

installation of injection facilities and injecting materials When conducting secondary and tertiary drilling and equipping activities we

defer drilling and equipping costs associated with these exploratory wells pending determination of whether proved reserves are

found If proved reserves are not found all of the costs associated with the project are recorded as exploration expense in the period in

which such determination is made If proved reserves are found the drilling and equipping costs incurred in the project are added to

the depletion base and depreciated using the units of production method based over the production life of the associated proved

developed reserves

Secondary and tertiary projects typically take longer to complete than drilling primary production wells and as result the

period during which exploratory drilling costs are deferred is longer Our secondary and tertiary projects are evaluated to determine

whether they have found proved reserves when the project is substantially complete We consider secondary or tertiary project to be

substantially complete when the amount of material injected reaches our target pore volume injection PVI percentage determined

necessary to stimulate response This applied to two projects the Duke Sand waterflood at our Desdemona Properties and the ASP

chemical injection pilot project at the Nowata Properties Nowata ASP Project These two projects are updated as follows

Duke Sand Waterflood The primary source of water for this waterflood project was derived from our Barnett Shale

production During July 2009 we shut-in our Barnett Shale natural gas production due to uneconomic natural gas commodity prices

therefore we no longer have an economic source of water to continue flooding the Duke Sand This reduced our rate of water

injection to point where we could not consider the waterflood to be active We recorded exploration expense of $11.4 million for the

year ended June 30 2009

Nowata ASP Project December 2009 we finalized our performance analysis which indicated the Nowata ASP Project did

not result in significantly increased oil production quantities and is therefore considered not economically viable Accordingly at

December 31 2009 we recorded $5.0 million pre-tax exploration expense
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For the years ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 we did not incur geological and geophysical expenses or delay rentals

associated with exploration projects

The table below summarizes the drilling and equipping costs incurred and deferred related to secondary and tertiary projects

that were pending the determination of whether proved reserves have been found

As of June 30
In Thousands 2010 2009 2008

SecondaryDuke Sand 9857

TertiaryNowata ASP Pilot 4849 3216
Total Costs 4849 13073

The following table provides an aging of deferred exploratory well costs based on the date the project was initiated prior to

determination of success

As of June 30
In Thousands 2010 2009 2008

Capitalized exploratory well costs that have been capitalized period of one year or less 1633 6435

Capitalized exploratory well costs that have been capitalized period of one to three years 3216 6638
Balance at June 30 4849 13073

Number of projects that have exploratory well costs that have been capitalized for

period of one to three years

The following table reflects the net change in deferred exploratory project costs

Years ended June 30
In Thousands 2010 2009 2008

Balance at July 4849 13073 6638
Additions pending the determination of proved reserves 175 3155 6435
Deferred exploratory well costs charged to expense 5024 11379

Balance at June 30 4849 13073

STOCK OPTIONS

Our 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan the 2005 LTIP as approved by our stockholders authorized the issuance of up to

3500000 shares of our common stock to key employees consultants and outside directors of our company and subsidiaries The 2005

LTIP stipulates that for
any calendar year the maximum number of stock options or stock appreciation rights that any Executive

Officer as defined in the Plan can receive is 300000 shares of common stock ii the maximum number of shares relating to

restricted stock restricted stock units performance awards or other awards that are subject to the attainment of performance goals that

any Executive Officer can receive is 300000 shares of common stock and iiithe maximum number of shares relating to all awards

that an Executive Officer can receive is 300000 shares The 2005 LTIP permits the grant of incentive stock options non-qualified

stock options stock appreciation rights restricted stock restricted stock units performance awards dividend equivalent rights and

other awards whether granted singly in combination or in tandem The 2005 LTIP terminates on December 2015 however awards

granted before that date will continue to be effective in accordance with their terms and conditions

Stock option awards are generally granted with an exercise price equal to our market price at the date of grant and have 10-

year contractual terms Stock option awards to employees generally vest over three years of continuous service Stock option awards

to directors generally vest immediately or in one year On June 28 2007 we resolved that upon the resignation of any current member

of the Board of Directors who is in good standing on the date of resignation such members unvested stock options shall be vested

and shall have the exercise period for all options extended to twenty-four months after the date of resignation The grant-date fair

value of director options for which vesting was accelerated during the year ended June 30 2008 amounted to approximately $31000
Such amount is included in general and administrative expense on our consolidated statements of operations There were no options

for which vesting was accelerated during the years ended June 30 2010 or 2009
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summary of options we granted during the years
ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 are as follows

Weighted

Average

Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding at July 12007 801513 5.29

Options granted 398941 6.48

Options forfeited or expired 41403 5.76

Options exercised 75000 5.28

Outstanding at June 30 2008 1084051 5.71

Options granted 577900 1.87

Options forfeited or expired 261949 3.93

Outstanding at June 30 2009 1400002 4.42

Options granted 16032 1.03

Options forfeited or expired 100474 5.24

Options exercised 4850 0.43

Outstanding at June 30 2010 1310710 4.33

The following is summary of stock options outstanding at June 30 2010

Remaining

Contractual

Exercise Options Lives Options

Price Outstanding Years Exercisable

0.43 263921 8.41 263921

0.60 7600 8.34 2534
0.70 3500 8.86

1.03 16032 9.39 16032

3.19 2600 8.20 867

3.27 3000 8.15 1000

3.98 153821 8.08 130955

4.00 50000 4.47 50000

4.13 25000 4.76 25000

4.73 61803 6.77 61803

5.15 78685 5.98 78685

5.42 240000 6.50 240000

5.75 159700 7.65 47998

5.95 10000 7.21

6.15 24200 7.01 24200

6.30 50000 5.46 50000

7.25 150000 7.46 150000

7.47 10848 7.42
_____________

4.33 1310710 7.23 1142995

Based on our $0.77 stock price at June 30 2010 the intrinsic value of both the options outstanding and exercisable options

was $0.1 million

Total options exercisable at June 30 2010 amounted to 1142995 shares and had weighted average exercise price of $4.19

Upon exercise we issue the full amount of shares exercisable pursuant to the terms of the options from new shares We have no plans

to repurchase those shares in the future

The following is summary of options exercisable at June 30 2010 2009 and 2008

Weighted

Average

Shares Exercise Price

June3O2010 1142995 4.19

June 30 2009 943420 4.46

June3O2008 561803 5.75
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The fair value of each stock option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model Expected

volatilities are based on historical volatility of our common stock We use historical data to estimate option exercise and employee

termination within the valuation model The expected lives of options granted represent the period of time that options granted are

estimated to be outstanding The risk-free interest rate for periods within the contractual life of the option is based on the five-year

U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the respective grant The expected dividend yield reflects our intent not to pay

dividends on our common stock during the contractual periods

The factors used to calculate the fair values of those options are summarized in the table below

Years Ended June 30

2010 2009 2008

No of shares 16032 577900 398941

Risk free interest rate 2.19% 2.15-3.39% 2.93-4.07%

Expected life years years years

Expected volatility 98.9% 56.3-90.1% 49.1-49.7%

Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

Weighted average grant date fair valueexercise prices equal to

market value on grant date $0.77 $0.99 $3.18

For the years ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 we have recorded charge to stock compensation expense of

$0.2 million $0.7 million and $1.2 million respectively for the estimated fair value of the options granted to our directors and

employees As of June 30 2010 total compensation cost related to non-vested option awards not yet recognized was insignificant

10 DEFERRED COMPENSATION

We have granted share awards to key employees from our 2005 LTIP previously discussed in Note On July 2007 we

granted our executive officers share awards for services provided during the year ended June 30 2007 totaling 395000 shares vesting

in three equal amounts on the first second and third anniversaries of July 2007

On May 12 2008 we granted our executive officers share awards for services provided during the year ended June 30 2008

totaling 460000 shares vesting in three equal amounts on the first second and third anniversaries of May 12 2008 On June 23 2008
in connection with his hiring we granted an executive officer share awards totaling 100000 shares vesting in three equal amounts on

the first second and third anniversaries of June 23 2008

summary of non-vested share awards for the three years ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 is as follows

Weighted

Average Grant- Fair Value

Shares Date Fair Value $000s

Non-vested share awards at July 2007 95000 5.59 531

Shares granted 955000 6.86 6552
Shares vested 45000 5.55 250
Shares forfeited and surrendered

Non-vested share awards at June 30 2008 1005000 6.80 6833

Shares granted

Shares vested 394376 6.61 2605
Shares forfeited and surrendered 130623 6.76 884
Non-vested share awards at June 30 2009 480001 6.97 3344

Shares granted

Shares vested 239999 6.97 1672
Shares forfeited and surrendered 78334 6.53 512
Non-vested share awards at June 30 2010 161668 7.18 1160

The shares will vest to the individual employees based on future years of service ranging from one to three years depending

on the life of the award agreement The fair value of the grants is based on our actual stock price on the date of grant multiplied by the

number of restricted shares granted As of June 30 2010 the value of non-vested share awards amounted to $1.2 million For the

years ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 we have recorded share-based compensation of $0.8 million $2.4 million and

$1.7 million respectively in general and administrative expense based on amortizing the fair value over the requisite service period
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11 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Jeffrey Johnson our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of our board of directors owns approximately 3.7% of our

outstanding Preferred Stock For the years ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 we paid preferred dividend payments to Mr Johnson

of approximately $79000 $20000 and $0 respectively On August 2010 we entered into Consent and Forbearance Agreements

with the lenders under our credit agreements that prohibit us from making any indirect or direct cash payment cash dividend or cash

distribution in respect of our shares of Series Convertible Preferred Stock

Pursuant to an agreement dated December 16 2004 as amended we agreed with R.C Boyd Enterprises Delaware

corporation to become the lead
sponsor

of television production called Honey Hole Honey Hole Production As part of our

sponsorship we provided fishing and outdoor opportunities for children with cancer children from abusive family situations and

children of military veterans We were entitled to receive two thirty-second commercials during all broadcasts of the Honey Hole

Production and received opening and closing credits on each episode Randall Boyd is the sole shareholder of R.C Boyd Enterprises

and is member of our Board of Directors Pursuant to an agreement dated as of December 2007 as of December 31 2008 we are

no longer Honey Hole Production sponsor We paid no money to R.C Boyd Enterprises after December 31 2008 During the years

ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 we paid $0 $75000 and $150000 respectively for sponsorship activities

12 IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS AND GOODWILL

During the three-month period ended December 31 2009 we wrote down $0.3 million of costs associated with the ASP

facility used for the Nowata ASP Project The facilitys water filtering process did not work properly with the oil-water fluid

production at our Nowata Properties We intend to use the ASP facility for future pilot tertiary projects at our Cato and Panhandle

Properties

During the three-month period ended December 31 2008 we recorded $22.4 million pre-tax impairment to our Barnett

Shale natural gas properties Barnett Shale Properties and $0.7 million pre-tax impairment to the goodwill associated with our

subsidiary which holds the equity in our Barnett Shale Properties We recorded the impairments due to the decline in commodity

prices which created an uncertainty in the likelihood of developing reserves associated with our Barnett Shale Properties within the

next five years During the three- month period ended June 30 2009 we recorded an additional $4.3 million pre-tax impairment to our

Barnett Shale Properties as the forward outlook for natural gas prices continued to decline

During the quarter ended September 30 2008 we recorded $3.5 million pre-tax impairment on our Corsicana Properties as

it became unlikely that we would develop this asset within the next five years During the quarter ended December 31 2008 this

$3.5 million charge was reclassified as part of income from discontinued operations as shown on our consolidated statements of

operations As previously discussed in Note on December 2008 we sold our interest in the Corsicana Properties for $0.3 million

The fair values for our Bamett Shale and Corsicana Properties were determined using estimates of future net cash flows

discounted to present value which are considered Level inputs as previously discussed in Note

13 ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION

Our asset retirement obligation ARO primarily represents the estimated present value of the amount we will incur to plug

and abandon our producing properties at the end of their productive lives in accordance with applicable state laws We determine our

ARO by calculating the present value of estimated cash flows related to the liability At June 30 2010 our liability for ARO was

$3.2 million of which $3.0 million was considered long term At June 30 2009 our liability for ARO was $2.9 million of which $2.8

was considered long term Our ARO is recorded as current or non-current liabilities based on the estimated timing of the related cash

flows For the years ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 we have recognized accretion expense net of discontinued operations of

$0.3 million $0.3 million and $0.1 million respectively

The valuation technique we utilize to determine the fair value of the liability at inception applies credit-adjusted risk-free rate

which takes into account our credit risk the time value of money and the current economic state to the undiscounted expected

plugging and abandonment cash flows Given the unobservable nature of certain inputs the initial measurement of the asset

retirement obligation liability is deemed to use Level inputs as previously discussed in Note

F-23



The following table describes the changes in our ARO for the years ended June 30 2010 and 2009 in thousands

Asset retirement obligation at July 2008

Accretion of discount

Change in estimate

Liabilities incurred for properties acquired and drilled

Sale of oil and gas properties Note
Liabilities settled net

Asset retirement obligation at June 30 2009

Accretion of discount

Change in estimate

Liabilities settled net

Asset retirement obligation at June 30 2010

3403

303

623
39

226
25

2871

287

336

314
3180

For the years ended June 10 2010 and 2009 the change in estimate of our ARO liability resulted primarily from change in

estimated timing to plug and abandon wells

14 INCOME TAXES

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax provisions Our income tax expense benefit is as

follows

In Thousands

Current income tax expense benefit

Federal

State
__________ __________ __________

Total current tax expense benefit

Deferred income tax benefit

Federal

State
__________ __________ __________

Total deferred tax benefit
_________ _________ _________

Total income tax benefit

reconciliation of the differences between our applicable statutory tax rate and our effective income tax rate for the years

ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 is as follows

In Thousands except

Rate

Tax at statutory rate

State taxes

Increase decrease resulting from

Change in state rate

Permanent and other

Differences in share-based compensation expense

Goodwill impairment

Income tax benefit

Years Ended June 30
2010 2009 2008

35% 35% 35%

7043 6206 $12396
179 240 161

Years Ended June 30

2010 2009 2008

61 114

61 114

6423 5423 12504
39 301 330

6462 5122 12834
6462 5183 12720

140

101 64 163
519 472

247

6462 5183 $12720
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schedule showing the significant components of the net deferred tax liability as of June 30 2010 and 2009 are as follows

As of June 30

In Thousands 2010 2009

Current

Deferred tax assets

Unrealized loss on commodity derivatives 540

Other 413 305

Total current deferred tax assets 953 305

Deferred tax liabilities

Unrealized gain on commodity derivatives 937 1736
Total current deferred tax liabilities 937 1736

Net current deferred tax asset liability 16 1431

Long-Term
Deferred tax assets

Deferred compensation expense 2108 2327

Net operating loss carryovers 30641 12463

Unrealized loss on commodity derivatives 438

Other 341 415

33528 15205

Less valuation allowance 770 770
Total long-term deferred tax assets 32758 14435

Deferred tax liabilities

Difference in book and tax bases

Oil and
gas properties 51750 36122

Unrealized gain on commodity derivatives 1144
Total lông-term deferred tax liabilities 51750 37266

Net long-term deferred tax liability 18992 22831

At June 30 2010 and 2009 we had net operating loss NOL canyforwards for tax purposes of approximately

$84.6 million and $49.0 million respectively The net operating losses principally expire between 2024 and 2030 $2.2 million of

these NOL carryforwards will be unavailable to offset any future taxable income due to limitations from change in ownership which

occurred at our merger in May 2004 as defined in Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Service code The tax effect of this limitation

is recorded as valuation allowance of $770000 at both June 30 2010 and 2009

15 COMMITMENTS AND CONTP4GENCIES

Burnett Case

On March 23 2006 the following lawsuit was filed in the 100th Judicial District Court in Carson County Texas Cause

No 9840 The Tom and Anne Burnett Trust by Anne Burnett Windfohr Windi Phillips Ben Fortson Jr George Beggs III and Ed

Hudson Jr as Co-Trustees Anne Burnett Windfohr and Burnett Ranches Ltd Cano Petroleum Inc W.O Energy of

Nevada Inc Operating Company Ltd and WO Energy Inc The plaintiffs claim that the electrical wiring and equipment of

Cano or certain of its subsidiaries relating to oil and natural gas operations started wildfire that began on March 12 2006 in Carson

County Texas

The plaintiffs allege negligence and gross negligence and ii seek damages including but not limited to damages for

damage to their land and livestock certain expenses related to fighting the fire and certain remedial expenses totaling approximately

$1.7 million to $1.8 million In addition the plaintiffs seek termination of certain oil and natural gas leases ii reimbursement for

their attorneys fees in the amount of at least $549000 and iii exemplary damages The plaintiffs also claim that Cano and its

subsidiaries are jointly and severally liable as single business enterprise and/or general partnership or de facto partnership The

owner of the remainder of the mineral estate Texas Christian University intervened in the suit on August 18 2006 joining Plaintiffs

request to terminate certain oil and gas leases On June 21 2007 the judge of the 100th Judicial District Court issued Final Judgment

granting motions for summary judgment in favor of Cano and certain of its subsidiaries on plaintiffs claims for breach of

contract/termination of an oil and gas lease and ii negligence and granting the plaintiffs no-evidence motion for summary

judgment on contributory negligence assumption of risk repudiation and estoppel affirmative defenses asserted by Cano and certain

of its subsidiaries
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The Final Judgment was appealed and decision was reached on March 11 2009 as the Court of Appeals for the Tenth

District of Texas in Amarillo affirmed in part and reversed in part the ruling of the 100th Judicial District Court The Court of Appeals

affirmed the trial courts granting of summary judgment in Canos favor for breach of contract/termination of an oil and gas lease

and reversed the trial courts granting of summary judgment in Cano favor on plaintiffs claims of Cano negligence The Court

of Appeals ordered the case remanded to the 100th Judicial District Court On March 30 2009 the plaintiffs filed motion for

rehearing with the Court of Appeals and requested rehearing on the affirmance of the trial cOurts holding on the plaintiffs breach of

contract/termination of an oil and gas lease claim On June 30 2009 the Court of Appeals ruled to deny the plaintiffs motion for

rehearing On August 17 2009 we filed an appeal with the Texas Supreme Court to request the reversal of the Court of Appeals ruling

regarding our potential negligence On December 11 2009 the Texas Supreme Court declined to hear Canos appeal Therefore this

case has been remanded to the district court for trial on the negligence claims and the trial date has been set for November 2010

Due to the inherent risk of litigation the ultimate outcome of this case is uncertain and unpredictable At this time Cano

management continues to believe that this lawsuit is without merit and will continue to vigorously defend itself and its subsidiaries

while seeking cost-effective solutions to resolve this lawsuit Based on our knowledge and judgment of the facts as of September 22

2010 we believe our financial statements present fairly the effect of the actual and the anticipated future costs to resolve this matter as

of June 30 2010

There is no remaining insurance coverage for any claims associated with this fire litigation

Securities Litigation against Outside Directors

On October 2008 lawsuit 08 CV 8462 was filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New

York against David Wehlmann Gerald Haddock Randall Boyd Donald Niemiec Robert Gaudin William

Powell III and the underwriters of the June 26 2008 public offering of Cano common stock Secondary Offering alleging

violations of the federal securities laws Messrs Wehlmann Haddock Boyd Niemiec Gaudin and Powell were Cano outside

directors on June 26 2008 At the defendants request the case was transferred to the United States District Court for the Northern

District of Texas

On July 2009 the plaintiffs filed an amended complaint that added as defendants Cano Canos Chief Executive Officer

and Chairman of the Board Jeff Johnson Canos former Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Morris Sam Smith

Canos current Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Ben Daitch Canos Vice President and Principal Accounting

Officer Michael Ricketts and Canos former Senior Vice President of Engineering and Operations Patrick McKinney and dismissed

Gerald Haddock former director of Cano as defendant The amended complaint alleges that the prospectus for the Secondary

Offering contained statements regarding Canos proved reserve amounts and standards that were materially false and overstated

Canos proved reserves The plaintiff is seeking to certif the lawsuit as class action lawsuit and is seeking an unspecified amount of

damages On July 27 2009 the defendants moved to dismiss the lawsuit On December 2009 the U.S District Court for the

Northern District of Texas granted motions to dismiss all claims brought by the plaintiffs On December 18 2009 the plaintiffs filed

notice of appeal with the U.S Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit On April 2010 Cano filed its appellate brief to support its

position On April 19 2010 the plaintiffs filed their response brief On August 2010 the U.S Court of Appeals for the Fifth

Circuit affirmed the dismissal by the U.S District Court for the Northern District of Texas of all claims by the plaintiffs By affirming

the decision of the lower court the U.S Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit agreed that the plaintiffs complaint failed to state

claim upon which relief could be granted and thus found merit in dismissing the lawsuit Due to the inherent risk of litigation the

outcome of this lawsuit is uncertain and unpredictable however Cano its officers and its outside directors intend to continue to

vigorously defend the lawsuit

Cano is cooperating with its directors and officers liability insurance carrier regarding the defense of the lawsuit We believe

that the potential amount of losses resulting from this lawsuit in the future if any will not exceed the policy limits of Canos
directors and officers liability insurance

Other

Occasionally we are involved in other various claims and lawsuits and certain governmental proceedings arising in the

ordinary course of business Our management does not believe that the ultimate resolution of any current matters that are not set forth

above will have material effect on our financial position or results of operations Managements position is supported in part by the

existence of insurance coverage indemnification and escrow accounts None of our directors officers or affiliates owners of record or

beneficial owners of more than five percent of any class of our voting securities or security holder is involved in proceeding adverse

to us or our subsidiaries or has material interest adverse to us or our subsidiaries
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Section 7.6 of the Merger Agreement with Resaca provided for the Company and Resaca to share transaction expenses

related to the printing filing and mailing of the registration statement the proxy/prospectus and the solicitation of stockholder

approvals On September 2010 we filed an action against Resaca in the Tarrant County District Court seeking declaratory

judgment to clarify the scope and determine the amount of any expenses that are reimbursable under Section 7.6 of the Merger

Agreement

Environmental

To date our expenditures to comply with environmental or safety regulations have not been significant and are not expected

to be significant in the future However new regulations enforcement policies claims for damages or other events could result in

significant future costs

Leases

Effective June 2009 we entered into non-cancelable operating lease for our principal executive offices in Fort Worth

Texas The lease expires on May 31 2014 In addition during October 2005 we entered into five-year operating lease for our field

offices in Pampa Texas expiring on October 2010 We have also contracted for various equipment rentals at our field locations

Our remaining obligation for the life of our operating leases is $2.6 million Future minimum rentals due under our non-cancellable

operating leases were as follows on June 30 2010

In Thousands 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Total

Total operating lease obligations 633 630 664 635 2562

Rent expense amounted to $0.7 million $0.3 million and $0.4 million for the years ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008

respectively

Employment Contracts

We have employment contracts with our executives that specify annual compensation and provide for potential payments up

to three times the annual salary and bonuses and immediate vesting of unexercised stock options and restricted stock under

termination or change in control circumstances The annual salaries and contract termination dates for each executive are as follows

Contract

Annual Termination

Compensation Date

Chief Executive Officer 545144 May 31 2011

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 250000 June 23 2011

Vice President and Principal Accounting Officer 187000 May 31 2011

Vice President General Counsel and Corporate Secretary 170000 May 31 2011

16 SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR OIL AND GAS PRODUCING ACTIVITIES

All of our operations are directly related to oil and natural gas producing activities located in Texas Oklahoma and New

Mexico

Capitalized Costs Relating to Oil and Gas Producing Activities

June 30

In Thousands 2010 2009

Mineral interests in oil and gas properties

Proved 77357 77355

Unproved

Wells and related equipment and facilities 161965 154826

Support equipment and facilities used in oil and gas producing

activities 4031 3596

Uncompleted wells equipment and facilities 51608 49286

Total capitalized costs 294961 285063

Less accumulated depletion and depreciation 44615 40057

Net capitalized costs 250346 245006
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Costs Incurred in Oil and Gas Producing Activities

Years Ended June 30
In Thousands 2010 2009 2008

Acquisition of proved properties 77 899

Acquisition of unproved properties

Development costs 9721 48657 77868

Exploration costs 175 2967 6629

Total costs incurred net of sale of oil and gas properties 9898 51701 85396

Proved Reserves Methodology

Our estimated proved reserves as of June 30 2010 include the effect of the SECs revised oil and gas rules Modernization

of Oil and Gas Reporting issued in December 2008 which is effective for annual reports on Forms 10-K for fiscal years ending on

or after December 31 2009 The revised SEC rules include changes to the pricing used to estimate reserves the ability to include

nontraditional resources in reserves the use of new technology for determining reserves and permitted disclosure of probable and

possible reserves accordance with the SECs revised oil and gas rules prior period reserves were not restated The pricing used to

estimate the reserves as of June 30 2010 is based on an unweighted average first-day-of-the-month pricing for the past 12 fiscal

months for crude oil and natural gas

Our proved oil and natural gas reserves as of June 30 2010 have been prepared by Haas Petroleum Engineering Services Inc

Haas our independent petroleum engineers The technical personnel responsible for preparing the reserve estimates at Haas meet

the requirements regarding qualifications independence objectivity and confidentiality set forth in the SPE Standards Haas is an

independent firm of petroleum engineers geologists geophysicists and petrophysicists they do not own an interest in our properties

and are not employed on contingent fee basis For the years ended June 30 2009 and 2008 our proved oil and natural gas reserves

were prepared by Miller and Lents LTD

The process for preparation of our oil and gas reserves estimates is completed in accordance with our prescribed internal

control procedures which include verification of data management review and review of the independent third party reserves report

Our reserve estimates are prepared in compliance with SEC rules regulations and guidance and prepared in accordance with

Standards Pertaining to the Estimating and Auditing of Oil and Gas Properties Information Revision as of February 19 2007

promulgated by the Society of Petroleum Engineers SPE Standards Our reserve reports are prepared by registered independent

engineering firm at the end of every year based on information provided by our Engineering and Operations Department The

technical employee responsible for overseeing the process for preparation of the reserves estimates has Bachelor of Science in

Petroleum Engineering and more than five years of experience in reservoir engineering and is memberof the Society of Petroleum

Engineers Our senior management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer reviews our reserves estimates

before these estimates are finalized and disclosed in public filing or presentation

Our Engineering and Operations Department accumulates historical production data for our wells calculates historical lease

operating expenses and commodity price differentials updates working interests and net revenue interests obtains updated

authorizations for expenditure and obtains logs 3-D seismic and other geological and geophysical information This data is forwarded

to our registered independent engineering firm

Proved Reserves Unaudited

The term proved reserves is defined by the SEC in Rule 4-10a of Regulation S-X adopted under the Securities Act of 1933

as amended In general proved reserves are the estimated quantities of crude oil natural gas and natural gas liquids that geological or

engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years from known reservoirs under existing

economic and operating conditions i.e prices and costs as of the date the estimate is made Prices include consideration of changes in

existing prices provided only by contractual arrangements but not on escalations based on future conditions

There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating oil and natural gas reserves and their estimated values including

many factors beyond our control The reserve data set forth in the reports of our registered independent engineering firms represents

only estimates Reservoir engineering is subjective process of estimating underground accumulations of oil and natural gas that

cannot be measured in an exact manner The accuracy of any reserve estimate is function of the quality of available data and of

engineering and geologic interpretation and judgment As result estimates of different engineers including those used by us may
vary th addition estimates of reserves are subject to revision based upon actual production results of future development and

exploration activities prevailing oil and natural gas prices operating costs and other factors The revisions may be material

Accordingly reserve estimates are often different from the quantities of oil and natural gas that are ultimately recovered and are
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highly dependent upon the accuracy of the assumptions upon which they are based Our estimated net proved reserves included in our

SEC filings have not been filed with or included in reports to any other federal agency Estimated quantities of net proved reserves

and future net revenues are affected by oil and natural gas prices which have fluctuated widely in recent years

Our estimates of proved reserves materially impact depletion expense If proved reserves decline then the rate at which we

record depletion expense increases reducing net income decline in estimated proved reserves may result from lower prices adverse

operating history mechanical problems on our wells and catastrophic events such as explosions hurricanes and floods Lower prices

also may make it uneconomic to drill wells or produce from fields with high operating costs In addition decline in proved reserves

may impact our assessment of our crude oil and natural gas properties for impairment Seventy-nine percent of our proved reserves are

classified as proved undeveloped reserves Capital expenditures forecasted in our reserve report amount to approximately

$31 0.5million throughout the life of our proved reserves Further capital expenditures exceed our expected operating cash flows in

our reserve report for the five-year period succeeding June 30 2010 As we have done during each year of our existence to develop

our reserves as reported in our June 30 2010 reserve report we will require access to the capital markets and/or consider divestitures

of oil and gas properties in each of the next five years as our projected capital expenditures are greater than projected cash flow from

operations through December 2015

Our proved reserves are summarized in the table below

Crude Oil Natural Gas Total Reserves

Mbbls MMcf MBOE

Reserves at July 2007 42330 146340 66720

Purchases of minerals in place 1592 1680 1872

Extensions and discoveries 3894 10861 5704
Revisions of prior estimates 8403 73097 20586
Production 297 1345 521
Reserves at June 30 2008 39116 84439 53189

Purchases of minerals in place 2544 472 2623
Extensions and discoveries 1240 7886 2554
Revisions of prior estimates 1338 14191 3703
Production 311 881 458
Reserves at June 30 2009 38771 61953 49097
Extensions and discoveries 133 880 279

Sale of minerals in place 13 2993 512
Revisions of prior estimates 5282 4213 5983
Production 290 671 402
Reserves at June 30 2010 33319 54956 42479

Proved developed reserves at June 30 2008 8118 29886 13099

Proved developed reserves at June 30 2009 7027 18322 10081

Proved developed reserves at June 30 2010 6344 11705 8295

The revised proved reserve definition incorporates new definition of reasonable certainty using the standard of high

degree of confidence specified as 90 percent recovery probability used in estimating proved reserves The new SEC rules permit the

Company to report probable and possible reserves which are less certain than the 90 percent recovery probability applied to proved

reserves Our reserves report as of June 30 2010 as prepared by Haas identified undeveloped probable and possible reserves Our

undeveloped probable reserves totaled crude oil and natural gas reserves of 10442 Mbbls and 23519 MMcf respectively Our

possible reserves totaled crude oil and natural gas reserves of 8563 Mbbls and 5968 MMcf respectively

Reserve estimates using the SEC revised rules approximated the reserves estimated under the previous SEC reporting

requirements Therefore the impact to depletion and depreciation expense was minimal Under the SEC revised rules the

standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows was approximately $15.0 million lower as compared to the previous SEC

reporting requirements

For the proved reserves as of June 30 2010 the prices used to compute the crude oil and natural gas proved reserves

represent the unweighted average first-day-of-the-month NYMEX crude oil and natural prices for the past 12 fiscal months ended

June 30 2010 pursuant to the previously discussed SECs final rule which amounted to $75.76 per barrel and $4.10 per MMBtu
respectively
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For the proved reserves as of June 30 2009 and 2008 the base prices used to compute the crude oil and natural gas reserves

represent the NYMEX oil and natural gas prices at June 30 2009 and 2008 For the reserves at June 30 2009 the crude oil and natural

gas prices were $69.89 per barrel and $3.71 per MMbtu respectively For the reserves at June 30 2008 the crude oil and natural gas

prices were $140.00 per barrel and $13.15 per MMbtU respectively

Change in Reserves at June 30 2010

Extensions and discoveries totaling 0.3 MMBOE resulted primarily from newly identified behind-pipe opportunities at our

Cato and Panhandle Properties

Sales of minerals in place resulted from the sale of certain wells in the Panhandle Properties as discussed in Note

Revisions in previous quantity estimate resulted primarily from reduced PUD reserves at the Panhandle Properties of 4.4

MMBOE and reduced PDP reserves at the Cato Properties of 0.9 MMBOE

Haas utilized the East Schafer Ranch waterflood as the analogy for assessing the PUD reserves for each lease of the

Panhandle Properties The East Shafer Ranch waterflood experienced secondary recovery
of 11% of the original oil in place or

OOIP which equated to secondary to primary ratio of 0.35 Haas based solely on its professional experience and engineering

judgment determined that for the purpose of reporting the Panhandle Properties proved reserves they would limit each of the

Panhandle Properties waterflood recovery factors to 0.35 secondary to primary ratio as maximum and not use percentage of

OOIP to determine proved reserves In some cases adjustments were made since the by lease production history appeared to have

allocation issues Haas decision to limit proved reserve recovery based upon 0.35 secondary to primary ratio resulted in proved

reserve decrease of 3.1 MMBOE Further Haas looked at the delayed responses Cano has experienced at its Cockrell Ranch unit

along with reservoir conformance and permeability trends analyzed from core data and decided to limit proved reserves to 0.175

secondary to primary ratio for the Cockrell Ranch and the adjacent Pond Lease resulting in proved reserve decrease of 1.3

MMBOE Haas determined that the reductions to the combined companys proved reserves would be validly reclassified as probable

reserves as proved reserves indicate 90% likelihood that production will meet or exceed the booked value while probable reserves

require 50% confidence level to be so classified

The reduction of PDP reserves at Cato Properties is result of lower field production rates associated with lower water

injection rates at the waterflood

Change in Reserves at June 30 2009

The extensions and discoveries pertain to our drilling and completing wells and results of the waterflood project in the

San Andres formation at our Cato Properties

The sales of minerals in place pertain to our divestitures of oil and natural gas properties located in Texas as discussed in

Note

The reduction for revisions of prior estimates pertain to the impairments of our Barnett Shale Properties Note 12 of 2.3

MMBOE and other revisions of 1.4 MMBOE driven primarily from the decline in commodity prices and forecast

changes which reduced the economic life of our assets as compared to proved reserves as of June 30 2008 The specific

field changes are as follows

At the Desdemona Properties Barnett Shale production performance due to price accounted for 0.4 MMBOE of

negative revisions in PDP partially offset by positive 0.1 MMBOE at the Desdemona Properties Duke Sands

projects due to improved recoveries

At the Davenport Properties commodity price-related effects reduced PDP reserves by 0.2 MMBOE

At the Nowata Properties improved recoveries increased PDP reserves by 0.1 MMBOE

At the Panhandle Properties PDP reserves decreased 1.3 MMBOE largely as result of transferring 0.7 MMBOE to

PUD reserves commodity price-related effects and production which was partially offset by increased PUD

reserves of 0.3 MMBOEa net reduction of 1.0 MMBOE
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Change in Reserves at June 30 2008

The purchases of minerals in place pertain to our acquisitions of oil and natural gas properties located in the Texas

Panhandle Panhandle Properties

The extensions and discoveries pertain to our drilling and completing wells at the Cato Properties and the Panhandle

Properties and results of the waterflood project at the Panhandle Properties

The reduction for revisions of prior estimates primarily pertains to

For the Desdemona PropertiesBarnett Shale we considered the lower production performance from the existing

wells and current industry practice that limited the number of horizontal offset PUD locations that could be booked

against existing wells from eight to two locations Therefore PUD reserves were reduced by approximately 3.0

MMBOE due to lower performance results from the existing wells and further reduced by another 4.6 MMBOE as

the number of PUD drilling locations decreased from 76 to 40 Also as result of production performance PDP and

PDNP reserves were decreased by 0.4 MMBOE

For the Panhandle Properties we reclassified 5.6 MMBOE from PUD to probable reserves as there were insufficient

analogs to the Granite Wash formation to justifr PUD classification In addition we could not commit to developing

the Granite Wash within five years

For the Pantwist Properties based on current industry practice we reclassified 4.4 MMBOE of PUD reserves to

probable reserves as we could not commit to developing Pantwists PUD reserves within five years

The reductions in crude oil and natural gas reserves were partially offset by proved reserve increases of 4.4 MMBOE at the

Cato Properties where third-party engineering and geologic studies confirmed increases to original oil in place estimates and

PUD reserves and an infill drilling program resulted in an increase in PDP and PDNP reserves There were also the

following proved reserve increases for positive performance due to price increases at the Panhandle Properties PDP

reserves were increased by 0.2 MMBOE and ii at the Desdemona Properties PDNP reserves were increased by 0.3

MMBOE We also transferred reserves of 0.4 MMBOE from PDNP to PDP at the Davenport Properties and reserves of 1.4

MMBOE from PUD to PDP at the Panhandle Properties

Standardized Measure Unaudited

The standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows standardized measure and changes in such cash flows are

prepared using assumptions including the use of year-end prices for oil and natural gas and year-end costs for estimated future

development and production expenditures to produce year-end estimated proved reserves Discounted future net cash flows are

calculated using 10% aimual discount rate

Estimated well abandonment costs net of salvage are deducted from the standardized measure using year-end costs Such

abandonment costs are recorded as liability on the consolidated balance sheets using estimated values of the projected abandonment

date and discounted using risk-adjusted rate at the time the well is drilled or acquired

The standardized measure does not represent managements estimate of our future cash flows or the value of proved oil and

natural gas reserves Probable and possible reserves which may become proved in the future are excluded from the calculations

Furthermore year-end prices used to determine the standardized measure of discounted cash flows are influenced by seasonal

demand and other factors and may not be the most representative in estimating future revenues or reserve data

Price and cost revisions are primarily the net result of changes in year-end prices based on beginning of year reserve

estimates Quantity estimate revisions are primarily the result of the extended economic life of proved reserves proved undeveloped

reserve additions attributable to increased development activity reduced reserves due to lower performance from the existing wells

reduced reservesto comply with current industry practice that limited the number of PUD locations that could be booked against

existing wells and lower reserves if company is unable to commit to developing PUD reserves within five years

F-3



Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Cash Flows Unaudited

The standardized measure of discounted estimated future net cash flows related to proved crude oil and natural gas reserves

for the years ended June 30 2010 2009 and 2008 is as follows

In Thousands 2010 2009 2008

Future cash inflows 2760812 2751854 6695248
Future production costs 807541 767743 1251161
Future development costs 310469 332677 392248
Future income taxes 530300 535300 1759461
Future net cash flows 1112502 1116134 3292378
10% annual discount 855098 834122 1879835
Standardized measure of discounted future net

cash flows 257404 282012 1412543

Changes in Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Cash Flows Unaudited

The primary changes in the standardized measure of discounted estimated future net cash flows for the years ended June 30

2010 2009 and 2008 are as follows

In Thousands 2010 2009 2008

Balance at beginning of year 282012 1412543 701031

Net changes in prices and production costs 61926 1598659 1700142
Net changes in future development costs 2557 36746 111830
Sales of oil and gas produced net 5282 6552 25788
Purchases of reserves 85048

Sales of reserves 5926 94357
Extensions and discoveries 1536 38256 322754

Revisions of previous quantity estimates 111904 54017 935281
Previously estimated development costs incurred 12056 47590 89171

Net change in income taxes 1271 349339 392541
Accretion of discount 47128 224235 113830

Other 27970 380 133993
Balance at end of year 257404 282012 1412543
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RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

Exhibit 12.1

Dollar Amounts in Thousands

Ratio

Earnings

Add

Twelve Months ended June 30

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Pre-tax loss from continuing operations adjusted

for minority interests

Fixed charges see below
Less

Capitalized interest

Pre-tax earnings to cover preferred stock dividend

Total Earnings

Fixed Charges

Interest expensed includes amortization

Interest capitalized

Estimate of interest within rental expense

Pre-tax earnings to cover preferred stock dividend

Preferred dividend 1-36%
Total Fixed Charges

20058 17732 35419 9104 6710
6049 6330 9935 7348 2127

1987 1406 2463 303
2858 4266 6380 4952

__________

18853 17074 34327 7010 4583

Since the registrants has recorded loss for all periods shown above the ratio coverage was less than 11 In order to achieve

coverage ratio of 11 the Registrant must generate the following earnings for each period as shown below

907

1987

298

466

1406

192

861 1932 2098

2463 303

231 162 29

2858 4266 6380 4952

6049 6330 9935 7348 2127

Earnings to increase ratio to 11 24903 23404 44262 14359 6710



LiST OF SUBSIDIARIES

Cano Petro of New Mexico Inc Texas Corporation

Ladder Companies Inc Delaware corporation

Square One Energy Inc Texas corporation

Tn-Flow Inc an Oklahoma corporation

W.O Energy of Nevada Inc Nevada corporation

WO Energy Inc Texas corporation

W.O Operating Company Ltd Texas limited partnership

W.O Production Company Ltd Texas limited partnership
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statements Nos 333-138003 333-126167 333-129979 333-

147757 and 333-148053 on Form S-3 and in Registration Statements Nos 333-132595 and 333-143304 on Form S-8 of Cano

Petroleum Inc of our report dated September 22 2010 relating to our audit of the consolidated financial statements which appear in

this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Cano Petroleum Inc for the year ended June 30 2010

/s/HEIN ASSOCIATES LLP

Dallas Texas

September 22 2010



Exhibit 23.2

CONSENT OF MILLER AND LENTS LTD
INDEPENDENT PETROLEUM ENGD4EERS

As independent petroleum engineers we hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on

Form S-8 Nos 333-132595 and 333-143304 and on Form S-3 Nos 333-138003 333-126167 333-129979 333-147757 and 333-

148053 of Cano Petroleum Inc of our estimates of reserves included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30
2010 the Annual Report and to all references to our firm included in the Annual Report

The Registration Statements contain references to certain reports prepared by Miller and Lents Ltd for the exclusive use of

Cano Petroleum Inc The analysis conclusions and methods contained in the reports are based upon information that was in

existence at the time the reports were rendered and Miller and Lents Ltd has not updated and undertakes no duty to update anything

contained in the reports While the reports may be used as descriptive resource investors are advised that Miller and Lents Ltd has

not verified information provided by others except as specifically noted in the reports and Miller and Lents Ltd makes no

representation or warranty as to the accuracy of such information Moreover the conclusions contained in such reports are based on

assumptions that Miller and Lents Ltd believed were reasonable at the time of their preparation and that are described in such reports

in reasonable detail However there are wide range on uncertainties and risks that are outside of the control of Miller and Lents Ltd

which may impact these assumptions including but not limited to unforeseen market changes actions of governments or individuals

natural events economic changes and changes of laws and regulations or interpretation of laws and regulations

MILLER AND LENTS LTD
Texas Registered Engineering FirmNo F-1442

By /s/ Carl Richards

Name Carl Richards

Title Senior Vice President P.E

Houston Texas

September 22 2010



Exhibit 23.3

CONSENT OF HAAS PETROLEUM ENGINEERING SERVICES INC

INDEPENDENT PETROLEUM ENGINEERS

As independent petroleum engineers we hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on

Form S-8 Nos 333-132595 and 333-143304 and on Form S-3 Nos 333-138003 333-126167 333-129979 333-147757 and 333-

148053 of Cano Petroleum Inc of our estimates of reserves included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30

2010 the Annual Report and to all references to our firm included in the Annual Report

Houston Texas

September 222010 HAAS PETROLEUM ENGiNEERiNG SERVICES NC

By /s/ Robert Haas

Name Robert Haas P.E



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

Jeffrey Johnson certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Cano Petroleum Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact

necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not misleading

with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all

material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods

presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-1 5e and Sd-i 5e and internal control over financial reporting as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 5f and 5d- 15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed

under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated

subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report

is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be

designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by

this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during

the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report that

has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial

reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or persons

performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and

report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date September 22 2010

/s/ Jeffrey Johnson

Jeffrey Johnson

Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

Benjamin Daitch certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Cano Petroleum Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact

necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not misleading

with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all

material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods

presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15e and Sd- 15e and internal control over financial reporting as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 5f and 5d- 5f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed

under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated

subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report

is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be

designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by

this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during

the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report that

has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial

reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or persons

performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and

report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date September 22 2010

/s/ Benjamin Daitch

Benjamin Daitch

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 subsections and of Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18

of the United States Code Jeffrey Johnson Chief Executive Officer of Cano Petroleum Inc the Company certify that the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended June 30 2010 the Form 10-K fully complies with the requirements

of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents in

all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Company

Date September 22 2010 Is Jeffrey Johnson

Jeffrey Johnson

Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 subsections and of Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18

of the United States Code Benjamin Daitch Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Cano Petroleum Inc the

Company certif that the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended June 30 2010 the Form 10-K fully

complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in the

Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Company

Date September 22 2010 /5/ Benjamin Daitch

Benjamin Daitch

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 99.1

September 15 2010

Mr Jeff Johnson

Cano Petroleum Inc

Burnett Plaza

801 Cherry Street

Unit 25 Suite 3200

Fort Worth TX 76102

Dear Mr Johnson

As requested Haas Petroleum Engineering Services Inc hereinafter referred to as HPESI has prepared an estimate of certain

hydrocarbon Reserves owned by Cano Petroleum Inc hereinafter referred to as Cano The properties evaluated in this report are

located in New Mexico Oklahoma and Texas As of June 30 2010 Cano net shrunk Reserves future net income FNI and net

present worth discounted at 10 percent per annum NPV have been estimated in table below by-field breakdown of each reserve

category can be found in Appendix in this report

TABLE

Net Reserves As of 6/30/2010

Oil Natural NPV

Condensate NGL Gas FNI Disc 10%

Reserve Class/Cat bbl bbl McI

All Leases

Proved Producing 4815103 60954 7119885 114577541 53262406

Proved Behind Pipe 554576 1603708 841915

Proved Non-Producing 1309414 277033 4029906 64224098 19240533

Proved Undeveloped 26975248 ________ 43251418 1462396663 340362222

Total Proved 33099765 337987 54955785 1642802010 413707076

Probable Behind Pipe 570674 1652670 861629

Probable Undeveloped 10441960 ________
22948271 811567959 262383593

Total Probable 10441960 23518945 813220629 263245222

Possible Undeveloped 8563092 5967746 528494868 167991869

Total Possible 8563092 5967746 528494868 167991869

Grand Total 52104817 337987 84442476 2984517507 844944167

Totals in Table may not exactly match values in the attached cash flow summaries and tabular summaries due to computer

rounding

FNI is after deducting estimated operating and future development costs severance and ad valorem taxes but before Federal income

taxes Total net Proved Probable and Possible Reserves are defined as those shrunk natural gas and hydrocarbon liquid Reserves to

Canos interests after deducting all royalties overriding royalties and reversionary interests owned by outside parties that become

effective upon payout of specified monetary balances All Reserves estimates have been prepared using standard engineering

practices generally accepted by the petroleum industry and conform to guidelines developed and adopted by the United States

Securities and Exchange Commission SEC All hydrocarbon liquid Reserves are expressed in United States barrels bbl of 42

gallons Natural gas Reserves are expressed in thousand standard cubic feet Mcf at the contractual pressure
and temperature

bases

RESERVES ESTIMATE METHODOLOGY

The Reserves estimates contained in this report have been prepared using standard engineering practices generally accepted by the

petroleum industry Decline curve analysis was used to estimate the remaining Reserves of pressure depletion reservoirs with enough

historical production data to establish decline trends Reservoirs under non-pressure depletion drive mechanisms and non-producing

Reserves were estimated by volumetric analysis research of analogous reservoirs or combination of both The maximum remaining

Reserves life assigned to wells included in this report is 40 years This report does not include any gas sales imbalances



RESERVES CLASSIFICATION

The Reserves estimates included in this report conform to the guidelines specified by the SEC

Proved developed reserves are those quantities of crude oil condensate and natural gas which can be expected to be

recovered in future years through existing wells under existing economic and operating methods

Proved developed producing reserves are expected to be produced from existing completion intervals now open for

production in existing wells

Proved developed non-producing reserves included shut-in and behind-pipe reserves Shut-in reserves are expected to be

recovered from completion intervals open at the time of the estimate but which had not started producing Behind-pipe

reserves are expected to be produced through the existing wells in the predictable future and the cost of placing these

reserves on production should be relatively small compared to the cost of new well

Proved undeveloped reserves are expected to be recovered from the new wells on undrilled acreage or from existing wells

where relatively major expenditure is required for recompletion Reserves on undrilled acreage are limited to those drilling

units offsetting productive units which are reasonable certain of production when drilled Proved reserves for other undrilled

units can be claimed only where it can be demonstrated with certainty that there is continuity of productive formation

Probable reserves are those additional reserves that are less certain to be recovered than proved reserves but which in sum
with proved reserves are as likely as not to be recovered

Possible reserves include those additional reserves that are less certain to be recovered than probable reserves There must be

at least 10% probability that the actual quantities recovered will equal or exceed the sum of proved probable and possible

estimates

COMMODITY PRICES

The cashflow projections in this report utilize the un-weighted arithmetic 12 month average of the first-day-of-the month natural gas

and oil prices for July 2009 through June 2010 The un-weighted average cash market price for natural gas delivered at the Henry

Hub during this time period is $4.10/MMBTU and $75.76/bbl of oil

Historical hydrocarbon liquid prices were indexed to the monthly average of the daily closing prices received at the Cushing

Oklahoma delivery point The average difference between the wellhead oil price and the NYMEX price represents adjustments for

crude quality marketing fees BSW transportation costs and purchaser bonuses These adjustments were applied to the un-weighed

arithmetic 12 month average of the first-day-of the month prices for July 2009 through June 2010

Historical natural gas prices were indexed to the monthly Henry Hub prices posted in the Inside FERC publication Historical prices

were indexed for each month of available accounting data The average difference between the welihead price and the NYMEX price

represents adjustments for BTU content marketing and transportation costs These adjustments were applied to the un-weighed 12

month arithmetic average of the first-day-of the month prices for July 2009 through June 2010

OPERATING EXPENSES CAPITAL COSTS

In most cases the lease operating costs used in this evaluation represent the
average

of recent historical monthly operating costs and

were modeled with both fixed and variable component In cases where historical costs were not available or deemed to be

unreliable operating costs were estimated based on knowledge of analogous wells producing under similar conditions The lease

operating expenses in this report represent field level operating costs and do not include COPAS charges

Where available capital costs were estimated using recent historical information reported for analogous expenditures Where recent

historical information was not available Authority for Expenditure AFE documents were used to estimate capital costs AFE

documents provided by the operator have been checked for reasonableness For the purpose of this report salvage value for each

project was assumed to be equal to the abandonment costs

Pursuant to SEC guidelines operating expenses
and capital costs were not escalated in this evaluation



DISCLAIMERS

All information pertaining to the operating expenses prices and the interests of Cano in the properties appraised has been accepted as

represented It was not considered necessary to make field examination of the appraised properties Data used in performing this

appraisal were obtained from Cano public sources and our own files Supporting work papers pertinent to the appraisal are retained

in our files and are available to you or designated parties at your convenience

It was beyond the scope of this HPESI report to evaluate the potential environmental liability costs from the operation and

abandonment of these properties In addition no evaluation was made to determine the degree of operator compliance with current

environmental rules regulations and reporting requirements Therefore no estimate of the potential economic liability if any from

environmental concerns is included in the forecasts presented herein

The Proved Probable and Possible Reserves presented in this report are estimates only and should not be construed as being exact

quantities They may or may not be actually recovered and if recovered the revenues therefrom and the actual costs related thereto

could be more or less than the estimated amounts Because of governmental policies and uncertainties of supply and demand the

product prices and the costs incurred in recovering these Reserves may vary from the price and cost assumptions in this report In any

case quantities of Proved Probable and Possible Reserves may increase or decrease as result of future operations

Undeveloped wells capital costs associated with the Waterflood were assigned to the Waterflood line item rather than the individual

cases

As requested some of the producing properties were allowed to run uneconomically until the Non-PDP Waterflood reserves reached

economic rates

HPESI acknowledges that additional value may be associated with new pipeline construction at Nowata Currently the casing head

gas is being vented the new pipeline will tie this gas into the existing sales line The reserves and revenue are not currently included

in this report

The SEC requires development plan be in place for these assets This reserve report defines budget for that development plan but

IIPESI makes no representation about the companys ability to fund this development

CONCLUSIONS

Attached are summary tables of economic analysis of predicted future performance Other tables identify the properties appraised with

summary Reserves and the economic factors applicable to each list of tables is included

We appreciate this opportunity to have been of service and hope that this report will fulfill your requirements

Respectfully submitted

Haas Petroleum Engineering Services Inc

F-002950

Robert Haas P.E

Thaddeus Toups P.E
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PART FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item Financial Statements

CANO PETROLEUM INC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Unaudited

In Thousands Except Shares and Per Share Amounts

December 31 June 30
2010 2010

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 230 300

Accounts receivable 2101 2411
Derivative assets 216 2968

Deferred tax asset 2108 17

Inventory and other current assets 1228 841

Total current assets 5883 6537

Oil and gas properties successful efforts method 296468 294961
Less accumulated depletion and depreciation 46660 44615
Net oil and gas properties 249808 250346

Fixed assets and other net 1286 2404
Goodwill 101 101

TOTAL ASSETS 257078 259388

LIABILITIES TEMPORARY EQUITYAND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 3644 3297
Accrued liabilities 4178 2304
Oil and gas sales payable 937 804

Derivative liabilities 3479 410

Current maturity of debt Note 66450 66450
Current maturity of Series convertible preferred stock net of unamortized discount

of$1156Note4 27501

Current portion of asset retirement obligations 199 189

Total current liabilities 106388 73454

Long-term liabilities

Asset retirement obligations 3134 2991
Derivative liabilities 3647 1368
Deferred tax liabilities and other 17581 18992

Total liabilities 130750 96805

Temporary equity

Series convertible preferred stock and cumulative paid-in-kind dividends par value

$.000l per share stated value $1000 per share 49116 shares authorized 23849 issued

at June 30 2010 liquidation preference at June 30 2010 of $28100 net of unamortized

discount of $1582 26518

Commitments and contingencies Note 10
Stockholders equity

Common stock par value S.0001 per share 100000000 authorized 47116826 and

45413749 shares issued and outstanding respectively at December 31 2010 and

47159706 and 45456629 shares issued and outstanding respectively at June 30 2010

Additional paid-in capital 190336 190500
Accumulated deficit 63316 53743
Treasury stock at cost 1703077 shares held in escrow at December 31 2010 and

June 30 2010 respectively 697 697
Total stockholders equity 126328 136065

TOTAL LIABILITIES TEMPORARY EQUITY AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY 257078 259388

See accompanying notes to these unaudited financial statements



CANO PETROLEUM INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Unaudited

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

December 31 December 31

In Thousands Except Per Share Data 2010 2009 2010 2009

Operating Revenues

Crude oil sales 4763 4701 10124 9121

Natural gas sales 916 933 1799 1444

Total operating revenues 5679 5634 11923 10565

Operating Expenses

Lease operating 2690 3840 5997 8187

Production and ad valorem taxes 518 469 1033 888

General and administrative 1629 2875 4148 6448

Exploration expense 5024 5024

Loss pending resolution of insurance claim 681 681

Impairment of long-lived assets 283 283

Depletion and depreciation 1067 1246 2410 2495

Accretion of discount on asset retirement

obligations 76 68 156 135

Total operating expenses 6661 13805 14425 23460

Loss from operations 982 8171 2502 12895

Other income expense
Interest expense

and other 1190 272 3928 421
Loss on derivatives 3512 4727 6230 5239

Total other expense 4702 4999 10158 5660

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes 5684 13170 12660 18555

Deferred income tax benefit 2045 4530 4453 6232

Loss from continuing operations 3639 8640 8207 12323

Income from discontinued operations net of related taxes 206 328

Net loss 3639 8434 8207 11995

Preferred stock dividend 896 420 1366 890
Net loss applicable to common stock 4535 8854 9573 12885

Net loss per share basic and diluted

Continuing operations 0.10 0.19 0.21 0.29

Discontinued operations
0.01

Net loss per share basic and diluted 0.10 0.19 0.21 0.28

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Basic and Diluted 45436 45570 45440 45570

See accompanying notes to these unaudited financial statements



CANO PETROLEUM INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHODLERS EQUITY

JULY 2010 THROUGH DECEMBER 31 2010

Unaudited

Dollar Amounts in Thousands

Balance at July 2010

Forfeiture and surrender of stock

awards 47880

Stock-based compensation expense

Net proceeds from issuance of common

shares 5000

Preferred stock dividend

Netloss

Balance at December 31 2010 47116826

See accompanying notes to these unaudited financial statements

Common Stock

Shares Amount

47159706

Additional Total

Paid-in Accumulated Treasury Stock Stockholders

Capital Deficit Shares Amount Equity

190500 53743 1703077 697 136065

157 157

1366 1366

8207 8207

190336 63316 1703077 697 126328



CANO PETROLEUM INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Unaudited

Cash flow from operating activities

Net loss

Adjustments needed to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by used in operations

Unrealized loss on derivatives

Loss on sale of oil and gas properties and other

Accretion of discount on asset retirement obligations

Depletion and depreciation

Exploration expense

Impairment of long-lived assets

Stock-based compensation expense

Deferred income tax benefit

Amortization of debt issuance costs and prepaid expenses

Changes in assets and liabilities relating to operations

Accounts receivable

Derivative assets

Inventory and other current assets and liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Net cash provided by used in operations

302

113
401
176

2606

1579

782

277
1233

316

141
891

Cash flow from investing activities

Additions to oil and gas properties fixed assets and other

Net cash used in investing activities

1651
1651

9607
9607

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

550
550

70
300

230

11000

383
10617

119

392

511

Supplemental disclosure of noncash transactions

Payments of preferred stock dividend in kind

Amortization of Preferred Stock Discount

Supplemental disclosure of cash transactions

Cash paid during the period for interest 1391 1445

See accompanying notes to these unaudited financial statements

Six Months Ended December 31

2010 2009

8207 11995

8220
59

156

2410

157
4453

1333

8160

136

2522

5024

283

713

6044
863

Cash flow from financing activities

Repayments of long-term debt

Borrowings of long-term debt

Proceeds from issuance of common stock net

Payment of preferred stock dividend

Net cash provided by financing activities

557

427

557



CANO PETROLEUM INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND USE OF ESTIMATES

Consolidation and Use of Estimates

These interim consolidated financial statements are unaudited and contain all adjustments consisting primarily of normal

recurring accruals necessary
for fair statement of the results for the interim periods presented Results for interim periods are not

necessarily indicative of results to be expected for full year due in part but not limited to the volatility in prices for crude oil and

natural gas future prices for commodity derivatives interest rates estimates of reserves drilling risks geological risks transportation

restrictions the timing of events product demand market competition interruption in production our ability to obtain additional

capital and the success of waterflooding and enhanced oil recovery techniques You should read these consolidated interim financial

statements in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in our Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year
ended June 30 2010

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America GAAP and include the accounts of Cano Petroleum Inc and its wholly-owned subsidiaries

collectively Cano Intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated In preparing the accompanying financial statements

management has made certain estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts in the financial statements and disclosures of

contingencies Actual results may differ from those estimates The computation of stock-based compensation expense requires

assumptions such as volatility expected life and the risk-free interest rate The computation of mark-to-market valuations of our

commodity derivatives include the observability of quoted market prices and an assessment of potential non-performance of

counterparties It is possible these estimates could be revised in the near term and these revisions could be material

Significant assumptions are required in the valuation of proved crude oil and natural gas reserves which may affect the

amounts at which crude oil and natural gas properties are recorded Our estimates of proved reserves materially impact depletion

expense If proved reserves decline then the rate at which we record depletion expense increases decline in estimated proved

reserves could result from lower prices adverse operating results mechanical problems at our wells and catastrophic events such as

fires hurricanes and floods Lower prices can make it uneconomical to drill new wells or produce from existing wells with high

operating costs In addition decline in proved reserves may impact our assessment of our oil and natural gas properties for

impairment Our proved reserves estimates are based upon many assumptions all of which could deviate materially from actual

results As such reserve estimates may vary materially from the ultimate quantities of crude oil and natural gas actually produced

Based on our June 30 2010 reserve report seventy-nine percent of our proved reserves are classified as proved undeveloped reserves

Capital expenditures amounting to $310.5 million are forecasted in our reserve report As we have done during each year of our

existence to develop these reserves we will require access to the capital markets and/or consider divestitures of oil and gas properties

in each of the next five years as our projected capital expenditures are greater than projected cash flow from operations through

December 2015

New Accounting Pronouncements

Accounting standards-setting organizations frequently issue new or revised accounting rules We regularly review all new

pronouncements to determine their impact if any on our financial statements No pronouncements materially affecting our financial

statements have been issued since the filing of our Form 10-K for the year ended June 30 2010

LIQUIDITY GOING CONCERN

At December 31 2010 we had cash and cash equivalents of $0.2 million We had negative working capital of

$100.5 million which includes current liabilities of $66.5 million of long-term debt and $27.5 million of Series convertible

preferred stock For the six-month period ended December 31 2010 we had cash flow provided by operations of $1.6 million

On July 20 2010 we terminated our announced merger with Resaca Exploitation Inc Resaca that had been initiated

pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated September 29 2009 On July 26 2010 we announced the engagement of

Canaccord Genuity and Global Hunter Securities to assist our Board in review of strategic alternatives with goal of maximizing

value for our shareholders The strategic alternatives we are considering include the sale of the Company the sale of some or all of

our existing oil and gas properties and assets potential business combinations and/or recapitalizing the Company We continue to

focus on cost reduction efforts to improve both our profitability and cash flow from operations



We currently have limited access to capital On August 2010 we finalized Consent and Forbearance Agreements with the

lenders under our credit agreements that waived potential covenant compliance issues for the periods ending June 30 2010 and

September 30 2010 set certain deadlines for the execution of our strategic alternatives process and allowed us to sell certain natural

gas commodity derivative contracts for cash proceeds of $0.8 million which was intended to provide Cano sufficient liquidity to

complete its strategic alternatives process The Consent and Forbearance Agreements were terminated as our lenders delivered

Reservation of Rights Letters dated September 24 2010 and January 2011 as discussed in Note We continue to work with our

lenders and advisors as we consider strategic alternatives As of February 14 2011 our lenders have taken no actions associated with

the termination of the Consent and Forbearance Agreements We currently have no available borrowing capacity under our senior and

subordinated credit agreements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis which contemplates

continuity of operations realization of assets and liquidation of liabilities in the ordinary course of business There is no assurance that

the carrying amounts of assets will be realized or that liabilities will be settled for the amounts recorded The ability of the Company
to continue as going concern will be dependent upon the outcome of our strategic alternatives review

DEBT

At December 31 2010 and June 30 2010 the outstanding amount due under our credit agreements was $66.5 million The

$66.5 million consisted of outstanding borrowings under the amended and restated credit agreement the ARCA and the

subordinated credit agreement the SCA of $51.5 million and $15.0 million respectively At December 31 2010 the average

interest rates charged by the lenders under the ARCA and SCA were 3.02% and 6.31% respectively

On August 2010 we executed Consent and Forbearance Agreement the Senior Forbearance Agreement with Union

Bank N.A UBNA and Natixis relating to existing and potential defaults under the ARCA dated December 17 2008 among Cano
UBNA and Natixis and Consent and Forbearance Agreement together with the Senior Forbearance Agreement the Forbearance

Agreements with UnionBanCal Equities Inc UBE relating to existing defaults under the SCA dated December 17 2008

between Cano and UBE as amended the SCA and together with the ARCA the Credit Agreements

On September 24 2010 our lenders delivered Reservation of Rights Letters Letters subsequently updated on January

2011 specifying that we failed to timely comply with the material terms of the Forbearance Agreements and therefore terminated the

Forbearance Agreements As of February 14 2011 the lenders have taken no action with the delivery of these Letters We have

recorded all additional interest and fees due under the terms of the Credit Agreements of $2.0 million in accrued liabilities on our

consolidated balance sheet and in interest expense on consolidated statement of operations as of December 31 2010 We have also

recorded additional interest expense associated with the accelerated amortization of deferred financing costs of $0.6 million applicable

to the Credit Agreements and accounting and legal expense incurred by our lenders of $0.4 million

PREFERRED STOCK

On August 2010 we entered into Forbearance Agreements with the lenders under our Credit Agreements that prohibited us

from making any indirect or direct cash payment cash dividend or cash distribution in respect of our shares of Preferred Stock As

discussed under Note the Forbearance Agreements were terminated As of December 31 2010 we have not remitted cash dividend

payments for the Preferred Stock of $0.4 million for the three-month periods ended September 30 2010 and December 31 2010 As

of December 31 2010 the unpaid cash dividend of $0.4 million is included in accrued liabilities reported in our consolidated balance

sheets Due to the non-payment of the cash dividends along with the fact that the Preferred Stock is redeemable for cash as of

September 2011 our Preferred Stock has been reclassified from Temporary Equity to current liability of $27.5 million on our

consolidated balance sheet which is the liquidation preference of $28.7 million less unamortized issuance costs of $1.2 million which

is presented as discount on the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2010 Issuance costs of $0.4 million were amortized

in preferred stock dividend during the three-month period ended December 31 2010

Jeffrey Johnson our former Chief Executive Officer and former Chairman of our board of directors owns approximately

3.5% of our outstanding Preferred Stock For the three-month periods ended December 31 2010 and 2009 we paid preferred dividend

payments to Mr Johnson of approximately $0 and $20000 respectively For the six-month periods ended December 31 2010 and

2009 we paid preferred dividend payments to Mr Johnson of approximately $0 and $39000 respectively

If any Preferred Stock remains outstanding on September 2011 we are required to redeem the Preferred Stock for

redemption amount in cash equal to the stated value of the Preferred Stock plus accrued cash and paid-in-kind dividends If we do

not redeem the Preferred Stock including accrued cash and paid-in-kind dividends for cash on September 2011 the redemption

value of the Preferred Stock will accrue interest at 1.5% per month until Cano has made settlements with the preferred stockholders



The subordination provisions of the Certificate of Designations of our Preferred Stock may prohibit us from redeeming any of the

Preferred Stock on September 2011

DERIVATIVES

Our derivatives consist of commodity derivatives and an interest rate swap arrangement which are discussed in greater detail

below

Commodity Derivatives

Pursuant to the ARCA and SCA discussed in Note we are required to maintain our existing commodity derivative

contracts We entered into commodity derivative contracts to partially mitigate the risk associated with extreme fluctuations of prices

for our crude oil and natural gas sales We have no obligation to enter into commodity derivative contracts in the future Should we
choose to enter into commodity derivative contracts to mitigate future price risk we cannot enter into contracts for greater than 85%
of our crude oil and natural gas production volumes attributable to proved producing reserves for given month As of December 31

2010 we maintained the following collar commodity derivative contracts with UBNA as our counterparty which is one of the

senior lenders under the ARCA

Barrels of

Floor Equivalent

Time Floor Ceiling Barrels Gas Ceiling Mcf Oil per

Period Oil Price Oil Price Per Day Price Gas Price per Day Daya
1/1/11 -3/31/11 80.00 107.30 333b 333

1/1/11 -3/31/11 85.00 100.50 200b 8.00 11.05 967 361

This column is computed by dividing the Mcf per Day by and adding it to Barrels per Day
On February 2011 these crude oil derivative contracts were terminated at no cost to either party

On September 11 2009 we entered into two fixed price commodity swap contracts with Natixis as our counterparty which

is one of our senior lenders under the ARCA The fixed price swaps are based on West Texas Intermediate NYMEX prices and are

summarized in the table below

Time Fixed Barrels

Period Oil Price Per Day

4/1/11 12/31/11 75.90 700

1/1/12-12/31/12 77.25 700

Interest Rate Swap Agreement

On January 12 2009 we entered into three-year LIBOR interest rate basis swap contract with Natixis Financial

Products Inc Natixis FPI for $20.0 million in notional exposure We entered into the interest rate swap agreement to partially

mitigate the risk associated with rising interest rates Under the terms of the transaction we will pay Natixis FPI inthree-month

intervals fixed rate of 1.73% and Natixis FPI will pay Cano the prevailing three-month LIBOR rate



Financial Statement Impact

During the three-month and six-month periods ended December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively the gain loss on

derivatives reported in our consolidated statements of operations is summarized as follows

Three-Month Period Six-Month Period

Location of Gain Ended December 31 Ended December 31

Loss Derivative 2010 2009 2010 2009

Settlements received/accrued on Other income

commodity derivatives expense 415 1196 1319 3047

Settlements received on sale Other income

of commodity derivatives expense 800

Settlements paid/accrued on Other income

interest rate swap expense 66 70 129 126
Other income

Realized gain loss on derivatives expense 349 1126 1990 2921

Unrealized gain loss on commodity Other income

derivatives expense 3910 5783 8242 7987
Unrealized gain loss on interest rate Other income

swap expense 49 70 22 173
Loss on derivatives Other income

expense 3512 4727 6230 5239

On August 10 2010 we sold certain natural gas commodity derivative contracts realizing net proceeds of $0.8 million

pursuant to the Forbearance Agreements The cash settlements received/accrued by us under commodity derivatives were cumulative

monthly payments due to us since the NYMEX natural gas and crude oil prices were lower than the floor prices set for the respective

time periods and realized gains from the sale of uncovered floor price contracts as previously discussed The cash settlements

paid/accrued by us under commodity derivatives were cumulative monthly payments due to our counterparty since the NYMEX crude

oiland natural gas prices were higher than the ceiling prices set for the respective time periods The cash settlements paid/accrued by

us under the interest rate swap were quarterly payments to our counterparty since the actual three-month LIBOR interest rate was

lower than the fixed 1.73% rate we pay to the counterparty The cash flows relating to the derivative instrument settlements that are

due but not cash settled are reflected in operating activities on our consolidated statements of cash flows as changes to current assets

and current liabilities At December 31 2010 and June 30 2010 we had recorded receivable from our counterparty included in

accounts receivable on our consolidated balance sheet of $0.1 million and $0.3 million respectively

The unrealized gain loss on commodity derivatives represents estimated future settlements under our commodity

derivatives and is based on mark-to-market valuation based on assumptions of forward prices volatility and the time value of money

as discussed below We compared our internally derived valuation to our counterparties independently derived valuation to further

validate our mark-to-market valuation

The unrealized gain loss on interest rate swap represents estimated future settlements under our interest rate swap

agreement and is based on mark-to-market valuation based on assumptions of interest rates volatility and the time value of money as

discussed below

Fair Value Measurements

Our assets and liabilities recorded at fair value are categorized based upon the level ofjudgment associated with the inputs used

to measure their fair value fair value hierarchy has been established that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value The

hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities Level measurement and the

lowest priority to unobservable inputs Level measurement We classify fair value balances based on the observability of those

inputs The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows

Level 1Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that we have the ability to access Active markets

are those in which transactions for the asset or liability occur in sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing

information on an ongoing basis

Level 2Inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets included in Level which are either directly or indirectly

observable These inputs are either directly observable in the marketplace or indirectly observable through corroboration with

market data for substantially the full contractual term of the asset or liability being measured



Level 3Inputs reflect managements best estimate of what market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability at

the measurement date Consideration is given to the risk inherent in the valuation technique and the risk inherent in the inputs

to the model

In valuing certain contracts the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy For

disclosure purposes assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety in the fair value hierarchy level based on the lowest level of

input that is significant to the overall fair value measurement Our assessment of the significance of particular input to the fair value

measurement requires judgment and may affect the placement within the fair value hierarchy levels

The fair value of our derivative contracts are measured using Level and Level inputs The Level input pertained to the

subjective valuation for the effect of our own credit risk which was significant to the fair value of the crude oil swap derivative

contracts The fair value of our commodity derivative contracts and interest rate swap are measured using Level inputs based on the

hierarchies previously discussed

The estimated fair value of derivatives included in the consolidated balance sheet at December 31 2010 is summarized

below

In thousands

Derivative assets Level

Crude oil collarscurrent

Natural gas collarscurrent 208

Derivative liability Level

Interest rate swapcurrent 191
Interest rate swapnoncurrent 52

Derivative liability Level

Crude oil swapcurrent 3288
Crude oil swapnoncurrent 3595

Net derivative liabilities 6910

The following table shows the reconciliation of changes in the fair value of the net derivative assets classified as Level and

respectively in the fair value hierarchy for the three months ended December 31 2010 in thousands

Total Net

Derivative

Assets

In thousands Liabilities

Balance atJune 30 2010 1190

Unrealized loss on derivatives 8220
Settlements net 120

Balance at December 31 2010 6910

The change from net derivative assets of $1.2 million at June 30 2010 to net derivative liabilities of $6.9 million at

December 31 2010 is attributable to the increases in crude oil and natural
gas

futures prices and settlements that occurred during the

six-month period These amounts are based on our mark-to-market valuation of these derivatives at December 31 2010 and may not

be indicative of actual future cash settlements



The following table summarizes the fair value of our derivative contracts as of the dates indicated

In thousands

Derivatives not designated as

hedging instruments

Commodity derivative contracts

Commodity derivative contracts

Interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps

Total derivatives not designated as

hedging instruments

Total derivatives designated as

hedging instruments

Total derivatives

Asset Derivatives

December 31 2010

Balance Sheet Fair

Location Value

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On January 27 2010 we completed the sale of our interests in certain oil and gas properties located in the Texas Panhandle

Certain Panhandle Properties for net proceeds of $6.3 million subject to customary post-closing adjustments The sale had an

effective date of January 2010 The operating results of the Certain Panhandle Properties for the three-month and six-month periods

ended December 31 2009 have been reclassified as discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of operations as detailed in

the table below in thousands

Operating Revenues

Crude oil sales

Natural gas
sales

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses

Lease operating

Production and ad valorem taxes

Depletion and depreciation

Accretion of discount on asset

retirement obligations

interest expense net

Total operating expenses

Income before income taxes

Income tax provision

Income from discontinued

Period Ended December 312009

Three-Month Six-Month

12 23

497 819

509 842

87 156

59 106

14 27

_________________
36

________________
327

515

_______________ 187

operations 206 328

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Shares Price

1310710 4.33

5000 0.43

324930 4.70

980780 4.23

June 30 2010

Balance Sheet Fair

Location Value

Liability Derivatives

December 312010 June 30 2010

Balance Sheet Fair Balance Sheet Fair

Location Value Location Value

Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives

current 216 current 2968 current 3288 current 206

Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives

noncurrent noncurrent noncurrent 3595 noncurrent 1308
Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives Denvatives

current current current 191 current 204

Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives

noncurrent noncurrent noncurrent 52 noncurrent 60

216 2968 7126 1778

216 2968 7126 1778

25

186

323

117

Interest expense net of interest income was allocated to discontinued operations based on the percent of operating revenues

applicable to discontinued operations to the total operating revenues

STOCK OPTIONS

During the six-month period ended December 31 2010 we did not grant additional stock options summary of

outstanding options as of December 31 2010 is as follows

Outstanding at June 30 2010

Options exercised

Options forfeited

Outstanding at December 31 2010
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Based on our $0.38 stock price at December 31 2010 there was no intrinsic value of both the options outstanding and

exercisable

Total options exercisable at December 31 2010 amounted to 980780 shares and had weighted average exercise price of

$4.23 Upon exercise we issue the full amount of shares exercisable per the term of the options from new shares We have no plans to

repurchase those shares in the future

For the three- and six-month periods ended December 31 2010 our recordings for stock-based compensation expense were

insignificant For the three- and six-month periods ended December 31 2009 we recorded charge to stock-based compensation

expense
of $0.1 million and $0.2 million respectively As of December 31 2010 we had fully expensed the total compensation cost

related to the outstanding option awards

DEFERRED COMPENSATION

As of December 31 2010 we had non-vested share awards totaling 73334 shares to key employees pursuant to our 2005

Long-Term Incentive Plan as summarized below

Weighted

Average

Grant-date Fair Value

Shares Fair Value $000s

Non-vested share awards at June 30 2010 161668 7.18 1160

Shares vested 40453 5.84 236
Shares forfeited or surrendered 47881 8.27 396
Non-vested share awards at December 31 2010 73334 7.20 528

The share awards will vest to the employees by July 2011 The fair values of the awards are based on our actual stock price

on the date of grant multiplied by the number of shares granted As of December 31 2010 the grant date fair value of non-vested

shares amounted to $0.5 million For the three-month period ended December 31 2010 we recorded credit to stock-based

compensation expense of $0.1 million primarily due to award forfeitures For the six-month period ended December 31 2010 we had

insignificant stock-based compensation expense For the three- and six-month periods ended December 31 2009 we have expensed

$0.2 million and $0.5 million respectively to stock-based compensation expense based on amortizing the fair value over the

appropriate service period The forfeitures resulted from shares used to satisfy employees tax withholding obligations related to the

vesting of their share awards and employee termination

NET LOSS PER COMMON SHARE

Basic net loss per common share is computed by dividing the net loss attributable to common shareholders by the weighted

average number of shares of common stock outstanding Diluted net loss per common share is computed in the same manner but also

considers the effect of common stock shares underlying stock options the preferred stock and paid-in-kind P1K dividends on an

as-converted basis

Shares of common stock underlying the following items were not included in dilutive weighted average shares outstanding for

the three- and six-month periods ended December 31 2010 and 2009 as their effects would have been anti-dilutive

December 31

2010 2009

Stock options 980780 1336177
Preferred stock 4147652 4147652
P1K dividends 836135 642559
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10 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Burnett Case

On March 23 2006 the following lawsuit was filed in the 100th Judicial District Court in Carson County Texas Cause

No 9840 The Tom and Anne Burnett Trust by Anne Burnett Windfohr Windi Phillips Ben Fortson Jr George Beggs III and Ed

Hudson Jr as Co-Trustees Anne Burnett Windfohr and Burnett Ranches Ltd Cano Petroleum Inc W.O Energy of

Nevada Inc Operating Company Ltd and WO Energy Inc The plaintiffs claimed that the electrical wiring and equipment of

Cano or certain of its subsidiaries relating to oil and natural gas operations started wildfire that began on March 12 2006 in Carson

County Texas

The plaintiffs alleged negligence and gross negligence and ii sought damages including but not limited to damages for

damage to their land and livestock certain expenses related to fighting the fire and certain remedial expenses totaling approximately

$1.7 million to $1.8 million In addition the plaintiffs sought termination of certain oil and natural gas leases ii reimbursement

for their attorneys fees in the amount of at least $549000 and iiiexemplary damages The plaintiffs also claimed that Cano and its

subsidiaries were jointly and severally liable as single business enterprise and/or general partnership or de facto partnership The

owner of the remainder of the mineral estate Texas Christian University intervened in the suit on August 18 2006 joining Plaintiffs

request to terminate certain oil and gas leases On June 21 2007 the judge of the 100th Judicial District Court issued Final Judgment

granting motions for summary judgment in favor of Cano and certain of its subsidiaries on plaintiffs claims for breach of

contract/termination of an oil and gas lease and ii negligence and granting the plaintiffs no-evidence motion for summary

judgment on contributory negligence assumption of risk repudiation and estoppel affirmative defenses asserted by Cano and certain

of its subsidiaries

The Final Judgment was appealed and decision was reached on March 11 2009 as the Court of Appeals for the Tenth

District of Texas in Amarillo affirmed in part and reversed in part the ruling of the 100th Judicial District Court The Court of Appeals

affirmed the trial courts granting of summary judgment in Canos favor for breach of contract/termination of an oil and gas lease

and reversed the trial courts granting of summary judgment in Canos favor on plaintiffs claims of Canos negligence The Court

of Appeals ordered the case remanded to the 100th Judicial District Court On March 30 2009 the plaintiffs filed motion for

rehearing with the Court of Appeals and requested rehearing on the affirmance of the trial courts holding on the plaintiffs breach of

contract/termination of an oil and gas lease claim On June 30 2009 the Court of Appeals ruled to deny the plaintifrs motion for

rehearing On August 17 2009 Cano filed an appeal with the Texas Supreme Court to request the reversal of the Court of Appeals

ruling regarding our potential negligence On December 11 2009 the Texas Supreme Court declined to hear Canos appeal

This lawsuit was resolved through Settlement and Release Agreement effective October 19 2010 pursuant to which this

lawsuit has been dismissed without prejudice The dismissal without prejudice will automatically convert to dismissal with

prejudice thus foreclosing the plaintiffs ability to re-file this suit once we have fully satisfied the obligations contained in the

Settlement and Release Agreement Based on our knowledge and judgment of the facts as of February 14 2011 our financial

statements dated December 31 2010 present fairly the effect of the actual and the anticipated future costs to resolve this matter

Securities Litigation against Outside Directors

On October 2008 lawsuit 08 CV 8462 was filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New

York against David Wehlmann Gerald Haddock Randall Boyd Donald Niemiec Robert Gaudin William

Powell III and the underwriters of the June 26 2008 public offering of Cano common stock Secondary Offering alleging

violations of the federal securities laws Messrs Wehlmann Haddock Boyd Niemiec Gaudin and Powell were Cano outside

directors on June 26 2008 At the defendants request the case was transferred to the United States District Court for the Northern

District of Texas

On July 2009 the plaintiffs filed an amended complaint that added as defendants Cano Canos Chief Executive Officer

and Chairman of the Board Jeff Johnson Canos former Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Morris Sam Smith

Cano former Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Ben Daitch Cano current Senior Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer Michael Ricketts and Canos former Senior Vice President of Engineering and Operations Patrick McKinney and

dismissed Gerald Haddock former director of Cano as defendant The amended complaint alleges that the prospectus for the

Secondary Offering contained statements regarding Canos proved reserve amounts and standards that were materially false and

overstated Canos proved reserves The plaintiff is seeking to certify the lawsuit as class action lawsuit and is seeking an unspecified

amount of damages On July 27 2009 the defendants moved to dismiss the lawsuit On December 2009 the U.S District Court for

the Northern District of Texas granted motions to dismiss all claims brought by the plaintiffs On December 18 2009 the plaintiffs

filed notice of appeal with the U.S Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit On April 2010 Cano filed its appellate brief to support

its position On April 19 2010 the plaintiffs filed their response brief On August 2010 the U.S Court of Appeals for the Fifth
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Circuit affirmed the dismissal by the U.S District Court for the Northern District of Texas of all claims by the plaintiffs By affirming

the decision of the lower court the U.S Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit agreed that the plaintifrs complaint failed to state

claim upon which relief could be granted and thus found merit in dismissing the lawsuit

Resaca Claim

Section 7.6 of the Merger Agreement with Resaca Exploitation Inc Resaca provided for the Company and Resaca to

share transaction
expenses

related to the printing filing and mailing of the registration statement on Form S-4 covering the Resaca

shares that would have been issued to Cano stockholders in the merger the proxy statements relating to the meetings at which the

stockholders of Cano and Resaca voted to approve the merger and the solicitation of stockholder approvals On September 2010
we filed an action against Resaca in the Tarrant County District Court seeking declaratory judgment to clarify the scope and

determine the amount of any expenses that are reimbursable under Section 7.6 of the Merger Agreement On December 16 2010 the

presiding District Court judge denied Resaca request to transfer the venue On January 19 2011 Resaca filed motion for Partial

Summary Judgment to seek reimbursement of certain merger-related expenses totaling $1.1 million for which Cano 50% portion

would be $0.5 million Based on our knowledge and judgment of the facts as of February 14 2011 our financial statements dated

December 31 2010 present fairly the effect of the actual and the anticipated future costs to resolve this matter

Other

Occasionally we are involved in other various claims and lawsuits and certain governmental proceedings arising in the

ordinary course of business Our management does not believe that the ultimate resolution of any current matters that are not set forth

above will have material effect on our financial position or results of operations Managements position is supported in part by the

existence of insurance coverage indemnification and escrow accounts None of our directors officers or affiliates owners of record or

beneficial owners of more than five percent of any class of our voting securities or security holder is involved in proceeding adverse

to us or our subsidiaries or has material interest adverse to us or our subsidiaries

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The information in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the

Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 This Act provides safe harbor for forward-looking statements to encourage

companies to provide prospective information about themselves provided they identify these statements as forward looking and

provide meaningful cautionary statements identifying important factors that could cause actual results to differ from the projected

results All statements other than statements of historical fact made in this report are forward looking In particular the statements

herein regarding industry prospects and future results of operations or financial position are forward-looking statements Forward-

looking statements reflect managements current expectations and are inherently uncertain Our actual results may differ significantly

from managements expectations as result of many factors including but not limited to our ability to successfully execute one of

our strategic alternatives restructure our existing indebtedness obtain further waivers or forbearance from our lenders raise new

capital restructure the terms of our Preferred Stock the volatility in prices for crude oil and natural gas future commodity prices for

derivative hedging contracts interest rates estimates of reserves drilling risks geological risks transportation restrictions the timing

of acquisitions product demand market competition interruption in production our ability to obtain additional capital and the

success of waterflooding and enhanced oil recovery techniques

Statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q regarding Cano strategy risk factors capital budget projected

expenditures liquidity and capital resources and drilling and development plans reflect Canos current plans for the fiscal year ending

June 30 2011 as stand-alone entity and do not take into account the impact of strategic alternatives being considered by Cano

operating on going concern basis

You should read the following discussion and analysis in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of Cano and

its subsidiaries and notes thereto included herewith This discussion should not be construed to imply that the results discussed herein

will necessarily continue into the future or that any conclusion reached herein will necessarily be indicative of actual operating results

in the future Such discussion represents only the best present assessment of management
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Overview

Introduction

We are an independent oil and natural gas company Our strategy is to convert our proved undeveloped reserves into proved

producing reserves improve operational efficiencies in our existing properties and acquire accretive proved producing assets We

intend to manage our assets as both an operator and non-operated participation We expect to seek joint venture partners to exploit

proved undeveloped reserves at some of our existing properties Our assets are located onshore in the U.S in Texas New Mexico and

Oklahoma

Operating Activities Update

For the quarter ended December 31 2010 current quarter our production averaged 927 net barrels of oil equivalent per

day BOEPD as compared to production of 1071 BOEPD for the quarter ended December 31 2009 prioryear quarter For the

six-month period ended December 31 2010 current six months our production averaged 1016 BOEPD as compared to production

of 1087 BOEPD for the six months ended December 31 2009 prior year six months For both the current quarter and the current

six-month period we had production increases from the workover activities behind-pipe recompletions in the Atoka Formation and

return-to-production RTP program at the Desdemona Properties and improved operational efficiencies at the Davenport

Properties These increases were more than offset by decreased production at the Cato and Panhandle Properties which is further

discussed below Production at the Nowata Properties remained relatively unchanged during the comparative periods

For the current quarter and current six months we incurred development capital expenditures of $0.5 million and $1.1

million respectively excludes capitalized general and administrative and interest expenses

For December 2010 our production averaged 972 BOEPD The following is discussion of our field level activity during

the six-month period ended December 31 2010

Cato Properties

On May 2010 we received administrative approval from the New Mexico Oil and Gas Conservation Division

NMOGCD to increase injection pressures at the 14 active injection wells On August 2010 we received an expansion permit

from the NMOGCD to further expand the waterflood operations As result we have increased water injection rates at Phase

project at the Cato Properties covering 1000 acres

During mid-October 2010 production was adversely affected by weather-related electrical outage Production was shut-in

for 30 days which resulted in lost production of 75 BOEPD during the current quarter During the outage we installed larger electric

submersible pumps ESPsin both existing and RTP wells and implemented necessary facility upgrades to optimize our

infrastructure Our current configuration will be adequate for the Phase waterflood project As of December 31 2010 we have

increased our injection rate to 13500 barrels of water injected per day BWJPD which is 1500 BWIPD higher than the injection

rate of 12000 BWIPD at September 30 2010 We have seen increased fluid production rates and corresponding increasing crude oil

rates as direct result of this work During December 2010 our production averaged 214 BOEPD From January 2011 through June

2011 we intend to develop PDNP reserves in the Queen Sands formation and expect continued production improvements from the

waterflood operations

Davenport Properties Net production for the current quarter and current six months was 81 BOEPD and 83 BOEPD
respectively Net production for the prior year quarter and prior year six months was 73 BOEPD for each period We are currently

assessing the economic feasibility of an RTP project to activate non-producing wells During December 2010 our production

averaged 84 BOEPD

Desdemona Properties During the current six months we maintained our focus on optimizing field efficiency activating

RTP wells and completed upgrades to our gas plant to sell all natural gas and natural gas liquids produced from the Duke Sand

formation and new production from behind-pipe completions in the Atoka formation Through December 31 2010 we had completed

two RTP wells in the Duke Sands formation at cost of $25000 per well and recompleted two wells into the Atoka formation that

cost approximately $25000 per
well Each Atoka well recompletion had initial production 125 mcfd 21 BOEPD and stabilized at

75 mcfjd 13 BOEPD Sales of the production from the Atoka wells will begin once we install additional compression capacity

During December 2010 our production averaged 71 BOEPD From January 2011 through June 2011 we expect production

improvements from the Duke Sands RTP project as well as recompletions in the Atoka formation
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Nowata Properties We are currently assessing the viability to increase production by expanding the gas gathering system

to connect additional wells to increase casinghead gas sales and optimizing current infrastructure During December 2010 our

production averaged 217 BOEPD at the Nowata Properties and has remained relatively flat since its acquisition in September 2004

Panhandle Properties During the quarter ended September 30 2010 we reduced the rate of waterflood injection at the

Cockrell Ranch unit to optimize crude oil production and gain improved operational efficiencies Although this resulted in lost

production of 30 BOEPD operating margins have improved Our natural gas production decreases for both the quarter and six-month

period resulted from gas plant outages by DCP Midstream L.P which adversely impacted our production by 60 BOEPD During
December 2010 our production averaged 386 BOEPD

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31 2010 we had cash and cash equivalents of $0.2 million We had negative working capital of

$100.5 million which includes current liabilities of $66.5 million of long-term debt and $27.5 million of Series convertible

preferred stock For the current six months we had cash flow provided by operations of $1.6 million which is an improvement of $2.5

million as compared to the prior year six months

On July 20 2010 we terminated our announced merger with Resaca Exploitation Inc Resaca that had been initiated

pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated September 29 2009 On July 26 2010 we announced the engagement of

Canaccord Genuity and Global Hunter Securities to assist our Board in review of strategic alternatives with goal of maximizing

value for our shareholders The strategic alternatives we are considering include the sale of the Company the sale of some or all of

our existing oil and gas properties and assets potential business combinations and/or recapitalizing the Company We continue to

focus on cost reduction efforts to improve both our profitability and cash flow from operations Our cost reduction efforts have

resulted in lower operating expenses for the current quarter and current six months of $7.1 million and $9.0 million respectively Our

primary focus is reducing lease operating expenses and general and administrative expenses We have been able to reduce operating

expenses while maintaining constant operating revenues This is further discussed under Results of Operations Operating

Expenses

We currently have limited access to capital On August 2010 we finalized Consent and Forbearance Agreements with the

lenders under our credit agreements that waived potential covenant compliance issues for the periods ending June 30 2010 and

September 30 2010 set certain deadlines for the execution of our strategic alternatives process and allowed us to sell certain natural

gas commodity derivative contracts for cash proceeds of $0.8 million which was intended to provide Cano sufficient liquidity to

complete its strategic alternatives
process The Consent and Forbearance Agreements were terminated as our lenders delivered

Reservation of Rights Letters dated September 24 2010 and January 2011 as discussed in Note to our Consolidated Financial

Statements We continue to work with our lenders and advisors as we consider strategic alternatives As of February 14 2011 our

lenders have taken no actions associated with the termination of the Consent and Forbearance Agreements We currently have no

available borrowing capacity under our senior and subordinated credit agreements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis which contemplates

continuity of operations realization of assets and liquidation of liabilities in the ordinary course of business There is no assurance that

the carrying amounts of assets will be realized or that liabilities will be settled for the amounts recorded The ability of the Company
to continue as going concern will be dependent upon the outcome of our strategic alternatives review

Under both the ARCA and SCA we were not in compliance with the covenants relating to our current ratio leverage ratio

and interest coverage ratio for the quarter ended December 31 2010 We have not made any borrowings since July 2010 We
continue to make our interest payments timely to the lenders

Results of Operations

Overall

For the current quarter we had loss applicable to common stock of $4.5 million which was an improvement of $4.3 million

as compared to the prior year quarter of $8.9 million loss applicable to common stock The $4.3 million earnings improvement

primarily related to lower operating expenses of $7.1 million and decreased loss on derivatives of $1.2 million partially offset by
increased interest expense of $0.9 million and increased preferred stock dividend of $0.5 million

For the current six months we had loss applicable to common stock of $9.6 million which was an improvement of

$3.3 million as compared to the $12.9 million loss applicable to common stock incurred for the prior year
six months Items

contributing to the $3.3 million earnings improvement were lower operating expenses of $9.0 million and higher operating revenues of

15



$1.3 million Partially offsetting these positive items were increased interest expense of $3.5 million increased loss on derivatives of

$1.0 million and increased preferred stock dividend of $0.5 million

These items will be further addressed in the following discussion

Operating Revenues

The table below summarizes our operating revenues for the three- and six-month periods ended December 31 2010 and

2009

Three months ended Six months

December 31 Increase ended December 31 Increase

2010 2009 Decrease 2010 2009 Decrease

Operating Revenues

in thousands 5679 5634 45 11923 10565 1358

Sales Volumes

Crude Oil MBbls 59 68 135 140

Natural Gas MMcf 112 127 15 227 234

Total MBOE 78 89 11 173 179

Average Realized Price

CrudeOil$/Bbl 80.23 69.28 10.95 74.77 65.11 9.66

Natural Gas $7 Mcf 8.15 7.38 0.77 7.92 6.19 1.73

Operating Revenues and Commodity

Derivative Settlements in thousands

6095 6830 735 13248 13612 364

Average Adjusted Price

includes commodity

derivative settlements

CrudeOil$/Bbl 80.66 73.86 6.80 77.17 72.59 4.58

Natural Gas $/Mcf 11.61 14.35 2.74 12.32 14.74 2.42

As discussed in Note to our Consolidated Financial Statements on August 10 2010 we sold certain natural gas

commodity derivative contracts realizing net proceeds of $0.8 million pursuant to the Forbearance Agreement The $0.8

million is excluded from the commodity derivative settlements listed above

The current quarter operating revenues of $5.7 million are comparable to the prior year quarter of $5.6 million Higher

average prices received for crude oil and natural gas sales which combined to increase operating revenues by $0.7 million were offset

by lower crude oil and natural gas sales volumes which combined to reduce operating revenues by $0.7 million

The current six months operating revenues of $11.9 million are $1.3 million higher as compared to the prior year six months

of $10.6 million The $1.3 million increase is primarily attributable to higher average prices received for crude oil and natural gas

sales of $1.3 million and $0.4 million respectively partially offset by lower crude oil and natural gas sales volumes which combined

to reduce revenues by $0.4 million

Crude Oil Sales Our current quarter crude oil sales were MBbls lower as compared to the prior year quarter The overall

sales decrease resulted from reduced sales at our Cato and Panhandle Properties of JVlBbls and MBbls respectively partially offset

by increased production at our Desdemona and Davenport Properties which combined to increased crude oil sales by MBbls The

changes to the sales of our individual properties are further discussed under Overview-Operating Activities Update

Our current six months crude oil sales were MBbls lower as compared to the prior year six months The overall sales

decrease resulted primarily from reduced sales at our Cato Properties of 13 MBbls Partially offsetting the sales decrease were

increased combined sales at the Panhandle Desdemona and Davenport Properties of MBbls The changes to the sales of our

individual properties are further discussed under Overview-Operating Activities Update

Natural Gas Sales Our current quarter natural gas sales were 15 cf lower as compared to the prior year quarter The

overall sales decrease is primarily due to the lower sales at the Panhandle and Cato Properties of 23 MMcf and MMcf respectively

partially offset by increased sales at our Desdemona Properties of 17 MMcf The changes to the sales of our individual properties are

further discussed under Overview-Operating Activities Update
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Our current six months natural gas sales were MMcf lower as compared to the prior year six months Specifically the

overall sales decrease is primarily due to the lower sales at the Panhandle and Cato Properties of 18 MMcf and 16 MMcf respectively

partially offset by increased sales at our Desdemona Properties of 29 MlvIcf The changes to the sales of our individual properties are

further discussed under Overview-Operating Activities Update

Crude Oil and Natural Gas Prices

The
average price we receive for crude oil sales is generally at market prices received at the wellhead except for the Cato

Properties for which we receive below market prices due to the lower gravity of the crude oil and transportation expenses The

average price we receive for natural gas sales is approximately the market price received at the wellhead adjusted for the value of

natural gas liquids less transportation and marketing expenses For the current quarter and current six months our average price

received for crude oil sales was $80.23 and $74.77 respectively For the current quarter and current six months our average price

received for natural gas sales was $8.15 and $7.92 respectively

The average prices we received for our crude oil and natural gas sales were supplemented by commodity derivative

settlements received for the current and prior year quarters As discussed in Note to our Consolidated Financial Statements if crude

oil and natural gas NYMEX prices are lower than the floor prices we will be reimbursed by our counterparty for the difference

between the NYMEX price and floor price i.e realized gain Conversely if crude oil and natural gas NYMEX prices are higher

than the derivative ceiling prices we will pay our counterparty for the difference between the NYMEX price and ceiling price

i.e realized loss

Operating Expenses

For the current quarter our total operating expenses were $6.7 million or $7.1 million lower than the prior year quarter of

$13.8 million This is primarily due to lower exploration expenses of $5.0 million lower general and administrative expenses of

$1.2 million and reduced lease operating expenses of $1.1 million Partially offsetting these operating expense reductions are costs

totaling $0.7 million to restore production facilities at our Cato Properties due to the weather related electrical outage as discussed

under Overview-Operating Activities Update We have submitted claim with our insurance company for these costs totaling $0.7

million and are working with our insurance company as they evaluate and finalize our claim Our total operating expenses include

nonrecurring items pertaining to our general and administrative expenses of $0.9 million

For the current six months our total operating expenses were $14.4 million or $9.0 million lower than the prior year six

months of $23.4 million This is primarily due to lower exploration expenses of $5.0 million lower general and administrative

expenses of $2.3 million and reduced lease operating expenses of $2.2 million Partially offsetting these operating expense reductions

is $0.7 million related to restoring our Cato properties as discussed above Our total operating expenses include nonrecurring items

pertaining to our general and administrative expenses of $1.4 million

These items are discussed in greater detail below

Lease Operating Expenses

Our lease operating expenses LOE consist of the costs of producing crude oil and natural gas such as labor supplies

repairs maintenance workovers and utilities

For the current quarter our LOE was $2.7 million which was $1.1 million lower than prior year quarter of $3.8 million The

$1.1 million decrease resulted primarily from reduced service rates negotiated with vendors and improved operating efficiencies The

$1.1 million reduction pertained to decreased workover expenses of $0.4 million lower chemical treatments of $0.2 million decreased

repairs of $0.2 million and other expense reductions of $0.3 million We continue to evaluate additional reductions to LOE expenses

For the current six months our LOE was $6.0 million which was $2.2 million lower than prior year six months of

$8.2 million The $2.2 million decrease resulted primarily from reduced service rates negotiated with vendors and improved operating

efficiencies The $2.2 million reduction pertained to decreased workover expenses of $1.1 million lower chemical treatments of $0.4

million decreased repairs of $0.3 million and other expense reductions of $0.4 million

For the current quarter and current six months our LOE
per BOE based on production was $32.84 and $32.04 respectively

which is reduction of $7.49 and $9.19 respectively as compared to the prior year quarter and prior year six months of $40.33 and

$41.23 respectively
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Production and Ad Valorem Taxes

For the current quarter and current six months our production and ad valorem taxes were $0.5 million and $1.0 million

respectively which approximated the prior year quarter and prior year six months

Our production taxes as percent of operating revenues for the current quarter and current six months were 6.2% and 6.1%

respectively were comparable to the prior year quarter and prior year
six months of 6.5% and 6.4% respectively We anticipate the

2011 Fiscal Year to be subject to similar production tax rates

General and Administrative Expenses

For the current quarter our General and Administrative GA expenses totaled $1.6 million which is $1.3 million or

approximately 45% lower than the prior year quarter of $2.9 million The $1.3 million expense reduction resulted primarily from

costs related to the terminated merger of $0.7 million reduced stock-based compensation of $0.5 million lower payroll and benefits

costs of $0.5 million reduced fees to our board of directors of $0.1 million and other costs reductions of $0.3 million Partially

offsetting the expense reductions were nonrecurring items totaling $0.9 million pertaining to litigation settlement and advisory fees of

$0.4 million the office lease buyout of $0.3 million and employee severance payments of $0.2 million

For the current six months our GA expenses totaled $4.1 million which is $2.3 million lower than the prior year six

months of $6.4 million The $2.3 million expense reduction resulted primarily from costs related to the terminated merger of $1.0

million reduced stock-based compensation of $0.9 million lower payroll and benefits costs of $0.7 million reduced fees to our board

of directors of $0.1 million and other costs reductions of $0.6 million Partially offsetting the expense reductions were nonrecurring

items totaling $1.4 million pertaining to the terminated merger and advisory fees of $0.5 million litigation settlements of $0.4 million

the office lease buyout of $0.3 million and employee severance payments of $0.2 million

The lower share-based compensation costs are directly related to reduced issuances of stock options and restricted stock The

reduced payroll and benefits costs resulted from workforce reductions which occurred during the seven months ended January 31

2011 which eliminated 62% of our home office staff On an annualized basis the workforce reductions are expected to reduce GA
expenses by approximately $1.7 million On September 28-29 2010 we reduced the size of our Board of Directors from six

independent directors to two independent directors which is expected to result in costs savings of approximately $0.6 million

annually The $0.3 million one-time office lease buyout pertained to our home office lease located in Fort Worth Texas During

January 2011 we completed our move to our new home office location in Irving Texas which will result in cost savings of $0.5

million annually

The current quarter also includes non-recurring costs totaling approximately $0.4 million related to the severance payments

to terminated employees settlement of litigation and advisory fees for prior transactions which are not expected to occur in future

periods We are continuing to evaluate and reduce additional GA expenses

Exploration Expense

During the current quarter we had no exploration expense During the prior year quarter we recorded exploration expense of

$5.0 million pertaining to the Nowata ASP Project During December 2009 we finalized our performance analysis which indicated

the Nowata ASP Project did not result in increased oil production of significant quantities to be considered economically viable that

would justif the recognition of proved reserves Accordingly at December 31 2009 we recorded $5.0 million pre-tax exploration

expense

Loss Pending Resolution of Insurance Claim

During the current quarter we incurred $0.7 million to restore production facilities at our Cato Properties due to the weather

related electrical outage as discussed under Overview-Operating Activities Update We have submitted claim with our insurance

company for these costs totaling $0.7 million and are working with our insurance company as they evaluate and finalize our claim

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

During the current quarter we had no expense for impairment of long-lived assets During the prior year quarter we wrote

down $0.3 million of costs associated with the ASP facility used for the Nowata ASP Project

Depletion and Depreciation

For the current quarter our depletion and depreciation expense was $1.1 million decrease of $0.2 million as compared to

the prior year quarter For the current six months our depletion and depreciation expens was $2.4 million decrease of $0.1 million

as compared to the prior year
six months This includes depletion expense pertaining to our oil and natural gas properties and
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depreciation expense pertaining to our field operations vehicles and equipment natural gas plant office furniture and computers The

decreases for both the current quarter and current six months is due to decreased crude oil and natural gas sales volumes net as

previously discussed under Operating Revenues For the current quarter and current six months our depletion rate pertaining to our

oil and gas properties was $10.84 and $11.29 per BOE respectively which is comparable to the prior year quarter and prior year six

months

Interest Expense and Other

For the current quarter we recorded interest expense of $1.2 million an increase of $0.9 million as compared to the prior

year quarter of $0.3 million For the current six months we recorded interest expense of $3.9 million an increase of $3.5 million as

compared to the prior year six months of $0.4 million The increased interest
expense for both the current quarter and current six

months is due to additional interest and fees due under the terms of the Credit Agreements

The interest expense for the current quarter and current six months was reduced by $0.1 million and $0.6 million

respectively for interest cost that was capitalized to the waterflood projects discussed under the Drilling Capital Development and

Operating Activities Update The interest
expense for the prior year quarter and prior year six months was reduced by $0.5 million

and $1.1 million respectively for capitalized interest costs

Gain Loss on Commodity Derivatives

As discussed in Note to our Consolidated Financial Statements we have entered into financial contracts for our commodity

derivatives and our interest rate swap For the current quarter the loss on commodity derivatives of $3.5 million consisted of an

unrealized loss of $3.8 million and realized gain of $0.3 million For the prior year quarter the loss on commodity derivatives of

$4.7 million consisted of an unrealized loss of $5.8 million and realized gain of$1.1 million

For the current six months the loss on commodity derivatives of $6.2 million consisted of an unrealized loss of $8.2 million

and realized gain of $2.0 million For the prior year six months the loss on commodity derivatives of $5.2 million consisted of an

unrealized loss of $8.1 million and realized gain of $2.9 million

For the realization of settlements if crude oil and natural gas NYMEX prices are lower than the floor prices we will be

reimbursed by our counterparty for the difference between the NYMEX price and floor price i.e realized gain Conversely if crude

oil and natural gas NYMEX prices are higher than the ceiling prices we will pay our counterparty for the difference between the

NYMEX price and ceiling price i.e realized loss By their nature these commodity derivatives can have highly volatile impact on

our earnings ten percent change in the NYMEX prices for crude oil and natural gas that impact our commodity derivative

instruments could affect our pre-tax earnings by approximately $4.3 million

Income Tax Benefit

For the current quarter and prior year quarter we had an income tax benefit of $2.0 million and $4.4 million respectively

For the current six months and prior year six months we had an income tax benefit of $4.5 and $6.0 million respectively The tax

amounts for the prior year quarter and prior year six months included taxes related to discontinued operations as shown in Note to

our Consolidated Financial Statements The lower amount of income tax benefits for the current quarter and current six months as

compared to the respective prior year periods is due to higher taxable income The income tax rates for the current and prior year

quarters were 36% and 34% respectively The income tax rates for the current six months and prior year months were 35% and 33%
respectively

Income fromDiscontinued Operations

For the prior year quarter and prior year six months we had income from discontinued operations of $0.2 million and $0.3

million respectively due to our divestiture of the Certain Panhandle Properties as discussed in Note to our Consolidated Financial

Statements

Preferred Stock Dividend

The preferred stock dividend for the current quarter of $0.9 million was $0.5 million higher as compared to the prior year

quarter The preferred stock dividend for the current six months of $1.4 million was $0.5 million higher as compared to the prior year
six months The $0.5 million increase for both the current quarter and current six months is attributed to the amortization of issuance

costs of $0.4 million pertaining to the Preferred Stock during the current quarter The paid-in-kind and cash dividends are 59% and

41% respectively
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On August 2010 we entered into Consent and Forbearance Agreements with the lenders under our credit agreements that

prohibited us from making any indirect or direct cash payment cash dividend or cash distribution in respect of our shares of Series

Convertible Preferred Stock On September 24 2010 subsequently updated on January 2011 our lenders delivered Reservation of

Rights Letters specifiing that we failed to timely comply with the material terms of the Forbearance Agreements and therefore

terminated the Forbearance Agreements During September 2010 we elected to suspend the quarterly dividend paid on the Preferred

Stock beginning with the quarter ended September 30 2010 and continued to suspend the quarterly dividend payment through the

quarter ended December 31 2010 Dividends on the Preferred Stock are cumulative As of the date of the filing of this report unpaid

cumulative dividends on the Preferred Stock were $0.4 million

Item Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Not applicable

Item Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report our management conducted an evaluation under the supervision and with

the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Rule 3a-1 5e and Rule Sd- 15e of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Exchange Act Based

upon this evaluation our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded as of December 31 2010 that our disclosure

controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit

under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SECs rules and

forms and accumulated and communicated to management including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer as

appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

During the quarter ended December 31 2010 there was no change in our internal control over financial reporting that has

materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

PART 11OTHER INFORMATION

Item Legal Proceedings

See Note 10 to our Consolidated Financial Statements which is incorporated into this Item Legal Proceedings by

reference

Item 1A Risk Factors

In addition to the other information set forth in this report you should carefully consider the risks discussed in our Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30 2010 under the heading Item 1A Risk Factors filed with the SEC on

September 22 2010 which risks could materially affect our business financial condition and results of operations

Except as shown below there have been no material changes to the risk factors discussed in our Annual Report on Form 10-

for the year ended June 30 2010 filed with the SEC on September 22 2010 which is accessible on the SECs website at

www.sec.gov

Our board of directors and management team have recently changed and ourfailure to successfully adapt to these

changes afailure by our new management team to successfully manage our operations or our inability tofill vacant key

management positions may adversely affect our business

We have experienced several recent departures at our board of directors and executive levels including the departure of five

directors our Chief Executive Officer our Chief Financial Officer and our General Counsel Our future success is dependent on the

personal efforts performance and abilities of key management including James Latimer III our new Chief Executive Officer and

Michael Ricketts Senior Vice President and our Chief Financial Officer Each of these individuals are integral parts of our daily

operations The further loss of any of our current officers could significantly impact our business until adequate replacements can be

identified and put in place

As result of our strategic alternatives
process we are operating with reduced work force which may affect our ability to

run our business Additionally we may not be able to hire qualified replacements for lost employees in the future
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Our lenders have terminated each of the Consent and Forbearance Agreements with respect to our credit agreements and

we have no guarantee that they will not declare the amounts owed under our credit agreements immedi ately payable and exercise

any other available rights and remedies

On September 24 2010 the lenders under our credit agreements notified us through the delivery of Reservation of Rights

Letters subsequently updated on January 2011 that we had failed to timely comply with certain covenants in the Consent and

Forbearance Agreements dated August 2010 with such parties and as result thereof such Consent and Forbearance Agreements

were terminated As of February 14 2011 the lenders have taken no action with the delivery of these letters However if our lenders

declare the amounts owed under our credit agreements immediately due and payable we are unsure of our ability to continue as

going concern We have not obtained any further waiver or forbearance from the lenders with respect to our credit agreements and
there is no guarantee that we will be able to obtain any waiver or forbearance in the future

Ifwefail to meet continued listing standards ofNYSE Amex our common stock may be delisted which would have

material adverse efftct on the price of our common stock

In order for our common stock to be eligible for continued listing on NYSE Amex we must remain incompliance with

certain listing standards We received notice on November 10 2010 from the NYSE Amex LLC the Exchange specifying that

we did not meet one of the Exchanges continued listing standards in that it failed to hold its 2009 annual meeting of stockholders

prior to June 30 2010 On December 2010 we provided to the Exchange its plan to regain compliance with the continued listing

standards by May 10 2011

On January 14 2011 we received notification from the Exchange the Letter indicating that the Exchange has determined

that we have made reasonable demonstration of our ability to regain compliance with the continued listing standards and therefore

granted us an extension to regain compliance with the applicable listing standard by May 10 2011 We will be subject to periodic

review by the Exchange to determine whether we are making progress consistent with the plan If the Exchange determines that we
are not achieving progress consistent with the plan or we do not regain compliance with the continued listing standards by May 10
2011 then we could be delisted from the Exchange

Item Defaults Upon Senior Securities

On August 2010 we entered into Forbearance Agreements with the lenders under our credit agreements that prohibited us

from making any indirect or direct cash payment cash dividend or cash distribution in respect of our shares of Preferred Stock On
September 24 2010 subsequently updated on January 2011 our lenders delivered Reservation of Rights Letters specifying that we
failed to timely comply with the material terms of the Forbearance Agreements and therefore terminated the Forbearance Agreements

During September 2010 we elected to suspend the quarterly dividend paid on the Preferred Stock beginning with the quarter ended

September 30 2010 and continued to suspend the quarterly dividend payment through the quarter ended December 31 2010
Dividends on the Preferred Stock are cumulative As of the date of the filing of this report unpaid cumulative dividends on the

Preferred Stock were $0.4 million

Item Exhibits

list of the exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K and filed as part of this report is set forth in the Index to

Exhibits immediately following the signature page to this Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed

on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

CANO PETROLEUM INC

Date February 14 2011 By Is JAMES LATIMER III

James Latimer III

Chief Executive Officer

Date February 14 2011 By Is MICHAEL RICKETTS

Michael Ricketts

Senior Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Number
Description

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Huron Ventures Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys
Registration Statement on Form 10 SB File No 000-50386 filed with the SEC on September 2003

3.2 Certificate of Ownership of Huron Ventures Inc and Cano Petroleum Inc amending the Companys Certificate of

Incorporation incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 0-KSB filed

with the SEC on September 23 2004
3.3 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of Cano Petroleum Inc incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 3.8 to the Companys Post-Effective Amendment No on Form 5-1 filed with the SEC on January 23 2007
3.4 Second Amended and Restated By-Laws of Cano Petroleum Inc dated May 2009 incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 13 2009
3.5 Certificate of Designation for Series Convertible Preferred Stock incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to

the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 2004
3.6 Certificate of Designation for Series Convertible Preferred Stock incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to

the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 15 2004
3.7 Certificate of Designation for Series Convertible Preferred Stock incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to

the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 2006
3.8 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Designations Preferences and Rights of Series Convertible Preferred

Stock of the Company incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on June 24 2010

4.3 Form of Common Stock certificate incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to the Companys Registration
Statement on Form S-3 No 333-148053 filed with the SEC on December 13 2007

4.4 Designation for Series Convertible Preferred Stock included in the Certificate of Incorporation of Huron

Ventures Inc incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys registration statement on Form 10 SB
File No 000-50386 filed with the SEC on September 2003

4.5 Certificate of Designation for Series Convertible Preferred Stock incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to

the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 2004
4.6 Certificate of Designation for Series Convertible Preferred Stock incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to

the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 15 2004
4.7 Certificate of Designation for Series Convertible Preferred Stock incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 2006
4.8 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Designations Preferences and Rights of Series Convertible Preferred

Stock of the Company incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on June 24 2010

10.131 Sixth Amendment to Employment Agreement dated November 11 2010 between the Company and Michael Ricketts

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys current report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
November 17 2010

10.132 Separation Agreement and Release dated November 11 2010 between the Company and Benjamin Daitch incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys current report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 17
2010

31.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer required by Rule 3a- 14a or Rule Sd- 14a of the Exchange Act
promulgated pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification by Chief Financial Officer required by Rule 3a- 14a or Rule Sd- 14a of the Exchange Act
promulgated pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer required by Rule 3a- 14b or Rule Sd- 14b of the Exchange Act and

Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code promulgated pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002
32.2 Certification by Chief Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-14b or Rule 15d-14b of the Exchange Act and

Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code promulgated pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002

Filed herewith

Management contract or compensatory plan contract or arrangement
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

James Latimer III certify that

have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 1O-Q of Cano Petroleum Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact

necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not misleading

with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all

material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods

presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15e and 5d-1 5e and internal control over financial reporting as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 5f and Sd 15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed

under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated

subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report

is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be

designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and

the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes

in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by

this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during

the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report that

has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial

reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or persons

performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process
summarize and

report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 14 2011

Is James Latimer III

James Latimer III

ChiefExecutive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

Michael Ricketts certify that

have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 1O-Q of Cano Petroleum Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact

necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all

material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods

presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and Sd- 15e and internal control over financial reporting as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a-1 5f and 5d- 15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated

subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report
is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be

designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report that

has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial

reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or persons
performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and

report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 14 2011

Is Michael Ricketts

Michael Ricketts

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 subsections and of Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18

of the United States Code James Latimer III ChiefExecutive Officer of Cano Petroleum Inc the Company certify that the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q for the period ended December 31 2010 the Form 10-Q fully complies with the

requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in the Form 0-Q fairly

presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Company

Date February 14 2011 /s/ James Latimer III

James Latimer III

ChiefExecutive Officer



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 subsections and of Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18

of the United States Code Michael Ricketts Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Cano Petroleum Inc the

Company certify that the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended December 31 2010 the Form 10-Q

fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained

in the Form 10-Q fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Company

Date February 14 2011 Is Michael Ricketts

Michael Ricketts

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



OFFICERS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

James Latimer III

Chief Executive Officer and Director

Effective February 10 2011 Mr
Latimer was appointed Chief Executive

Officer In addition to serving as

Managing Director of Blackhill Partners

LLC Mr Latimer has headed Explore

Horizons Incorporated privately held

exploration and production company
based in Dallas Texas since 1993

Previously Mr Latimer was co-head of

the regional office of what is now

Prudential Financial Inc He was

director of Prize Energy and its audit

committee chairman from October 2000

until its acquisition by Magnum Hunter

Resources in March 2002 and he

continued as director and the audit

committee chairman of Mangum Hunter

until October 2004 In addition Mr
Latimers prior experience includes

senior executive positions with several

private energy companies consulting

with the firm of McKinsey Co and

service as an officer in the United States

Army Signal Corps Mr Latimer

graduated with B.A in Economics

from Yale University in 1968 and an

M.B.A with Distinction from Harvard

University in 1970 He has received the

Chartered Financial Analyst and

Certified Public Accountant

designations Mr Latimer previously

served on the board of directors of

Energy Partners LTD and currently

serves as member of the board of

directors of Enron Creditors Recovery

Corp and NGP Capital Resources

Company

Michael Ricketts

Senior Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer

On November 11 2010 Mr Ricketts

was appointed Senior Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer Prior to that

Mr Ricketts served as Chief Financial

Officer from May 28 2004 until June

2006 He began serving as Principal

Accounting Officer on May 28 2004

He remains the Principal Accounting

Officer Mr Ricketts served as

member of our Board of Directors from

June 25 2004 until April 2005 Mr
Ricketts is Certified Public

Accountant Prior to joining Cano Mr
Ricketts was employed by TNP

Enterprises Inc and its subsidiaries

Texas-New Mexico Power Company

and First Choice Power for 15 years He

served as Director Treasury from 2003

to 2004 He served as Director Business

Development from 2002 until 2003 He

was the Controller and Assistant

Controller from 1998 until 2002

Donald Niemiec

Chairman of the Board Chairman

of the Compensation Committee and

Chairman of the Nominating and

Corporate Governance Committee

Garrett Smith
Director and Audit Committee

Chairman

James Latimer III

Director

Member of the Audit Committee

Compensation Committee and Nominating and

Corporate Governance Committee

CORPORATE INFORMATION

6500 North Belt Line Road

Suite 200

Irving Texas 75063

214 687-0030

copy of the Companys Annual Report

on Form 10-K as filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission is

available without charge upon request

Please direct your request to Cano

Petroleum Inc Attention Corporate

Secretary 6500 North Belt Line Road

Suite 200 Irving Texas 75063

214 687-0030


